CAMBRIDGESHIRE

Fenland District Council

Fen|anPublic Document Pack loo%

eopie
grw%n

AGENDA

PLANNING COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY, 4 MAY 2022 e-mail: memberservices@fenland.gov.uk

1.00 PM

COUNCIL CHAMBER, FENLAND HALL,
COUNTY ROAD, MARCH, PE15 8NQ

Committee Officer: Jo Goodrum
Tel: 01354 622285

Whilst this meeting will be held in public, we encourage members of the public to view the
meeting via our YouTube channel:

1

2

Fenland District Coundl  Fenland Hall e County Road e March  Cambridgeshire o PE15 8NQ

To receive apologies for absence.

Previous Minutes

To confirm and sign the minutes from the previous meeting of 6 April 2022 — to

follow.

To report additional items for consideration which the Chairman deems urgent by

virtue of the special circumstances to be now specified

To receive Members declarations of any interests under the Local Code of Conduct
or any interest under the Local Code of Conduct or any interest under the Code of
Conduct on Planning Matters in respect of any item to be discussed at the meeting.

F/YR21/0887/F

Land North West Of Middle Level Commissioners, Whittlesey Road, March
Erect 1 x office/workshop, 1x vehicle workshop and 1 x training centre, 2.4m high
(approx) fence and formation of car park and associated infrastructure (Pages 3 - 36)

To determine the application.

Telephone: 01354 654321  Texiphone: 01354 622213
Email: info@fenland.gov.uk o Website: www.fenland.gov.uk

AL
)

CUSTOMER
SERVICE

EXCELLENCE
| 38

i
%

-

X, INVESTORS
,_ IN PEOPLE

t,«v
R



6 F/YR21/1504/FDC
South Fens Enterprise Park, Fenton Way, Chatteris
Erect 2 x blocks of industrial units (6 x units total) (Class E (g) - workshops and
offices) with associated parking, and enlargement of existing attenuation basin.
(Pages 37 - 54)

To determine the application.

7 FIYR22/0185/F
3 Irving Burgess Close, Whittlesey
Erect a first floor and single-storey front extensions, single-storey rear extension and
a 2-storey side/rear extension to existing dwelling (Pages 55 - 64)

To determine the application.

8 F/YR22/0241/F
5 Park Street, Chatteris
Alterations to shop front including bricking up window and a replacement window
frame (Pages 65 - 76)

To determine the application.

9 Items which the Chairman has under item 3 deemed urgent

Members: Councillor D Connor (Chairman), Councillor | Benney, Councillor M Cornwell, Councillor
Mrs M Dauvis (Vice-Chairman), Councillor Mrs J French, Councillor C Marks, Councillor
Mrs K Mayor, Councillor P Murphy, Councillor M Purser, Councillor R Skoulding, Councillor
W Sutton and Councillor D Topgood.



Agenda Item 2

PLANNING COMMITTEE -enland

CAMBRIDGESHIRE

WEDNESDAY, 6 APRIL 2022 - 1.00 PM L .
Fenland District Council

PRESENT: Councillor D Connor (Chairman), Councillor | Benney, Councillor Mrs J French,
Councillor C Marks, Councillor Mrs K Mayor, Councillor P Murphy, Councillor M Purser, Councillor
W Sutton, Councillor D Topgood and Councillor A Miscandlon,

APOLOGIES: Councillor M Cornwell, Councillor Mrs M Davis (Vice-Chairman) and Councillor
R Skoulding,

Officers in attendance: David Rowen (Development Manager), Hannah Payne (Legal Officer) and
Jo Goodrum (Member Services & Governance Officer)

P98/21 PREVIOUS MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting of the 9 March 2022 were confirmed and signed as an accurate
record.

P99/21 F/YR21/1346/F
BROMSGROVE HOUSE, HONEYSOME ROAD, CHATTERIS
CHANGE OF USE OF LAND TO RESIDENTIAL CURTILAGE AND ERECT A TWO-
STOREY SELF-CONTAINED RESIDENTIAL ANNEX INVOLVING THE
DEMOLITION OF EXISTING OUTBUILDING

David Rowen presented the report to members.

Members received a presentation, in accordance with the public participation procedure, from
Matthew Hall, the agent. Mr Hall stated that there are no objections to the application and the
applicant for the proposal runs the Willows Day Nursery in Station Road, Chatteris. He explained
that currently residing on site along with the applicant are other members of the extended family
and the current living conditions are split between the existing dwelling and the caravan that the
applicant has been residing in since 2012.

Mr Hall stated that the annexe will allow the family to stay together on site within the same
curtilage and made the point that the existing building has suffered from three break ins resulting in
loss of goods. He explained that the annexe has been positioned in the location of the existing
brick storage building of 144 square metres which is to be demolished and the proposed annexe
plan area is smaller measuring 130 square metres.

Mr Hall explained that the reason that the proposal is one and half storeys high is that, following
discussions with the Environment Agency, they have requested that the bedrooms should be
placed at first floor level. He added that they have also asked that the ground floor level should be
raised above the ground to provide sufficient mitigation.

Mr Hall referred to the officer’s site plan and pointed out the dwelling Orchard House comprises

two dwellings and explained that the building directly to the north of the site was approved for an
annexe in 2019 by the Planning Committee, which is also within Flood Zone 3. He pointed out the

Page 3



similarities of the annexe and the current proposal and stated that it is his understanding that there
was no consultation with the Environment Agency for this application.

Mr Hall referred to the Planning Committee which took place in February when an annexe at Curf
Terrace was approved by members against the officer’'s recommendation, which is similar to the
proposal before members today and he asked members to support the application.

Members asked questions, made comments, and received responses as follows:

Councillor Benney stated that he is familiar with the site, and he knows the area well. He
added that the photographs shown depict the open countryside, which is picturesque,
however, by turning 180 degrees some of the established local businesses can be seen
and, therefore, in his opinion, it cannot be classed as open countryside. Councillor Benney
expressed the view that the site would have housed two fen cottages years ago and the
adjacent dwelling has an annexe which is similar to the proposal, albeit the proposed
dwelling has a smaller footprint. He added it will provide a good family home for the
extended family to be able to reside together and he stated that there are only two dwellings
plus an office at the bottom of the road and the proposal is on the outskirts of the town
centre. Councillor Benney stated that he cannot recall any brownfield sites remaining in
Chatteris and, therefore, in order to see the town of Chatteris to grow, development will
need to take place on the outskirts of the town. He expressed the view that the proposal is a
sensible option for the family to live in and he will be supporting the application.

Councillor Mrs French referred to the agent stating that the family had been living in the
caravan for ten years. She expressed the view that the dwelling adjacent to the proposal
looks very nice and to raise a family in a caravan, unless you are a traveller, must be very
difficult. Councillor Mrs French expressed the opinion that the building already on site is an
eyesore and the proposed dwelling being reduced from 144 square metres to 130 square
metres will fit nicely on the site and she will support the application.

Councillor Sutton stated that the key issue is whether the proposal is an annexe or a
standalone dwelling as he has always regarded an annexe as something for someone’s
parents. He expressed the view that if it is determined that it is an annexe then he could
consider supporting the proposal, however, if it is decided that it is a standalone dwelling
then he maybe more reluctant to support the proposal.

Councillor Mrs Mayor stated that she agrees with the comments made by Councillor Sutton
and expressed the view that she does not see the proposal as an annexe and the
application should have been submitted as a separate dwelling.

Councillor Benney expressed the view that whether it is an annexe or a separate dwelling it
has been submitted as an application for an annexe and currently there are people residing
in a caravan in Flood Zone 3. He added that the committee approved an application against
the officer’'s recommendation previously, as members felt it was unsafe for people to be
living in a caravan in Flood Zone 3 and with the flood risk mitigation measures in place it will
make it safer for the residents to live in. Councillor Benney expressed the view that he
cannot see any evidence from the officer’s report to state that it is a separate dwelling, it has
been presented to him as an annexe and that is what he will base his decision on.
Councillor Miscandlon stated that the proposal has the appearance and the definition of a
separate dwelling and whilst the application is for an annexe in the future that could change,
and it could be sold off as a separate premise. He expressed the view that he agrees with
the comments of Councillors Mrs Mayor and Sutton, he is not convinced it is an annexe, it is
a separate dwelling that can be used as an annexe.

Councillor Marks explained that in Manea, where he resides, there are many properties
which were originally workplace homes and now numerous properties have been changed
to annexes. He added that homes for young people are needed as many are struggling to
get onto the property ladder and the proposal before the committee is a solution for the
applicant’s family.

Councillor Murphy expressed the view that the proposal is not an annexe, it is a building on
its own. He added that it is in Flood Zone 3, does not fit the sequential test and is down an

Page 4



unadopted road. Councillor Murphy stated that the site is remote and there are more
appropriate town centre locations for people to reside. He expressed the opinion that
officers have made the correct recommendation.

Councillor Benney referred to an application on Womb Farm which was approved by the
committee previously and that the side of the Womb Farm development that comes out onto
the bypass is connected via a footpath from the development to the town centre of Chatteris
and he questioned whether that application’s connectivity is any worse than the proposal
before the committee now.

David Rowen stated that the application has been submitted as an annexe but that does not
mean it has to be considered as an annexe and the application should be looked at on what
the application proposes as a development and in the officer's report it states that the
proposal has all the elements to make it a separate dwelling. He drew members attention to
the reasons for refusal as set out in the officer’s report which state that the proposal would
result in the construction of a self-contained residential unit and separate curtilage, the form
and character is not in keeping, the proposal is a stand-alone dwelling and it needs to be
considered in terms of the sequential test and flood risk. David Rowen made reference to
the point Mr Hall had made with regard to the annexe which had received planning
permission to the south at Orchard House and drew members attention to the description of
that application which was for the erection of a detached garage with garden office and
conversion of a detached garage/store to a one bed annexe with store above to include
installation of an external staircase. He added that the Orchard House application is a one
bed annexe and is of the scale and accommodation which would be expected as an annexe
as opposed to a three bedroomed house which is what the current application proposes.
David Rowen added that the Orchard House application was almost totally within the
existing curtilage of that property whereas the current application has had a separate
curtilage created. He stated that the distinct differences are that the Orchard House seems
to be an annexe and the application before members is a self-contained three bedroomed
dwelling.

Councillor Mrs French asked whether the caravan where the family have been living in for
many years had planning permission to be on the site. David Rowen stated that he was not
aware of a separate planning application for the caravan, but it maybe that it was sited in
the existing domestic curtilage and may not need planning permission. He added that as Mr
Hall had indicated that it had been occupied as a separate living unit, it maybe something
for the enforcement team to look into. Councillor Mrs French stated that after 10 years she
did not think that permission would now be required.

Councillor Sutton asked the Legal Officer for clarity over what is classed as an annexe and
what is not. The Legal Officer stated in reality whether something would be considered as
an annexe or a separate dwelling house would depend on the particular application and that
has been set out by David Rowen and is within the officer's report. The Legal Officer
expressed the opinion that from the officer’s report and from the plan it does appear to look
more like a separate dwelling rather than an annexe.

Councillor Connor stated that the applicant has been on site for many years and added that
the application is for an annexe and that is what members need to make their determination
on.

Proposed by Councillor Mrs Mayor, seconded by Councillor Miscandlon that the application be
REFUSED as per officer's recommendation. This was not supported on a majority vote by
members.

Proposed by Councillor Benney, seconded by Councillor Mrs French and agreed that the
application be APPROVED against the officer’'s recommendation, with it be delegated to
officers to apply appropriate conditions including the stipulation that the annexe cannot be
sold off separately from the main dwelling.

Members do not support officer’s recommendation of refusal of planning permission as

Page 5



they feel that the health and wellbeing of the residents will be improved, it will enhance the
environment, it is not detrimental to the character of the area and does not have any impact
on the neighbours.

(Councillors Benney and Murphy registered, in accordance with Paragraph 14 of the Code of
Conduct on Planning Matters, that they are members of Chatteris Town Council, but take no part
in planning matters)

P100/21 F/YR21/1522/0
LAND SOUTH EAST OF NORBROWN, HOSPITAL ROAD, DODDINGTON
ERECT UP TO 2NO DWELLINGS (OUTLINE APPLICATION WITH ALL MATTERS

RESERVED)

David Rowen presented the report to members.

Members received a presentation, in accordance with the public participation procedure, from the
applicant, Mr Cutteridge. Mr Cutteridge stated that the Parish Council have not given their support
to the application as, in their view, the road is in poor condition, but in his opinion, there is not a
single pothole along Hospital Road, and it is checked regularly. He explained that there have been
objections from residents in Askham Row and having spoken to them, the residents appear to be
more concerned that there will be more properties built on the land behind them should the current
application be approved, and he has assured them that this will not be the case as that is where he
keeps his horses.

Mr Cutteridge explained that prior to submission of the application he had a meeting with the
Highway Authority where he walked the road with them and discussed the roadway with them in
detail and they agreed that the road was capable of dealing with the amount of traffic currently. He
stated that he also spoke to them with regards to another planning application concerning his
business, due to the inclusion of a cafeteria and shop, and it was agreed that additional passing
places would be included.

Mr Cutteridge explained that the road used to be the main access to Doddington Hospital for over
40 years and had far more traffic during that time. He explained that the entrance to the proposed
two dwellings is right beside one of the access points that went into Doddington Hospital and
added that the proposal is located 0.4 miles from the clock tower of Doddington and the village
spreads for in excess of a mile in most directions.

Mr Cutteridge explained that he has no issues with walking or using a bicycle to get his children to
school and the village can be accessed comfortably. He added that there is a streetlight at the end
of Hospital Road which lights that area very well in the evening and the visibility from the proposed
site enables anybody to be able to see the end of the road for oncoming traffic.

Mr Cutteridge stated that dog walkers use the lane regularly, he has lived there all of his life and he
has never known of any accident involving any pedestrian on the road. He stated that there are 11
dwellings on Turf End Road, which is 0.5 miles from the centre of the village, with a narrower road
and has a blind bend and is also no street lighting on the road which also has a hedge and one
narrow verge and a further four dwellings are being built.

Mr Cutteridge explained that each of the proposed dwellings will have their own sewerage
treatment plant as he is aware that Doddington is already having issues dealing with sewerage. He
advised the committee that the Council have advised him that some of the properties in Hospital
Road have an agricultural tie to them and stated that one of those properties was sold a few years
ago to occupiers with no links to agriculture and although this was highlighted to the Council no
action was taken, however, the Council have decided to make reference to this fact with this
planning application. He added that there is no agricultural tie on the previous two dwellings which

Page 6



have already received permission.

Mr Cutteridge expressed the view that there will be no significant change to the character of the
area as there is already a building on the hospital land which is far bigger than the proposed
dwellings. He stated that the Planning Officers have also stated that the occupiers will have to
move their waste collection bins 30 yards to the collection point, however, there are other streets
such as Thistledown and Oak Tree Close in Doddington where the bins have to be moved as far
as that as well.

Mr Cutteridge expressed the opinion that the homes will be affordable family homes and he added
that to buy a building plot and build your own dwelling is half the cost of purchasing your own four
bedroomed home in Doddington. He explained that he has planted 10,000 new trees and made
the point that Doddington is a growth village, and he does not think that the proposal site is too far
outside of the village.

Mr Cutteridge confirmed that there is no flood risk on the site and there are no issues with regards
to sewerage management.

Members asked Mr Cutteridge the following questions:

e Councillor Miscandlon asked Mr Cutteridge to confirm who would pay for the management
of the properties sewerage system. Mr Cutteridge confirmed that each dwelling would have
its own sewerage treatment plant installed and the water that comes from that will be clean
enough to go into the drain.

e Councillor Sutton stated that he disagrees with the point made concerning the access points
into the hospital as he is aware that historically the gatehouse was the entrance to the
hospital and not Hospital Road. Mr Cutteridge responded that the gatehouse was the exit as
it was a one-way system since he was a small boy and was the exit for the last 48 years.

Members asked questions, made comments, and received responses as follows:

e Councillor Sutton expressed the opinion that he agrees with the officer's recommendation
for this application. He added that the committee had previously approved the application
that had been submitted for the two dwellings which was against the officer’s
recommendation which at that time was an in-balance decision as the committee had felt
that it was infill, however, this application, in his opinion, is a step too far.

Proposed by Councillor Sutton, seconded by Councillor Miscandlon that the application be
REFUSED as per officer's recommendation. This was not supported on a majority vote by
members.

Proposed by Councillor Mrs French, seconded by Councillor Benney and agreed that the
application be APPROVED against the officer’s recommendation.

Members do not support officer’s recommendation of refusal of planning permission as
they feel that the proposal is making good use of the land, meets housing needs,
Doddington is a growth village, the site is surrounded by trees and is not protruding into
the open countryside, it is making good use of the depth of land and the fact that the
dwellings will have their own sewerage treatment plants will not add to the sewerage issues
Doddington already has.

(Councillor Connor declared that Mr Gowler, the agent, and Mr Cutteridge, the applicant, are
known him, but this would have no bearing on his determination of the application)

P101/21 F/YR21/1536/0
LAND WEST OF LOWLANDS, COLLETTS BRIDGE LANE, ELM
ERECT 1NO DWELLING AND GARAGE (OUTLINE APPLICATION WITH ALL

Page 7



MATTERS RESERVED)

David Rowen presented the report to members.

Members received a presentation, in accordance with the public participation procedure, from Mr
Bryant, an objector to the application. Mr Bryant referred to the presentation screen and explained
that that eleven objections to the application are marked in blue with the application site being
marked in red. He explained that despite appearances this is not NIMBYism and it is the local
community asking the Council to uphold its Local Plan and to execute its statutory duty to have
regard to the provisions of the Local Plan and the NPPF along with previous appeal decisions.

Mr Bryant stated that the residents were pleased that EIm Parish Council voted to object to this
application quoting LP’s 3 and 15, and the NPPF. He expressed the view that with regards to
environmental protection over the last year in two brutal phases trees a long-established native
hedgerow and all other vegetation were destroyed on the site and all wildlife disappeared.

Mr Bryant explained that a flock of 50-100 sparrows lived in the hedgerow and the inevitable
sparrowhawks have gone and that just because this pre-emptive environmental damage by the
builder that owns the land makes it look like a building site does not mean it should become one.
He expressed the view that the application fails to meet the requirement of LP3, and it should be
refused under the Local Plan referring to 2.1.7 where there is a reference to: “flat open landscapes
and big skies” showing a view taken from Lowlands opposite the site, adding that the committee
have an opportunity today to continue to protect this view that many local residents cherish.

Mr Bryant referred to sustainability and stated that in the 2014 Planning Committee minutes for this
site he noted 2 quotes where it stated that “If we pass this and agree that this is sustainable and
also, in Councillor Sutton's view there is not another unsustainable area in Fenland® and “Members
feel that the proposal is not in a sustainable area”. He referred to the next slide on the presentation
screen where the table shows a striking difference in the supposedly “similar” journeys from site to
amenities and along with the Planning Officer he rejects the applicant's comparison of the
application site with the appeal at Eastwood End as these sites fall under different levels in the LP3
hierarchy and, therefore, as the comparison fails it means the acceptability of the site under LP3
falls with it.

Mr Bryant expressed the view that development on this site is unambiguously contrary to the Local
Plan and neither Colletts Bridge nor it's protection in the plan have changed since 2014, with it
remaining a single-track cul-de-sac with no turning or passing places as the Cambridgeshire
Highways sign at the lane entrance indicates. He made the point that development on the site fails
to meet Local Plan Policies 3, 12, 15, 16 and the NPPF and expressed the view that the principle
of development on the site has never been accepted by the committee and it is the case that the
officer report and decision notice for the first 2014 application stated that the principle of
development was accepted, however, this was based on the officer using a completely incorrect
statement of LP3 for Colletts Bridge. He explained that later in 2014 this was overturned by the
committee once the correct LP3 definition was used and it was made clear that development on
the site is contrary to LP3 which was confirmed by the appeal inspector.

Mr Bryant stated that the applicant’s design and access statement refers to that 2014 appeal
decision when they comment that development on the site is, in their words “the conflict with LP3”
and they then argue, using the debunked Eastwood End case, that "...it would be reasonable to
conclude that the application site is within a settlement and can therefore be considered as an infill
plot which is acceptable in terms of Policy LP3“. He expressed the view that this is false as it
ignores point 6 of that Appeal Decision which was crystal clear “...due to the sporadic nature of the
development on the west side of the road | do not consider that the appeal site constitutes a single
dwelling infill site within an otherwise built up frontage.” and he confidently asserts that the
principle of development on this site should not be acceptable to the committee and the application

Page 8



should be refused for breach of LP3, 12, 15, 16 and the NPPF.

Mr Bryant reminded members of the best thing said about Colletts Bridge from 2014 ‘Let Colletts
Bridge be as Colletts Bridge is’ and asked the committee to reject the proposal and support the
local community in their support of the Council’s Local Plan.

Members asked Mr Bryant the following questions:
e Councillor Mrs French asked when the hedgerow that he had referred to had been removed
and Mr Bryant confirmed that its removal took place last year.

Members received a presentation, in accordance with the public participation procedure, from
Gareth Edwards, the agent. Mr Edwards stated that this application is before the committee as an
outline application where no matters have been committed and he would be happy to accept any
condition which limits the proposed dwelling type. He explained that the site is within Flood Zone 1
so both single and two storey dwellings could be accommodated on the site, with members being
aware that so many sites come before them in Flood Zones 2 and 3.

Mr Edwards made reference to the officers report where it states that the site is positioned
between residential dwellings known as La Chaumiere to the south and the Hazels to the north,
which are both two storey detached dwellings. He expressed the opinion that the site is in a cluster
of dwellings on Colletts Bridge Lane and the development of this site would fill the gap and provide
a good sized family dwelling which has ideal links to neighbouring villages and towns being in close
proximity to the A1101.

Mr Edwards expressed the view that the site mirrors others that have been approved recently in
the district and he does not believe it will set a precedent as each application should be treated on
its own merits. He made the point that the proposal comes with a number of letters of support
along with the support of Environmental Health, Highways and the Environment Agency, with the
proposal making the best use of the land and finishing off this part of the village and the lane as a
whole.

Mr Edwards expressed the opinion that the proposed site has ample size to accommodate both
surface water and foul water drainage from a treatment plant and will be subject to a soakage test
carried out in accordance with BRE365, with consideration also being given to the use of rainwater
harvesting and all soakaways will be positioned so as not to have any detrimental effect on
neighbouring properties and building regulation compliant. He made the point that it has been said
on many occasions at this committee that parcels of land like this are massively valuable to
housing supply in the District and are at a prime, plots like this will be developed by self-builders or
smaller developers that are being priced out of the larger sections of land due to the cost of the
infrastructure and land price, small builders and self-builders employ local tradesman and agents
and buy locally from local merchants, which in turn contribute to other businesses in the district.

Mr Edwards concluded by stating that the site is within Flood Zone 1, is infilling development
between 2 dwellings, will utilise a section of land that has no use for farming and will provide a plot
for a family to build a home on. He asked the committee to support the proposal and approve the
application with the conditions you deem appropriate.

Members asked questions, made comments, and received responses as follows:

e Councillor Sutton stated that he knows the road very well and despite there being no
objections from the Highway Authority it is single narrow track, and, in his opinion, it is not
the right place for development to take place. He expressed the view that officers have
made the correct recommendation which the Parish Council have also agreed with, along
with two decisions made by the Planning Committee using the current Local Plan and four
decisions in the previous two Local Plans, of which one application went to appeal and was
dismissed. Councillor Sutton stated that there needs to be acceptance that there are some

Page 9



areas which are not suitable for development, and this lane is one of those areas in his
opinion. He made the point that whilst he appreciates that it is nice to see attractive
dwellings in the area, it should not be at the expense of making the road more dangerous
by infilling where it should not be infilled. Councillor Sutton made reference to previous
applications at the site, where Councillors Miscandlon, Connor, Murphy, and Councillor Mrs
Mayor along with himself were all members of the Planning Committee and a unanimous
decision was made to refuse the applications and he stated that he would hope that the
current committee will support him as the Ward Councillor and the Parish Council by
agreeing the officer's recommendation to refuse the application.

e Councillor Miscandlon stated that he remembers the visit to site very well due to the
narrowness of the lane and he agrees with point made, that the location is inappropriate for
development in the way that has been proposed as it is a dangerous road, and he will
support the officer's recommendation.

e Councillor Mrs French expressed the view that it is very sad that the hedgerow has been
taken out for financial gain. She stated that she fully supports the officer's recommendation.

Proposed by Councillor Sutton, seconded by Councillor Mrs Mayor and agreed that the
application be REFUSED as per the officer’'s recommendation.

P102/21 F/YR22/0012/F
AGRICULTURAL BUILDING EAST OF 723, WHITTLESEY ROAD, MARCH
ERECT 1 X DWELLING (2-STOREY 5-BED) INVOLVING THE DEMOLITION OF
EXISTING AGRICULTURAL BUILDING

David Rowen presented the report to members.

Members received a presentation, in accordance with the public participation procedure, from
Gareth Edwards, the agent. Mr Edwards stated that this application come before the committee
with the support of March Town Council and all other standard consultees, and although the site is
within Flood Zone 3 it is no different to the whole of the village and many other developments
within the district, with the submitted Flood Risk Assessment demonstrating that the scheme can
be made technically safe from flooding and has the support of the Environment Agency. He added
that technically the site has an address that is in March where under LP3 the majority of
development is to be found in the market towns, and, in his view, although technically it is in March
everyone would associate it with Turves which is a small village capable of development.

Mr Edwards explained that the site is in a cluster of dwellings with a continuous frontage of a
mixture of dwelling types and it also mirrors a number of recently approved dwellings within the
district and surrounding area, with a recent approval for 6 dwellings further along Whittlesey Road
which comprises of 4 frontage dwellings and 2 further executive dwellings to the rear, with one of
these executive dwellings only being approved under planning reference F/YR21/0832/F on 8
October 2021, this was for a revised design and the approval highlights that tandem forms of
development have recently been approved in Turves. He stated that the dwelling has been
designed so as not to have a detrimental impact on neighbouring properties and will utilise the
existing access on to the site, which will be upgraded as required by Highways.

Mr Edwards made the point that the only window of significance that will have any
impact on neighbouring dwellings is to bedroom 4 and is over 30m distance to the rear elevation of
717 Whittlesey Road. He explained that it should also be noted that the site has an existing
agricultural building on it which previously had an approval for its conversion to a residential
dwelling, which is believed could be converted under a Part Q application and further emphasises
that a built form already exists on the site so there is already a tandem form of development on the
site.

Page 10



Mr Edwards expressed the view that the proposed dwelling will enhance the site, is
not detrimental as the current building has no restrictions on the time it is used, and this proposal
will create a use consistent with neighbouring residential dwellings. He stated that he has had a full
ecology survey and report carried out on the site, which Natural England confirm that the proposed
development will not have a significant adverse impact.

Mr Edwards expressed the opinion that the proposed building can be built on the site before the
existing building needs to be removed so any further surveys can be carried out at the required
time. He stated he would recommend any approval comes with a condition to provide biodiversity
enhancements both on the building and within the site and also a landscaping condition so this can
provide a habitat that encourages biodiversity.

Mr Edwards expressed the view that the proposal makes the best use of the land and will finish off
this part of the village and remove any conflict between the existing residents and any future
non-residential use on the site. He expressed the opinion that the proposed site has ample size to
accommodate both surface water and foul water from the treatment plant and will be subject to a
soakage test carried out in accordance with BRE365, consideration is also to be given to the use
of rainwater harvesting and all soakaways will be positioned so as not to have any detrimental
effect on neighbouring properties and building regulation compliant.

Mr Edwards asked members to approve the application with the conditions they deem appropriate,
which will remove any future conflict with neighbouring residential dwellings, it has been designed
so as not to have a detrimental impact on neighbouring dwellings and will provide an executive
family residence for the applicant on a site that already has a building on it.

Members asked Mr Edwards the following questions:

e Councillor Sutton stated that in the site plan history it states that approval was granted on a
Class Q in 2015 and was refused in 2019, which was due to a change in national
guidance, and he questioned why the 2015 approval was not made use of? Mr Edwards
stated that the applicant purchased the site with the approval in place and allowed it to
expire, with the applicant then applying for permission himself but due to the site and size
of the existing nissen hut onsite, although it can achieve a two storey development, it
would have meant construction and the change in policy under Part Q meant construction
could not be provided to form the first floor. Mr Edwards stated that moving forward it could
come in as another Part Q but as a single storey residence. Councillor Sutton stated so
there is and will be a building there regardless and Mr Edwards confirmed that to be
correct.

Members asked officers the following questions:

e Councillor Murphy stated that, at 5.5 in the officer's report, it refers to local residents and
interested parties, but it appears that there are five letters of objection and none of
approval and he asked whether that is correct? David Rowen confirmed that there are five
representations of objection and none of support.

e Councillor Sutton asked that if the Class Q had been in time was there not a fallback
position which could be a material consideration? David Rowen stated that it would be a
material consideration if there was a fallback position, however, there is not one.

e Councillor Miscandlon stated that the newbuilds that Mr Edwards referred to are roadside
construction not backland which is what this proposal is.

Members made comments, asked questions and received responses as follows:
e Councillor Sutton stated that the application is quite complex, given that it did have Class
Q and then for technical reasons the second application did not get approved. He
expressed the view that there is going to be residential development on the site under

Page 11



Class Q for a single storey dwelling. David Rowen stated that members are not in a
position to predetermine any Class Q application that is submitted in the future and
whether or not it would be acceptable or qualify in terms of a Class Q application and
members must, therefore, determine the application on its own merits which is a derelict
agricultural building with no planning approval on it. Councillor Sutton stated that, in his
view, if the application came in as a Class Q single storey proposal and passed all the
relevant technical requirements it would then be used residentially and as there is already
a building on site which is going to deteriorate over time, he would rather see a dwelling on
the site rather than an old building.

Councillor Benney stated that he has no strong view on the application either way,
however, he has listened to the point that Councillor Sutton has made in that there could
be a dwelling on the site. He added that a good home cannot be made out of an old nissen
hut, and, in his view, it needs demolishing and the proposal before members will be a vast
improvement on the current situation and although it does not follow the building line of the
street, it has had permission on it before.

Councillor Sutton expressed the view that although there are letters of objection, he would
rather see a nice quality home rather than an old nissen hut and added that he could
support the application.

Councillor Purser stated that the outlook will improve significantly for the neighbouring
properties.

Councillor Benney stated that with regards to overlooking, Mr Edwards had advised that
there is 30 metres between this proposal and the neighbouring property and 20 metres to
the boundary for overlooking and therefore that is irrelevant. He expressed the view that
something will be developed on the land and it will not be left in its current state and he will
support the application.

Councillor Connor stated that he called the application in for determination, and he agrees
with Councillor Sutton that an application may well come back to the committee. He
expressed the opinion that a nice large dwelling on the site would be far better than the
current situation. He stated that all of Turves is in Flood Zone 3 and made reference to the
houses built on the entrance into Turves which he stated are exceptional. Councillor
Connor added that on balance he will support the application.

Councillor Mrs French stated that something will be built on the site and it would be a vast
improvement to the old nissen hut.

Councillor Miscandlon stated that, in his opinion, if the application had come before
Whittlesey Town Council, he would have recommended the application for refusal as it is
backland development.

Councillor Benney stated that the application has the support of March Town Council and,
in his view, it is a good proposal and the type of house that is nice to see built in Fenland.
David Rowen stated that the views of Town Councils and Parish Councils are not material
considerations when determining an application. He added that the Council has 6.69 years
housing land supply and there has been a 95% score on the housing delivery test and,
therefore, there is no need to deliver housing that would not comply with the policy of the
Local Plan. David Rowen explained that there is no fall-back position on the site and there
is no guarantee that anything would get planning permission in the future and the
application needs to be determined on its current form and not possibly what would
happen in the future.

The Legal Officer stated that the committee need to consider whether the application is
contrary to policy and there are flooding issues to be considered, albeit the comments in
the officer's report from the Environment Agency have stated that it is a matter for the
Internal Drainage Board, who have not made any comment. She added that biodiversity
should also be addressed and in terms of the permitted development point, the 2015
application was for the change of use for the existing building and not for the construction

Page 12



of a different building.

e Councillor Mrs French made the point that the Internal Drainage Board, Middle Level, are
not a statutory consultee.

e Councillor Benney stated that he is aware that the site is in Flood Zone 3, however, any
building in Turves will be in Flood Zone 3 and there will be mitigation put in place to
alleviate the flood risk at the property and he does not see any reason not to pass the
application.

e Councillor Murphy asked David Rowen to clarify whether the application is classed as
backland development? David Rowen drew members attention to the second
recommended reason for refusal where it states ‘The development proposed would, by
virtue of its design and appearance, combined with its backland location appear as a
unattractive and discordant feature’.

Proposed by Councillor Mrs Mayor, seconded by Councillor Miscandlon that the application be
REFUSED as per officer's recommendation. This was not supported on a majority vote by
members.

Proposed by Councillor Mrs French, seconded by Councillor Benney and agreed that the
application be APPROVED against the officer’'s recommendation with reasonable
conditions to be delegated to officers.

Members do not support officer’s recommendation of refusal of planning permission as
they feel that the proposal makes good use of the land, although it is a small scale it is for a
high-quality development, it is in or adjacent to the existing development footprint of the
village and does not adversely have an impact on the surrounding countryside.

(Councillor Marks declared an interest in the application, by virtue of the fact that the applicant is
known to the business he is director of, and he took no part in the discussion on the item or voting
thereon)

(Councillors Mrs French and Purser registered, in accordance with Paragraph 14 of the Code of
Conduct on Planning Matters, that they are members of March Town Council but take no part in
planning matters)

P103/21 F/YR22/0051/VOC

LAND EAST OF BANK VIEW, GULL ROAD, GUYHIRN

REMOVAL OF CONDITION 3 (MATERIALS) AND VARIATION OF CONDITION 2
(OCCUPANCY RESTRICTION) AND 8 (LIST OF APPROVED DRAWINGS),
RELATING TO PLANNING PERMISSION F/YR21/0425/F (ERECT A DWELLING (2-
STOREY 4-BED) AND DETACHED GARAGE, INVOLVING THE DEMOLITION OF
THE EXISTING GLASSHOUSES) TO ALLOW CHANGES TO ELEVATIONAL
DETAILS, TO RE-POSITION GARAGE AND CLARIFY EXTENT OF 'BUSINESS
OPERATION' ON SITE

David Rowen presented the report to members.

Members received a written representation, in accordance with the public participation procedure,
from Liam Lunn-Towler, the agent, read out by Member Services. Mr Lunn-Towler stated that it is
important to make the committee aware that they recently applied to Fenland District Council for a
variation of condition application, reference F/YR21/1490/VOC, which was approved and the
aforementioned application was seeking the same details as this application, with one material
difference. He made the point that the one material difference between the application presented
to committee today, and the recently approved VOC application is that this application is seeking to
move the garage to a different position, forward of the principal dwelling and consequently altering

Page 13



the elevations of the garage to suit and this is the only difference.

Mr Lunn-Towler expressed the view that elements of this application regarding changes to the
dwelling appearance and the various lines on the site plan have been approved by Fenland District
Council already and, therefore, he asked members to focus their attention on the material part of
this application, which is seeking to move the garage location. He stated that the applicant has
discussed the garage position with the neighbour impacted, and whilst he has not formalised this in
writing, the neighbour verbally suggested that the garage would be better in the new proposed
position, as this means that cars will not be driving near the neighbour’s property.

Mr Lunn-Towler expressed the opinion that this will reduce noise impact to both parties and the
proposed position of the garage provides an enhancement to the site for the applicants, as to allow
a clear direction of domestic parking, as well as providing more garden space to the dwelling. He
respectfully requested, given the reasons presented today, that the committee support this
application.

Members asked officers the following questions:

e Councillor Mrs Mayor asked officers to confirm how many Variation of Condition
applications are people allowed to submit? David Rowen confirmed that it is unlimited
although if the scheme becomes significantly different to the one that was originally
approved then there would be the requirement for a new application to be submitted.
Councillor Mrs Mayor stated that this is the second variation of condition that has been
before the committee, and it is her belief that the second variation appears to be changing
the garage back to where the garage was originally, and she asked for clarity over this.
David Rowen confirmed that Councillor Mrs Mayor was correct in her understanding.
Councillor Mrs Mayor expressed the view that a great deal of officer's time appears to be
wasted dealing with applications like this that are coming backwards and forwards.
Councillor Connor stated that he called the application in as he failed to comprehend that
the application was exactly the same as the first application.

e Councillor Benney stated that when he attended the site, the planning notification notice
affixed to the gate at the site location, does not appear to correspond with the plan in the
report and he asked officers to provide clarity over the plan. David Rowen explained that
there is an existing dwelling on the site which sits at the back of the current application site
which was formally connected to the nursery business and does not form part of the current
application.

Members asked questions, made comments, and received responses as follows:

e Councillor Sutton stated that he also read the original application and stated that officers
have spent a great deal of time with the agent and applicant to get the application to an
acceptable position and then for the applicant to decide to revert to the original application is
very frustrating. He added that the time those officers have invested on this application has
been lengthy and time consuming and he will fully support the officer's recommendation.

e Councillor Miscandlon stated that at 10.10 of the officer’s report the Parish Council have
recommended refusal of the scheme and have stated that any conditions placed on the
original application should remain and he added that he totally concurs with the comments
made by Councillor Sutton. He feels that officers go above and beyond what they should do
to assist applicants and agents and he commended their work ethic.

Proposed by Councillor Sutton, seconded by Councillor Mrs Mayor and agreed that the
application should be REFUSED as per the officer’s recommendation.

P104/21 F/YR22/0169/0
LAND SOUTH EAST OF 127, WYPE ROAD, EASTREA
ERECT UP TO 2 X DWELLINGS (SINGLE-STOREY) AND THE FORMATION OF
AN ACCESS AND A 1.2M WIDE FOOTWAY TO FRONTAGE (OUTLINE

Page 14



APPLICATION WITH MATTERS COMMITTED IN RESPECT OF ACCESS, LAYOUT
AND SCALE)

David Rowen presented the report to members.

Members received a presentation, in accordance with the Public Participation Procedure, from Lee
Bevens, the agent. Mr Bevens referred to the officer’s reasons for refusal in the executive summary
and stated that at 1.2, the previous scheme for 2 bungalows adjacent to this scheme approved
back in 2019 was not residential infilling either, but members agreed that a further 2 dwellings
along this section of road followed the general pattern of development along Wype Road which is
ribbon or frontage development. He stated that he disagrees with officers that this proposal would
fail to respect the core shape and form of the settlement by virtue of following the pattern along
Wype Road with frontage development.

Mr Bevens referred to 1.3 and stated that he does not believe that the site is contrary to Policy
LP12 Part A (a, ¢, d, and e) as the site is adjacent to the existing developed footprint of the village,
being the two large, detached bungalows to the north-east and, in his view, it will not have a
harmful impact on the character and appearance of the surrounding countryside, as the dwellings
proposed will be single storey in height and reflect nearby dwellings. He expressed the opinion that
the proposal is of a scale and in a location that is in keeping with the established form of Wype
Road, which is frontage development, and it will not adversely harm the character and appearance
and finally it will extend the linear features of the settlement but in a manner which is proportionate
to the small village of Eastrea and will provide 2 bungalows offering a wider choice of housing.

Mr Bevens added that officers have referred to Policy LP16 (c and d) in their recommendation and
the site does retain the hedgerow to the front of the site and this would be reinforced in a future
reserved matters application and could be conditioned. He feels the scheme will improve the
character of the local area and does not adversely impact on the street scene, settlement pattern
or the landscape character.

Mr Bevens pointed out that the applicant and L Bevens Associates have spent some 18 months
agreeing the relocation of the speed signage into Eastrea along Wype Road to slow down traffic
entering the village and he referred to the presentation screen and pointed out that that this will see
an improvement in speed reduction, with the 30mph speed limit being moved some 70 metres
south-east from its former position and the national speed limit exiting the village being moved
some 140m southeast from its former position. He stated that the applicant has paid for all the
works to be carried out for the design and installation of these signs and explained that the
proposed scheme will offer well designed bungalows, which will meet local demand.

Mr Bevens stated that the Town Council support the proposal, Environmental Health and Highways
have raised no objections. He explained that the scheme has been amended to extend the
footpath on this side of the road to allow pedestrians safe passage into the village centre and he
asked members to re-consider the recommendation for refusal and approve the proposal based
upon the local support for the scheme and the points in his presentation.

Members asked officer’s the following questions:

e Councillor Mrs French asked whether the site is located on farmland or is it adjacent to
farmland? David Rowen confirmed that it is an agricultural field.

e Councillor Mrs French referred to the officer's report at 5.2 and asked for clarity and an
explanation on the term of noise sensitive dwellings? David Rowen stated that it is a term
used by Environmental Health colleagues with regards to householders being sensitive to
sources of noise from agricultural machinery.

Members asked made comments, asked questions and received responses as follows:
e Councillor Sutton stated that he has reservations with regards to the application and stated

Page 15



that on the previous two applications the committee voted against the officer’s
recommendation which was based on a balanced decision that it was adjacent to the built
form and that it did comply to LP12. He expressed the view that the application before the
committee now is similar and stated that if an additional two dwellings are approved, with
the same reasoning, that it is next to the built form then it could be seen as a step too far.
Councillor Sutton stated that if that mode is continued then the village of Eastrea will
become joined up with the village of Benwick and it cannot be argued that the proposal is
infill and, in his view, the officers have made the correct recommendation.

e Councillor Murphy stated that he agrees with the points made by Councillor Sutton and
added that there should be no more development in that location.

e Councillor Benney stated that, in his opinion, the two bungalows at the entrance to the
village look very nice and are pleasing to the eye when you enter the village. He added that
there is a natural boundary as the road drops away along with the railway line and as the
land drops away at some stage it will be in Flood Zone 3. Councillor Benney stated that he
supported the previous two bungalows, and he will support this application, but he will not
support any further house building in that area. He added that he appreciates the comments
made by Councillor Sutton with regard to balancing up but the bungalows already on the
site are lovely and the plots are nice big plots, and it will add to the village as you drive in
reiterating that he will not support any further house building in that area.

e David Rowen drew members attention to the policies of the Local Plan, which seek to limit
the expansion of small villages such as Eastrea into the open countryside to retain the
agricultural character at the edges of the settlement. He added that members approved the
two existing bungalows against the officer's recommendation, and he referred to the point
made by Councillor Sutton with regards to where do you draw the line and stop
development in this location. David Rowen made reference to the policy of the Local Plan
and national planning policy which is to control the expansion of villages so that they do not
encroach into the open countryside to the detriment and appearance of the countryside.

Proposed by Councillor Sutton, seconded by Councillor Murphy that the application be REFUSED
as per officer's recommendation. This was not supported on a majority vote by members.

Proposed by Councillor Benney, seconded by Councillor Mrs French and agreed that the
application be APPROVED against the officer’'s recommendation, with reasonable
conditions to be delegated to officers.

Members do not support officer’s recommendation of refusal of planning permission as
they feel that the proposal is within the village boundary, is within the existing development
footprint of the village, there is the need for good quality bungalows and the benefits of the
development outweigh the detriment of building out into the open countryside, it will not
have an adverse impact on the character and appearance of the surrounding countryside
and farmland, is extending the nice entrance into the village and it will enhance the local
identity of the village.

(Councillor Connor wished it to be recorded that Councillor Mrs Laws is Portfolio Holder for
Neighbourhood Planning and the applicant is a relative of her late partner, but she has taken no
part in the consideration of this application by the Council. Whilst he knows Councillor Mrs Laws,
has met the applicant once at a function and sometimes attends Full Council meetings of
Whittlesey Town Council, he has not entered into discussions on this application and considers
that he is open-minded and will take into account the debate before reaching his decision on this
application)

(Councillor Mrs Mayor registered, in accordance with Paragraph 14 of the Code of Conduct on

Planning Matters, that she is a member of Whittlesey Town Council’s Planning Committee, and
the applicant is also known to her, and took no part in the discussion or voting thereon)

Page 16



(Councillor Miscandlon registered, in accordance with Paragraph 14 of the Code of Conduct on
Planning Matters, that he is Chairman of Whittlesey Town Council’s Planning Committee, and
took no part in the discussion or voting thereon)

3.34 pm Chairman

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5

F/IYR21/0887/F
Applicant: Mr P Burke Agent : Mr R Papworth
Force One Ltd Morton & Hall Consulting Ltd

Land North West Of Middle Level Commissioners, Whittlesey Road, March,
Cambridgeshire

Erect 1 x office/workshop, 1x vehicle workshop and 1 x training centre, 2.4m high
(approx) fence and formation of car park and associated infrastructure

Officer recommendation: Refuse

Reason for Committee: Town Council comments and number of representations
received contrary to officer recommendation.

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 This is an unacceptable proposal on a site in a sensitive location in the rural
area, located just beyond the western edge of the town of March. The
proposal, therefore, falls to be considered against the policies of restraint that
apply to the rural area - principally FLP Policy LP3 - to protect the attractive
undeveloped rural character. The proposal would be a significant urbanisation
of the countryside.

1.2  The development would also be contrary to settlement policy for the District
more generally, as set-out in FLP LP3, which seeks to direct new development
to the most accessible and sustainable locations - generally within the four
market towns in the District and certain other identified villages.

1.3  This a not a sustainable location. There would be a high reliance on use of the
private car by staff to get to and from the site because of its location on an unlit
road with no footpaths.

1.4  The site is within Flood Zone 3 - that is, is in an area at the highest risk of
flooding - in respect of which a sequential test is required be passed (as per
FLP Policy LP14 and the NPPF) to establish if there are alternative suitable
sites at lesser flood risk that should be developed in preference to a site within
Flood Zone 3. The purpose of the sequential test is to direct new development
to sites at the least risk of flooding. In this instance, the sequential test is not
considered to be passed. There has been no systemic assessment of
allocated employment sites across the District to establish if suitable alternative
sites, with lower flood risk, are available. In the absence of evidence to the
contrary, it has, therefore, to be concluded that the proposals will put people
and property at an unnecessarily high risk of being affected by flooding.

2 SITE DESCRIPTION

Page 19



2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

3.1

3.2

This undeveloped 2.9 ha greenfield site lies on the south side of Whittlesey
Road, March, in the countryside outside of and functionally isolated from the
town. The land is in agricultural use.

On the west side of the site are the offices and depot of the Middle Level
Commissioners, which are spaciously situated within their grounds, whilst
adjoining to the east are the offices and depot for Fenn Holidays operating from
buildings set well-back from the road.

To the north and north-west the site looks out to open agricultural land. To the
south is the River Nene. The northern boundary of the site to Whittlesey Road
is marked by a hedgerow and, beyond this, drainage dyke.

The overall character of the location is of a loose scattering of development
within a predominantly undeveloped rural environment.

PROPOSAL

The application seeks full planning permission to the develop the site as a base
for an existing local firm, Force One, that is currently split between two sites
elsewhere in March, one of these in Thorby Road, where offices are provided,
the other in Longhill Road, which is used for vehicle storage. The purpose is to
consolidate the firm’s operations in March onto one site.

On behalf of the applicant the following statement has been provided:

“Force One Ltd has grown in previous years but in doing so it has been forced
to operate from 2 sites due to a lack of other suitable sites in the area.

Operating from multi sites is less than ideal for management aspects but also for
staff development. Having a site where all aspects of the business can operate
from will aid staff development and will increase employment opportunities in the
area. Force One Ltd is an employer of approximately 50 people working in the
field and at the offices. The field staff consists of a variety of specialist and
Skilled operatives. The ability to create a training centre will facilities the
continual staff training required. Furthermore, the (above) development will aid
the continued growth for the business. Support for such businesses should be
encouraged as these businesses provide additional work for other local
businesses and the wider community.”

Page 20



3.3

3.4

3.5

4.1

5.1

5.2

More specifically, three buildings are sought:

a commercial- style building to be used for training purposes, including a
commercial vehicle workshop, overall dimensions 15m wide x 15m deep, the
office part of the building being of flat-roofed design, the vehicle workshop being
of shallow pitched roof design - total combined footprint 225 square metres;

a commercial “vehicle-shed” footprint 30m wide x 30m deep, of half-round roof-
design, footprint 900 square metres;

a commercial building to be used in part as offices but in part as a vehicle
workshop - footprint 1,080 square metres.

The following related works are also proposed:

o the formation of a vehicle access from Whittlesey Road and, linked to this,
the laying of an internal access road that will run through the site in a
circular fashion, providing access to each of the proposed buildings, so
allowing vehicles to enter and leave the site in forward gear;

o the enclosure of the site with 2.4m high steel palisade fencing;

o the creation of a landscaped buffer strip along the site’s eastern boundary

including the planting of a new hedgerow on the boundary itself;

in addition, there would be landscaping internal to the site

Full plans and associated documents for this application can be found at:
https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/simpleSearchResults.do?
action=firstPage

SITE PLANNING HISTORY

No planning history.

CONSULTATIONS

Town Council: Recommends approval.
CCC (Highway Authority):

No objections to the proposals as revised, subject to any planning permission
being granted with conditions relating to the provision of access to the site and
parking for the development.

| have looked through the revised layout and supporting information. | agree that
the access in respect of tree and culvert can be agreed at the s278 stage so in
that regard | would not have a problem with that approach (unless the tree
cannot be touched or is impacted to the extent that the tree officer requires its
retention).

The following condition can deal with the access, which has been made pre-
commencement as there is no safe available access without it:

1. No part of the development shall begin until full details of the layout and
construction of the vehicle access have been submitted and approved in writing
by the local planning authority. Development shall not commence until the
access has been sited and constructed in accordance with the approved details.

Page 21


https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage
https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage

5.3

Reason: for the safety and convenience of users of the highway and of the
access. The developer will be required to enter into a s278 for works within the
highway. The applicant should contact the Highways Development Management
team for help and advice on the information required to be submitted in order to
complete this process;

Further condition for parking:

2. Prior to the first occupation of the development the proposed on-site
parking and turning area shall be laid out, demarcated, levelled, surfaced and
drained in accordance with the approved plan and thereafter retained for that
specific use.

Reason: To ensure the permanent availability of the parking / manoeuvring
area, in the interests of highway safety.

While I have included some conditions above, | have to reiterate my concerns
for the site in terms of sustainability and lack of facilities to access the site by
non-motorised modes. As previously mentioned the site is a rural location
without footways or street lighting. | acknowledge that there are other
employment facilities nearby and they all suffer from the same lack of facilities.
This is not justification to continue to generate more trips outside more
sustainable locations and with non-motorised trips along roads without suitable
facilities with resultant conditions of danger and inconvenience to those

users. | would also add this is not a small-scale operation - according to the
application there will be 56 employees. Based on the above | would suggest that
there are strong arguments to justify refusal of planning permission on
sustainable grounds.

CCC (LLFA):

No objections subject to a condition being applied to any planning permission
relating to the submission to and agreement by the LPA of the SuDS details
relating to the development.

We have reviewed the following documents:

/7 Flood Risk Assessment & Drainage Strategy, MTC Engineering, 2638-
FRA&DS-RevBJan2022,

/7 Technical Note, MTC Engineering, SEC/2638, January 2022
Based on these, as Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) we have no objection in
principle to the proposed development.

We request the following condition is imposed:
Condition

No laying of services, creation of hard surfaces or erection of a building shall
commence until a detailed design of the surface water drainage of the site has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Those elements of the surface water drainage system not adopted by a
statutory undertaker shall thereafter be maintained and managed in accordance
with the approved management and maintenance plan. The scheme shall be
based upon the principles within the agreed Flood Risk Assessment & Drainage

Page 22



Strategy report prepared by MTC Engineering (ref: 2638-FRA&DS-RevB-
Jan2022) dated January 2022 and shall also include:

a) Full calculations detailing the existing surface water runoff rates for the
QBAR, 3.3% Annual Exceedance Probability (AEP) (1 in 30) and 1% AEP (1 in
100) storm events;

b) Full results of the proposed drainage system modelling in the above-
referenced storm events (as well as 1% AEP plus climate change), inclusive of
all collection, conveyance, storage, flow control and disposal elements and
including an allowance for urban creep, together with an assessment of system
performance;

c¢) Detailed drawings of the entire proposed surface water drainage system,
attenuation and flow control measures, including levels, gradients, dimensions
and pipe reference numbers, designed to accord with the CIRIA C753 SuDS
Manual (or any equivalent guidance that may supersede or replace it);

d) Full detail on SuDS proposals (including location, type, size, depths, side
slopes and cross-sections);

e) Site Investigation and test results to confirm infiltration rates;

f) Temporary storage facilities if the development is to be phased;

g) A timetable for implementation if the development is to be phased;

h) Details of overland flood flow routes in the event of system exceedance, with
demonstration that such flows can be appropriately managed on site without
increasing flood risk to occupants;

i) Demonstration that the surface water drainage of the site is in accordance with
DEFRA non-statutory technical standards for sustainable drainage systems;

J) Full details of the maintenance/adoption of the surface water drainage system;
k) Measures taken to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or
Surface water

The drainage scheme must adhere to the hierarchy of drainage options as
outlined in the NPPF and PPG

Reason

To ensure that the proposed development can be adequately drained and to
ensure that there is no increased flood risk on or off site resulting from the
proposed development and to ensure that the principles of sustainable drainage
can be incorporated into the development, noting that initial preparatory and/or
construction works may compromise the ability to mitigate harmful impacts.

Condition

No development, including preparatory works, shall commence until details of
measures indicating how additional surface water run-off from the site will be
avoided during the construction works have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The applicant may be required to
provide collection, balancing and/or settlement systems for these flows. The
approved measures and systems shall be brought into operation before any
works to create buildings or hard surfaces commence.

Reason
To ensure surface water is managed appropriately during the construction
phase of the development, so as not to increase the flood risk to adjacent

land/properties or occupied properties within the development itself; recognising
that initial works to prepare the site could bring about unacceptable impacts.

Page 23



5.4

5.5

Informatives
Pollution Control

Surface water and groundwater bodies are highly vulnerable to pollution and the
impact of construction activities. It is essential that the risk of pollution
(particularly during the construction phase) is considered and mitigated
appropriately. It is important to remember that flow within the watercourse is
likely to vary by season and it could be dry at certain times throughout the year.
Dry watercourses should not be overlooked as these watercourses may flow or
even flood following heavy rainfall.

CCC Fire & Rescue Services

No objections subject to a condition or legal agreement relating to provision of
fire hydrants.

“...should the Planning Authority be minded to grant approval, the Fire Authority
would ask that adequate provision be made for fire hydrants, which may be by
way of a Section 106 agreement or a planning condition. The position of fire
hydrants are generally agreed upon when the Water Authority submits plans to:

Water & Planning Manager
Community Fire Safety Group
Hinchingbrooke Cottage
Brampton Road

Huntingdon

Cambs

PE29 2NA

Where a Section 106 agreement or a planning condition has been secured, the
cost of Fire Hydrants will be recovered from the developer. The number and
location of Fire Hydrants will be determined following Risk Assessment and with
reference to guidance contained within the “National Guidance Document on the
Provision of Water for Fire Fighting” 3rd Edition, published January 2007.
Access and facilities for the Fire Service should also be provided in accordance
with the Building Regulations Approved Document B5 Vehicle Access.
Dwellings Section 13 and/or Vol 2. Buildings other than dwellings Section 15
Vehicle Access.

If there are any buildings on the development that are over 11 metres in
height (excluding blocks of flats) not fitted with fire mains, then aerial
(high reach) appliance access is required, the details of which can be
found in the attached document.

I trust you feel this is reasonable and apply our request to any consent given.
Should you require any further information or assistance | will be pleased to
advise.”

Environment Agency

We consider that the main source of flood risk at this site is associated with
watercourses under the jurisdiction of the relevant Internal Drainage Board

Page 24



5.6

5.7

(IDB). As such, we have no objection to the proposed development on flood
risk grounds.

Advice to LPA

In accordance with paragraph 162 of the National Planning Policy Framework,
development should not be permitted if there are reasonably available sites
appropriate for the proposed development in areas with a lower probability of
flooding. It is for the local planning authority to determine if the Sequential Test
has to be applied and whether or not there are other sites available at lower
flood risk. Our national flood risk standing advice reminds you of this and
provides advice on how to do this.

The IDB should be consulted with regard to flood risk associated with
watercourses under their jurisdiction and surface water drainage proposals.

In all circumstances where flood warning and evacuation are significant
measures in contributing to managing flood risk, we expect local planning
authorities to formally consider the emergency planning and rescue implications
of new development in making their decisions.

Advice to the Applicant
Pollution Prevention

Only clean, uncontaminated surface water should be discharged to any
Soakaway, watercourse or surface water sewer.

Surface water from roads and impermeable vehicle parking areas shall be
discharged via trapped gullies.

Prior to being discharged into any watercourse, surface water sewer or
Soakaway system, all surface water drainage from lorry parks and/or parking
areas for 50 car park spaces or more and hard-standings should be passed
through an oil interceptor designed compatible with the site being drained.
Rood water shall not pass through the interceptor designed compatible with the
site being drained. Roof water shall not pass through the interceptor. Site
operators should ensure that there is no possibility of contaminated water
entering and polluting surface or underground waters. Where soakaways are
proposed for the disposal of uncontaminated surface water percolation tests
should be undertaken and soakaways designed and constructed in accordance
with BRE Digest 365 (or CIRIA Report 156) and to the satisfaction of the Local
Authority. The maximum acceptable depth for soakaways is 2 metres below
existing ground level. Soakaways must not be located in contaminated areas.
If, after tests, it is found that soakaways do not work satisfactorily, alternative
proposals must be submitted.

We hope this information is of assistance. If you have any queries, please do
not hesitate to contact us.

Anglian Water

No comments because there is no connection to any Anglian Water sewers.
Middle Level Commissioners

First Response

Page 25



No objections in principle to the proposal as originally submitted but have
some significant concerns.

The following comments are made based on access to the site being taken off
the turn into the Middle Level Commissioners site:

Thank you for the correspondence received in respect of the above.

The following response is written on behalf of the Middle Level Commissioners,
primarily in its role as owner of part of the site, and March West & White Fen
IDB, in whose district the site is located.

Please note that the Commissioners provide the Board with a planning
consultancy service.

Please be advised that neither the Commissioners or the Board are averse to
the proposal but having considered the submission documents there are
aspects which are a significant cause for concern.

As a result, the Commissioners oppose this development, in its current
form, until the appropriate requirements have been met.

In view of the size and location of the development it is disappointing that the
above authorities were not consulted prior to the planning application
submission being made particularly given that the applicant seeks to cross land
owned by the Commissioners and discharge surface water into the Boards
system. Had such Pre-application consultation procedure been undertaken
guidance could have been provided on the proposals.

In view of the contents below, the size of the development and the possible
adverse effect on the respective systems, the applicant is urged to discuss this
with the Commissioners/Board via the post-application consultation procedure
as a matter of urgency.

The main causes of concern are as follows:
A. Junction Layout

The contents of the relevant submission documents, primarily MTC Engineering
(Cambridge)

Ltd. Transport Statement Ref. 2638 — TS May 2021, have been reviewed.

The access from the application site onto the Commissioners existing junction
would not be at

an opportune angle which will lead to “conflicts” between the traffic exiting the
Force One site and those entering the Commissioners facility with the increased
risk of accidents and injury.

The driver leaving the application site will have to look over their shoulder to
view the traffic on Whittlesey Road. The existing hedge and reinforced
landscaping will result in poor intervisibility when leaving the application site.

MTC’s Drawing No. 2638-02 Rev. A only shows the site access and tracking

associated with the Force One site. The approximate paths of a large car/4x4
entering and leaving the 2 Commissioners facility, are shown on the attached

Page 26



amended extract from the aforementioned drawing. In addition to the point
raised above, you will note from the amended extract that:

* There are several points of conflict;

* The hedge to the east of the Commissioners access gate has not been shown;
» When turning right the HGV'’s leaving the site require most of the existing
junction to access Whittlesey Road;

» The HCV'’s overrun the northern road edge by approximately 1m at two
locations. As can be seen in Photo 1 there is little verge and any overrun would
detrimentally affect the Boards Whittlesey Road Drain. See item C The future
integrity of the Boards system, below;

» When rectifying the turn the cab encroaches on the southern side of the road.
This will require a vehicle entering the site to wait on Whittlesey Road. This is
extremely poor highway design;

There does appear to be a scaling issue with this drawing but several
photographs have been taken of the existing junction viewed from the
approximate point from which the visibility splays for the amended junction
layout are measured. Copies of these are attached;

As discussed above when looking to the north-east, Photo 2, the driver exiting
the application site will not be able to see much beyond the Commissioners
current sign and landscaping;

Looking towards the Commissioners facility, Photo 3, the driver would only see
the hedge. Even if the hedge was removed it would be difficult to observe the
vehicles using the Commissioners facility due to the presence of the existing
immature Silver Birch trees, Photo 4;

When entering the site from Whittlesey Road, Photo 5, a driver will not be able
to see the traffic entering from the application site until about 5m from the top of
the junction giving the driver about 20m to stop. Similarly, a vehicle leaving the
Commissioners facility would not see any traffic leaving the application site until
passing through the Commissioners access gateway;

Interpolating typical stopping distances, a vehicle travelling at about 26mph may
be able to stop in time dependent upon the weather conditions and the condition
of the vehicle.

In view of the above, it is considered that the proposed highway junction
alignment would be impractical and unacceptable as it would create a hazard
which would place both the Commissioners and Force One’s staff, its
contractors and members of the public at an increased risk of injury;

The use of an amended junction for traffic entering the site only may be
acceptable but it is suggested that an alternative junction is found for vehicles
accessing the site.

B. Damage to the Junction

The Commissioners facility has been occupied for about twelve years with little
or no damage occurring to the existing junction through its use. With the
exception of your Council’s Refuse Lorry HGVs rarely access the
Commissioners site, may be 3 a day as a very worst case.

It is clear that most damage to highways is caused by HGV'’s and this is
particularly true where the road foundations are weak

It is known that Force One currently operate a fleet which includes large rigid
body vehicles the weight of which ranges from 26-41 tonnes.

Page 27



Because of this and the very tight angle of the proposed amended junction, it is
considered that the larger vehicles will detrimentally affect the road surface
particularly during the summer or periods of hot weather.

C. Traffic Movements

Using these figures contained within the Transport Statement, which does not
appear to include the training centre, the traffic generated by the proposal
equates to about 60+ movements/day for the current application. However,
Table 5.1, on page 8 advises that it is estimated that 320 traffic movements will
occur. It is not known how the figures have been determined but it is noted that
this is not referred to in the text of the statement. This table is also titled
“Vehicular generation of proposed 1210m2 Trade Counter units” but these units
do not form part of this planning application. Presumably, it indicates future uses
of the site at the southern end of the field, and adjacent to the Commissioner’s
office building?

320 traffic movements/day equates to 13 movements/hr, during 24 hrs, or 29
movements/hr during eleven hours, or a traffic movement every 2 minutes. No
allowance has been made for the Commissioners traffic movements within the
Statement.

In respect of the Commissioners facility, it is estimated that, as an average,
there are 11 traffic movements/hour using an eleven hour day with HCV'’s rarely
accessing the site. However, most movements will occur during peak hours.

D. The Future Integrity of the Boards System

Extract from the Boards District Plan showing the proximity of its Whittlesey
Road Drain and the catchment that it serves.

The Boards system, shown dark blue on the above extract from its District Plan,

provides an arterial network that serves the local community by managing water
levels in ordinary watercourses and other water infrastructures within its District

to mitigate against the risks from flooding and drought. In delivering its functions
the Board has to meet its environmental obligations and commitments and seek
opportunities to enhance the environment.,

The application site, edged red on the above extract, is served by the Boards
Whittlesey Road Drain which, at this location, is on the northern side of the road
and primarily serves part of the urban area of March. This watercourse is
becoming increasingly important as further development within its catchment
occeurs.

As discussed above, the HGV'’s exiting the site will overrun the road edge by
approximately 1m and given that there is little verge, any overrun would
detrimentally affect the stability of the channel profile or result in the vehicle
entering the channel.

In recent years at least one car has entered the adjacent watercourse with one
lorry leaving the road in the vicinity of the junction with Marina Drive.

A blockage within the Boards Drain as a result of the failure of the channel
profile or submerged vehicle will detrimentally affect the local water level and

Page 28



flood risk management system particularly during periods of high rainfall or a
flood event.

Other issues of concern include the following:
1.  Highway Issues

With the exception of some bicycle traffic movements most members of staff
access the
Commissioners facility using motor vehicles primarily via Peas Hill Roundabout.

Therefore, there are concerns about the adverse impacts on this section of
highway.

a. Whittlesey Road

The carriageway is narrow and due to the road alignment, it is not unusual for
HGV'’s to overrun onto the other side, as can be seen in Photo 6, with other road
users having to slow or stop to allow large/articulated vehicles to negotiate the
bends to prevent a “head on” collision or being “side swiped” into the adjacent
watercourse or lower level field.

Due to a combination of the busy small rural businesses and the limited space
on site it is not unusual for vehicles to be parked on the road reducing site lines
particularly between the roundabout to just south of the Whitemoor Road
junction but very occasionally extending to Marina Drive.

This requires the driver to commit not knowing what will be coming around the
corner or off the roundabout. The latter is often at a relatively high speed for the
conditions. Photograph 7 shows a typical situation as viewed from the approach
to the roundabout. Note that cars are parked on both sides of the road.

It is considered that unless appropriate action is undertaken, the risk of conflicts
will increase as traffic movements increase.

It is unlikely that Whittlesey Road was designed to accommodate the increasing
weight and size of HGV’s. A combination of this, the number of HGV'’s using the
road, the weak soil conditions and lack of maintenance has led to a significant
deterioration of the highway surface. This deterioration will increase unless
significant remediation works are undertaken.

b. Peas Hill Roundabout

Whittlesey Road is one of five “arms” that access the roundabout. Access from
Whittlesey Road onto the roundabout requires the driver to observe all of these
junction movements simultaneously.

The layout of the junction restricts views of traffic travelling around the
roundabout from Hostmoor Avenue and sightlines of traffic entering from the
A141 Isle of Ely Way is restricted by the existing properties and landscaping.
Traffic from the right does not always slow down to enter the junction and is
often travelling at relatively high speed for the circumstances. Entering the
roundabout, particularly if heading into March or the A141 often requires the
driver to take an element of risk.

Page 29



One of the reasons that planning application FDC Ref. F/YR12/0689/0, for the
erection of 18 dwellings on the former Horse and Jockey site to the north of 35
Whittlesey Road, was discussed at the Planning Committee was due to
concerns about the adverse impact on the traffic at the roundabout.

In addition to other concerns including Flood Risk, one of the reasons for refusal
for this application was that the proposal “... failed to demonstrate that an
acceptable safe means of pedestrians crossing the A141 can be provided which
renders the site unsustainable.”

ltem 4.3.13. (Page 61) of the March Area Transport Study (MATS) Option
Assessment Revision (OAR) 3.0 dated February 2020, which can be viewed at
March_Option Assessment Report v3.0 (cambridgeshire.gov.uk), advises that
traffic modelling shows that there is an increase in traffic using this roundabout
causing expected increases in delays and queues. This includes the A141 Isle
of Ely Way / A141 Wisbech Rd / B1099 Wisbech Rd / Whittlesey Road / Retail
Park (Peas Hill) junctions.

The County Council’s website, March Transport Study - Cambridgeshire County
Council, advises that the “.. recommended schemes will now progress through
to preliminary design and an Outline Business Case is expected to be submitted
in autumn 2021.”

The MATS does not include accident data but the attached extract from
CrashMap (CrashMap - UK Road Safety Map), identifies that most of the
incidents in the immediate area of the site have been slight. However, there
have been two incidents involving Commissioners staff and at least one HCV
and a tractor overturning in the past few years.

2. Environmental Issues

Both the Commissioners and Board have nature conservation duties under the
Land Drainage Act 1991, the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, the Protection
of Badgers Act 1992, the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000, the Water
Environment (Water Framework Directive) (England and Wales) Regulations
2003, the Eels (England and Wales) Regulations 2009, the Conservation of
Habitats and Species Regulations 2010, the Flood and Water Management Act
2010, the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006, and as a
competent authority under the Conservation (Natural Habitats etc) Regulations
1994.

The Commissioners’ Biodiversity Action Plan (BAP) can be viewed via the
following link: Microsoft Word - App36_MLC.doc (netdna-ssl.com). Any works
affecting a protected species and/or habitats should be undertaken at an
appropriate time of year and under the supervision of suitably trained person(s)
in accordance with appropriate guidance such as the Commissioners’/Board’s
BAP; the Middle Level IDB Biodiversity Manual and or Association of Drainage
Authorities (ADA)/Natural England

Drainage Channel Biodiversity Manual and ADA’s A Guide to Management
Strategies and Mitigation Measures for achieving Good Ecological Potential in
Fenland Waterbodies. These documents can be viewed or downloaded at the
following respective web pages:

i. www.middlelevel.gov.uk/IDB-Biodiversity-Manual.aspx.

Page 30



ii.www.ada.org.uk/downloads/publications/the drainage channel_biodiversity
manual.pdf.

fii.
https.//www.ada.org.uk/wpcontent/uploads/2017/09/Guide_GEP_Fenland_Wate
r_Bodies _web.pdf

In addition to any requirements submitted by Natural England and/or the
Councils Wildlife Officer, any works affecting the Commissioners’/Board’s or
other open watercourses and/or requiring consent will require the provision of a
Habitats and Species Risk Assessment & Action Plan. This is similar to
Environmental Assessment /Statement but specifically relates to the aquatic and
waterway environment and must detail any mitigation that is required.

Issues associated with The Water Environment (Water Framework Directive)
(England and Wales) Regulations 2017 will also need to be considered to
ensure that the proposal enhances the quality of the riverside setting and
associated water way corridor and does not cause a deterioration in the status
of the water bodies concerned.

Hillier Ecology Limited’s Preliminary Ecological Appraisal dated May 2021.

The contents of this appraisal have been considered and it is noted that item 5.2
advises that the survey was undertaken in February and it is questioned
whether this is an appropriate time of year to do this and may explain the limited
findings. Undertaking a survey in May/June would have been more appropriate.

Reference is made to a pond in close proximity to the application site and
viewing Plate 8 this appears to be the pond at the Commissioners facility which
is not within the survey area shown on Page 26. This pond forms part of the
Commissioners drainage system and was not designed to be or is maintained
as an environmental feature.

During recent years, and as the Commissioners facility has established, it has
been noticed that an increased number of species have been ‘inhabiting” the
site. In this respect the Commissioners Conservation Officer has provided the
following list of protected species seen in the vicinity of the Commissioners
facility.

These are listed by name, scientific name and the legislation that protects them.
Otter Lutra lutra Spraints recorded at A141 road bridge Wildlife and
Countryside Act, (1981) (as amended) Conservation of

Habitats and Species Regulations (2017) (as amended).

Kestrel Falco
Tinnuncuclus

Nest box in MLC yard. 4 young fledged
in 2021 Wildlife and Countryside Act
(1981) (as amended)

Mistle Thrush Turdus viscivorus
Regular.

Breeds in poplars adjacent Fox’s Marina

Page 31



Wildlife and
Countryside Act
(1981) (as amended)

Green

Woodpecker

Picus viridis Regular, juveniles present every
summer. Probably breeds in poplars
adjacent Fox’s Marina

Wildlife and

Countryside Act

(1981) (as amended)

Yellow Wagtail

Motacilla flava

flavissimia

Heard in vicinity in summer

Listed on Section 41:
Species of Principal
Importance in

England (NERC, 2006)

House Sparrow
Passer
Domesticus

Small colony around yard
Listed on Section 41:
Species of Principal
Importance in

England (NERC, 2006

The Commissioners’ Conservation Officer is “... encouraged by the conclusions
regarding protecting foraging and commuting corridors for bats along with a bat-
friendly lighting scheme. The inclusion of nest boxes suitable for swift, house
sparrow and starling will complement our own work here. In keeping with the
comments of the Wildlife Officer | would also urge that landscaping is based on
local provenance and character with a variety of habitat types.”

3. Water Quality

Whilst it is appreciated that pollution is a matter for the Environment Agency
using its Environmental Permitting (England and Wales) Regulations 2010 and,
therefore not a direct concern of the Board, it is considered that a potential “spill”
would have significant detrimental effect on the aquatic environment with
amenity uses, flora and fauna, water abstractors and irrigation users’,
agriculture, etc being placed at risk with economic effects on the area.

4.  Water Resources - Rainwater Harvesting/Recycling Facilities
The Commissioners and associated Boards promote the use of rainwater

collection and grey water recycling, particularly if drought conditions become
more regular and the impacts of climate change increases, and it is suggested

Page 32



that in view of the proposed site use such a system is considered for toilet
facilities, washing vehicles, firefighting or similar.

However, it should be noted that such systems should be in addition to but not
replace or form any part of a surface water disposal system.

Further guidance on the matters raised above together with other related issues
can be found in our 'Standard Advice to Applicants for Planning Permission' and
associated documentation which is available on our website at
http.//www.middlelevel.qov.uk/planning-consent-documents.aspXx.

2"d Response (Dec 2021)

Thank you for your e-mail dated 03 December attaching a letter of the same
date advising that revised documents had been received.

The following response is written on behalf of the Middle Level Commissioners,
primarily as the adjacent land-owner, and March West & White Fen IDB, in
whose district the site is located. Please note that the Commissioners provide
the Board with a planning consultancy service.

Having considered the submission documents there are aspects which are a
significant cause for concern. As a resul, the Commissioners continue to
oppose this development, in its current form, until the appropriate
requirements have been met.

Our comments on the revised submission documents are:

A.  Morton & Hall Consulting Ltd.’s Drawing No. H6537/02 Revision A
Location Plan - It is noted that the application boundary has been amended and
no longer includes land owned by the Commissioners.

B. Morton & Hall Consulting Ltd.’s Drawing No. H6537/07 Revision B
Amended Site Layout Plan - It is noted that the access into the site has been
relocated further to the east and provided that this meets the appropriate
standards this appears acceptable.

However, having viewed the vehicle tracking shown on MTC Engineering
(Cambridge) Ltd.’s Drawing no. 2638-02 Rev. B, attached to the message dated
01st December, the movements do encroach close to the road edge/brink of the
channel and this may require some works to strengthen the channel profile.

The Boards prior written consent will be required under Section 23 of the Land
Drainage Act for the formation of the access culvert.

C. MTC Engineering (Cambridge) Ltd.’s FRA & Drainage Strategy Ref. No.
2638 Rev A dated Nov 2021 — As the applicant has failed to engage with either
the Commissioners or the Board, a detailed review of the FRA and associated
calculations has not been undertaken. However, in view of the potential
impermeable area created, it is suggested that the attenuation ponds are much
too small and in the wrong location. The culvert under Whittlesey Road is
adjacent to the Fenn’s Coaches site.

Concern is also expressed about the lack of suitable access strips being

provided adjacent to the on-site watercourses. The failure to maintain such
watercourses was one of the causes of the flooding incidents experienced

Page 33


http://www.middlelevel.gov.uk/planning-consent-documents.aspx

5.8

5.9

across Cambridgeshire, including March, during December 2020. The failure to
properly manage and maintain these watercourses could lead to flooding of the
site and adjoining land to the detriment of their environment and that of
adjoining occupiers.

In view of the above, the applicant is urged to discuss this with the
Commissioners/Board via the post-application consultation procedure as a
matter of urgency.

FDC Economic Development

The Business and Economy Team support the planning application.
The development will provide additional local jobs and retain those
currently based at the facility.

The company work in an important sector for UK growth.

The proposed development will reduce traffic movements through the village.
FDC/PCC Wildlife Officer

The application scheme is acceptable but only if conditions are imposed.
Pre-commencement Condition(s) —

1. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development shall take place
until a scheme for the soft landscaping of the site has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include
the following details:

o planting plans to all public areas, retained hedge and trees, species,
numbers, size and density of planting; and
o boundary treatments.

Development shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted details and
at the following times:

Any trees, shrubs or hedges forming part of the approved landscaping scheme
(except those contained in enclosed rear gardens to individual dwellings) that
die, are removed or become diseased within five years of the implementation of
the landscaping scheme shall be replaced during the next available planting
season by the developers, or their successors in title with an equivalent size,
number and species to those being replaced.

Any replacement trees, shrubs or hedgerows dying within five years of planting
shall themselves be replaced with an equivalent size, number and species.

Reason: To ensure that the development will result in at least a no net loss in
biodiversity. This will ensure that the development aligns with the National
Planning Policy Framework and Fenland Local Plan.

Compliance Condition(s):

Page 34



2.  Where itis intended to create semi-natural habitats, all species used in the
landscaping schedules shall be locally native species of local provenance
unless otherwise agreed in writing with the local planning authority.

Reason: To ensure that the proposal remains in line with the Fenland Local
Plan.

3. The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until at least 2
bird boxes and 2 bat boxes have been suitably designed into the scheme in
accordance with best practice methodology as set out by the Royal Society for
the Protection for Birds and Bat Conservation Trust, evidence of the inclusion of
these boxes should be provided to the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To secure the long-term protection of the nesting bird potential, no
removal of hedgerows, trees or shrubs shall take place between 1st March and
31st August inclusive, unless a competent ecologist has undertaken a careful,
detailed check of vegetation for active birds’ nests immediately before the
vegetation is cleared and provided written confirmation that no birds will be
harmed and/or that there are appropriate measures in place to protect nesting
bird interest on site. Any such written confirmation should be submitted to the
local planning authority.

4. No removal of hedgerows, trees or shrubs shall take place between 1st
March and 31st August inclusive, unless a competent ecologist has undertaken
a careful, detailed check of vegetation for active birds’ nests immediately before
the vegetation is cleared and provided written confirmation that no birds will be
harmed and/or that there are appropriate measures in place to protect nesting
bird interest on site. Any such written confirmation should be submitted to the
local planning authority.

Reason: Protected species are a material concern for Local Planning Authorities
as per the National Planning Policy Framework and Fenland Local Policy. The
disturbance of protected species may be an infraction as described within the
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981.

Assessment/Comment:

The Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (Hiller Ecology, 2021) clearly
demonstrates that the site has minimal potential for ecological constraints other
than Hedgehogs and nesting birds.

The conditions recommended above aim to protect the potential ecological
constraints that are present and ensure that the proposed development will
result in a no net loss of biodiversity as a minimum. There are some questions
surrounding the exact composition of the green areas outline on the site plan
and the construction of the ponds. These areas have a high potential for
biodiversity and should be constructed in such a way to maximise this. These
details should be included on the landscaping plan.

As it currently stands there is no concern that the project will result in a net loss
to biodiversity so long as the landscaped areas are designed appropriately.

It is highly recommended that the Hedgehog holes as discussed within the PEA
are included within the design and landscaping documents.

Page 35



The advice given above is in accordance with the policies in the adopted
Fenland Local Plan. The Local Plan provides the framework of local planning
policies with which to make planning decisions. These policies are in conformity
with the National Planning Policy Framework.

More specifically, FDP Policy LP19 applies.
The biodiversity policies relevant to the proposal are:
LP19 - The Natural Environment:

The Council, working in partnership with all relevant stakeholders, will conserve,
enhance and promote the biodiversity and geological interest of the natural
environment throughout Fenland.

Through the processes of development delivery (including the use of planning
obligations), grant aid (where available), management agreements and positive
initiatives, the Council will:

o protect and enhance sites which have been designated for their
international, national or local importance to an extent that is
commensurate with their status, in accordance with national policy in the
National Planning Policy Framework.

o refuse permission for development that would cause demonstrable harm to
a protected habitat or species, unless the need for and public benefits of
the development clearly outweigh the harm and mitigation and/or
compensation measures can be secured to offset the harm and achieve,
where possible, a net gain for biodiversity.

. promote the preservation, restoration and re-creation of priority habitats,
and the preservation and increase of priority species identified for Fenland
in the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Biodiversity Action Plans.

o ensure opportunities are taken to incorporate beneficial features for
biodiversity in new developments, including, where possible, the creation
of new habitats that will contribute to a viable ecological network extending
beyond the district into the rest of Cambridgeshire and Peterborough, and
other adjoining areas.

5.10 Local Residents/Interested Parties
Six letters of support have been received, raising the following points:

e the application site can be accessed directly from the A141 by-pass, rather
than through the town, thereby reducing traffic and congestion in the town-
centre, making it cleaner, safer, less polluted and safer, and complimenting
the imminent proposals for its face-lift;

e the proposals will allow an established local business to expand and stay in
March and the Council should be supporting this, particularly in the current
climate.

6 STATUTORY DUTY

6.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a
planning application to be determined in accordance with the Development Plan

Page 36



71

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The Development
Plan for the purposes of this application comprises the adopted Fenland Local
Plan (2014).

POLICY FRAMEWORK

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)
National Design Guide 2019

Context
Identity
Built Form
Movement
Nature
Uses
Resources

Fenland Local Plan 2014

LP1 - A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

LP2 - Facilitating Health and Wellbeing of Fenland Residents

LP3 - Spatial Strategy, the Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside

LP6 - Employment, Tourism, Community Facilities and Retail

LP9 - March

LP12 - Rural Areas Development Policy

LP13 - Supporting and Managing the Impact of a Growing District

LP14 - Responding to Climate Change and Managing the Risk of Flooding in
Fenland

LP15 - Facilitating the Creation of a More Sustainable Transport Network in
Fenland

LP16 - Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments across the District
LP17 - Community Safety

LP19 - The Natural Environment

March Neighbourhood Plan 2017
KEY ISSUES

Principle of Development/Site Location
Sustainability

Flood Risk/Sequential Test

Visual Impact on the Countryside
Drainage

Economic Growth

Other

BACKGROUND

Page 37



9.1

10

The developer sought pre-application advice from the Council in October 2019
(ref 19/0155/PREAPP). Advice was given that Officers would be unlikely to
support a planning application on grounds of the site’s isolated and
unsustainable location and the flood risks pertaining it, contrary to local and
national planning policy.

ASSESSMENT

Principle of Development

Site Location

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

The site is in the countryside outside of any settlement and is physically and
functionally detached from the nearest settlement, which is the town of March.
The policies of restraint that apply to the rural area, therefore, apply (FLP LP3)
and seek to protect the undeveloped nature of the countryside and to resist
isolated development on grounds of sustainability (FLP LP15). More
specifically, Policy LP3 restricts development in the countryside to that required
to support rural-based enterprise, principally agriculture, horticulture and
forestry. The proposal is clearly in conflict with the spatial strategy of the
Development Plan and the guidance set out set-out in the NPPF.

The applicant has, apparently, been seeking other sites within the area, albeit
with no success. It is difficult to be sure what the reasons for this are, because
there appears to be capacity in all the areas allocated for employment growth in
the four market-towns in the District - March, Chatteris, Wisbech and Whittlesey.
Development of a site within areas already allocated for growth must be
preferable to be to the development of a site in the rural area.

It may be that the search area for available sites has been overly restrictive or
selective. The search should be extended to include all the allocated
employment areas in all other market towns in the District, which could yield
more positive results. It should also be noted that the applicant firm’s business
appears to operate across the UK so, presumably, they could be based in many
other places.

Clearly, however, retention of the firm in the District is the preferred choice
because it would maximise the employment benefit to the local area, but this
cannot be at the cost of the unwarranted release of a site in the rural area that
would be a harmful erosion and urbanisation of the countryside, contrary to the
detriment of its essential open character

Refusal of planning permission on grounds that the proposal would be contrary
to settlement policy for the District, as set out in FLP LP3, and harmful to the
open rural character is, therefore, considered to be justified.

Sustainability

10.6

The site lies between established business uses on both sides. These are
longstanding uses and it would be wrong to regard their existence as
justification for a development that would be functionally isolated from March
insofar there are no footpaths or street-lighting on Whittesey Road leading back
into the town. Most attending the site can, therefore, be expected to rely heavily
on the use of a private car or motorbike to travel to and from their place of work

Page 38



10.7  Inturn, the site cannot be regarded as being a sustainable location, which is
contrary to FLP Policy LP15 which, firstly, seeks to reduce the need to travel
and then seeks to reduce the use of the car. This is also contrary to national
policy as set-out in the NPPF. Whilst Policy LP6 supports the development of
employment sites, this is subject to its location according with the spatial
strategy under Policy LP3.

10.8 This is not, therefore, considered to be an appropriate location to increase
employment provision - due to the site’s physical separation from March,
combined with an absence of sustainable transport links to the town, which
renders the site unsustainable for such growth.

10.9  Although some evidence has been provided by the applicants relating to their
search for suitable sites on allocated land in one of the four growth centres in
the District, it is not considered the search has been sufficiently comprehensive,
exhaustive and wide-ranging geographically, to demonstrate convincingly that
there is no suitable allocated land available to justify the development of an
unsustainable site in the rural area.

10.10 The application is supported by a Design and Access Statement which
summarises the range of the site-search undertaken, including the following:
e Martin Avenue - no land for sale on Rightmove;

e Thorby Avenue - no sites for sale on Rightmove and other commercial land
websites;

e Hostmoor Avenue - no land for sale on Rightmove, including land of
sufficient size;

e Melbourne Avenue - no land for sale, nothing on Rightmove, nothing
suitable either;

e Gaul Farm Industrial Estate - planning permission recently granted for
expansion of existing industrial units but this site is not big enough for the
applicant’s needs; also a high pressure gas main runs through the site,
which has an easement on either side, and there is insufficient space for
buildings of the size needed;

e Creek Fen Park - insufficient space;

¢ Longhill Road/Foundary Road - no sites of sufficient size.

10.11  More recently, in February 2022, the applicant’s agent has submitted further
information on the matter in which it is stated:

The company wish for the office and the depot all to be at one site for obvious
reasons. The above all require a large site.

We have already carried out and submitted with the application a sequential test
for March where the company is based and wish to stay. We have reviewed
Charteris and Whittlesey on Rightmove and there is no land available for this
type of enterprise. (Checked again on 12/2/22).

On Rightmove for Wisbech, there is not suitable land for sale. The Cromwell
Road development for sale is a gateway site including retail, fuel station and a
hotel. This site is also in flood zone 2 and 3.

Rightmove checked again on 12.2.22.

There is land for sale at Guyhirn which is also arable and also in Flood zone 3.
Guyhirn is not one of the four market towns in the local plan and this would also

Page 39



mean large vehicles going through the village of Guyhirn which is what is trying
to be avoided in March with this application.

Having reviewed further the Movehut website for commercial property for
Chatteris, the unit available has been viewed and due to the size of the vehicles
for this application it would not be suitable. We have also viewed the parking
arrangements for this unit which are considerably below what would be actually
required for the proposal. This is also evidence by the amount of parking shown
for the planning application.”

10.12 Clearly, some attempt has been made to undertake a search for suitable
alternative sites in one of the four growth centre centres in the District.
However, the search undertaken is considered to be insufficiently
comprehensive and exhaustive. There is also a reliance on the Rightmove
website or other websites to ascertain what is currently being offered for sale.
As has been found at appeal, Rightmove and other such websites cannot be
relied upon to be an accurate representation of what is potentially available. For
example, land may be available that is not being sold on these websites and
there has apparently been no direct approach to landowners to find potentially
suitable land in one of the four growth centres to determine if they wish to sell.

10.13 Refusal of planning permission is, therefore, considered to be justified on
grounds that the development would not be sustainable; moreover, it has not
been shown that a sensitive site in the rural area needs to be released for
development because there is no other suitable land in one of the four growth
centres in the District.

Flood Risk

10.14 The site lies in Flood Zone 3 and is, therefore, at a high risk of flooding. Policy
LP14 (Part B) requires development proposed in high (Zone 3) to medium (Zone
2) areas of flood risk to pass a sequential test. This is in-line with national
policy, which seeks to locate proposals in areas of lowest flood-risk in the first
instance, unless it can be shown that there are no reasonably available sites in
areas of lower flood risk where it could be located.

10.15 In view of the fact the site lies in the countryside outside of any settlement it is
considered the search area for sequential test purposes should be the entire
District and should focus on the four market towns of March, Chatteris, Wisbech,
and Whittlesey, which are all identified for employment growth. It would be
expected that the application would thoroughly assess each of these allocated
employment growth areas in terms of their suitability to provide a site for the
development sought and in terms of the sequential test required to be passed in
terms of flood risk - as part of developing an argument that the development
sought does need to be located on an unsustainable site at high risk of flood
within the rural area. That has not been done.

10.16 The Council does not, therefore, have complete information from the applicant
on this important issue. In the absence of such information from the applicant it
is, therefore, obliged to take a precautionary approach, based on its own
assessment of the likely position.

10.17 The view of officers is that there is capacity within the employment land

allocated in all four towns to accommodate further employment-related
development and it is likely that there would be a suitable site in one of these.

Page 40



That being the case, based on the information available, it is not considered that
it has been shown that there are no suitable sites available in areas of lower
flood risk, in turn, the sequential test is not passed. The proposal is, therefore,
in conflict with Policy LP14 and national policy as set-out in the NPPF.

10.18 The application is supported by a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) that concludes:

“There are no flood risk or drainage related grounds under the National Planning
Policy Framework on which to object to the proposed development on land
south of Whittesey Road, March.”

The applicant’s conclusion is not accepted.

10.19 Whilst neither the LLFA or the Environment Agency raise objections to the
development in terms of the engineered flood-minimisation/drainage proposals
that might be achievable on the site, there is still a requirement under the NPPF
for development on sites in Flood Zones 2 and 3 to pass a sequential test
assessment to establish if there are other suitable sites in areas of lesser flood-
risk where development could take place in preference to the development of a
site in Flood Zone 3, as sought.

10.20 The Sequential Test is not passed in this case, nor has any attempt been made
to carry-out a full and systemic assessment of all the locations across the
District where flood-risk is lower, and where development might take place in
preference to the application site.

10.21 Refusal of planning permission on flood-risk grounds too is considered justified.
Character of the Area

10.22 The site is an open field that is in agricultural cultivation and lies within a loose
scattering of development in the rural area. It is not an infill site within a built-up
location and looks out onto open agricultural land. The two sites on either side
both contain sizeable buildings, but they are set well back from the road into
their respective sites and those in the Middle Level Commissioners site are
spaciously situated within it. The overall character of the location is of
spaciously dispersed development that gives a sense of openness, travelling
east to west along Whittlesey Road. The introduction of substantial building
works onto an agricultural field that contributes significantly to the open
character of what is a rural area would be visually intrusive and would amount to
a significant urbanisation of the countryside of the edge of this western side of
March.

10.22 ltis precisely on the edge of settlements where they adjoin the countryside that
is important to apply strict control over new development to prevent urban
sprawl and erosion of the open character of the countryside. This alone justifies
refusal of planning permission.

Access & Highways

10.23 The site would be served by a new access directly off Whittlesey Road, to which
the Highway Authority raises no objections, subject to any planning permission
being granted with conditions relating the detailed design of the access being
agreed in writing and the provision of parking to serve the development. The
Highway Authority has indicated the location of the access about 5m from the

Page 41



large mature horse-chestnut tree on the site frontage, which is currently
protected by an unconfirmed Tree Preservation Order in recognition of its
amenity value, would be acceptable.

Drainage

10.24

The Local Lead Flood Authority has responded that it has no objections to the
development in this regard, subject to any planning permission being granted
with conditions relating to the provision of (A) the submission to and agreement
by the LPA of the detailed design of the surface water drainage proposals for
the site and (B) details being submitted to and agreed by the LPA relating to
how any additional surface-water run-off from the site during the construction
phase will be handled.

Economic Growth

10.25

10.26

The Council’'s Business and Economy Team support the planning application on
the basis that (A) additional local jobs will be provided, (B) existing jobs will be
supported, (C) the company works in an important sector for UK growth and (D)
traffic movements through the town will be reduced.

This is accepted. However, there are other factors to be considered too, as
detailed above, and the economic arguments that support the proposed
development need to be considered in the context of all the factors that apply.

Other Matters

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

It is at this point worth commenting on the representations that have been
received in favour of the development. Supporters of the proposal make the
point that the proposal will allow a local business to remain and expand in the
area, supporting local jobs for local people, which the Council should also be
supporting.

Retention of the firm in March is, of course, desirable. However, the critical
question is whether the case exists to allow the firm to relocate to an
unsustainable rural site just beyond the edge of the town in Flood Zone 3 where
it would also be harmful to the open character of the countryside. Officers
consider there is no such case.

Finally, there is the issue of the mature horse-chestnut tree on the site frontage
which is protected by an unconfirmed Tree Preservation Order. The tree has
been given category A status by the applicants own tree consultant. Advice
has been received from the Council’'s own tree advisor that the access should
be located beyond the root spread of the tree - that is, about 9m removed from
the tree.

The applicant has, however, commissioned their own specialist tree advice,
which concludes that the access can be installed where proposed without
affecting the tree, provided that precautionary steps are taken. Further advice
has been sought from the Council’s tree advisor, but no response has been
forthcoming. However, the mitigation proposed by the applicant is lacking in
detail and so it cannot be assured that the tree is capable of being retained.

It is, therefore, necessary to take a view based on the information available.
Officers take the view that, subject to precautionary steps being taken as

Page 42



advised by the applicant’s tree consultant - and in the absence of evidence to
the contrary - there can be no reasonable grounds to refuse planning
permission on grounds of potential harm to the tree.

11  CONCLUSIONS

11.1  This is an unacceptable proposal on a site in a sensitive location in the rural
area, located just beyond the western edge of the town of March.

11.2  The proposal, therefore, falls to be considered against the policies of restraint
that apply to the rural area - principally FLP Policy LP3 - to protect the attractive
undeveloped rural character. The proposal would be a significant urbanisation
of the countryside

11.3  The development would also be contrary to settlement policy for the District
more generally, as set-out in FLP LP3, which seeks to direct new development
to the most accessible and sustainable locations - generally within the four
market towns in the District and certain other identified villages.

11.4  This a not a sustainable location. There would be a high reliance on use of the
private car by staff to get to and from the site because of its location on an unlit
road with no footpaths.

11.5  The site is also within Flood Zone 3 - that is, is in an area at the highest risk of
flooding - in respect of which a sequential test is required be passed (as per
FLP Policy LP14 and the NPPF) to establish if there are alternative suitable
sites at lesser flood risk that should be developed in preference to a site within
Flood Zone The purpose of the sequential test is to direct new development to
sites at the least risk of flooding. In this instance, the sequential test is not
considered to be passed. There has been no systemic assessment of allocated
employment sites across the District to establish if suitable alternative sites, with
lower flood risk, are available. In the absence of evidence to the contrary, it
has, therefore, to be concluded that the proposals will put people and property
at an unnecessarily high risk of being affected by flooding.

12 RECOMMENDATION: Refuse

Reasons for refusal

1 The application site lies in the rural area outside of the town of March and
would introduce substantial buildings and other building works onto
agricultural land. This would be an unacceptable urbanisation of the
countryside, to the detriment of its attractive open character and
appearance, without special circumstances to justify this. The proposal
would, therefore, be contrary to Policy LP3 of the Fenland Local Plan
(2014), a key purpose of which is the protection of the undeveloped rural
character of the countryside by limiting new development within it to that
which requires a rural location, such as agriculture, horticulture and
forestry.

2 | The application site is not in a sustainable location in that it lies outside of
the nearest settlement (March) on a road without public footpaths and
street-lighting, which means that staff travelling to and from the site will
have a heavy reliance on the use of a private motor-car, which is at
variance with the principles of sustainability generally, as set-out in the

Page 43



National Planning Policy Framework, and to Policies LP1 and LP3 of the
Fenland Local Plan (2014), which seek to direct development into the four
main growth centres across the District because of their accessibility and
sustainability to accommodate new development.

The application site lies within Flood Zone 3, which means the land is at
the highest risk of flooding. In line with the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF), Policy LP14 (Part B) of the Fenland Local Plan (2014)
requires the development of such sites to be subject to a Sequential Test
which shows that there are no other suitable sites of lesser flood-risk which
could accommodate a proposal and are available for development. This
requires the appellant to undertake a comprehensive assessment of
employment land across the District to determine the availability (or not) of
potentially suitable sites with lesser flood-risk. The purpose of the
Sequential Test is to direct development to sites with the least flood risk.
Only limited information on this matter is provided. The Sequential Test is
not, therefore, passed and it has to be concluded that, in the absence of
evidence to the contrary, the development of the application site would
potentially put people and property to unwarranted risk from flooding,
contrary to the NPPF and Policy LP14 (Part B) of the Fenland Local Plan.

The proposed access passes within the root protection area of a category
A horse chestnut tree that is subject to a provisional tree preservation
order. The proposed mitigation is of insufficient detail to demonstrate that
the tree will unharmed by the development. The proposal is therefore
contrary to policy LP16 of the Fenland Local Pan (2014).

Page 44



7

Fenland

Created on: 10/02/2022

© Crown Copyright and database
rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 10023778

F/YR21/0887/F
Scale = 1:2,500

CAMBRIDGESHIRE

Fenland District Council

Page 45



9t abed

V.

&
{

WHITTLESEY ROAD

HRCIAL USAGE

WHITTLESEY ROAD

7727777 =

FITLL
'IIII”””” Zs Droin

.

MIDDLE LEVEL
COMMISSIONERS
COMMERCIAL OFFICE
X% 4442

( — Nﬁ/

N
//////////

a

//»,,\/

7

LOCATION PLAN
(1:1250)

LICENCE NUMBER 100022432

ISLE OF ELY WAY A141

F/YR20,/0265 /0
APPROVED FOR
RESIDENTIAL DWELLING

ISLE OF ELY WAY A141

Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole
without their written permission.

Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without
consulting the Engineers.

Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and
specification. All work to be in accordance with

good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the
recommendations define the quality of the finished work.
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers
current recommendations.

The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and
forward to the Engineer

LEGEND

APPLICATION SITE

LAND OWNED BY APPLICANT

A ]| RED LINE AMENDED DEC 2021

REVISIONS DATE

CONSULTING STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS éi ‘ :

1 Gordon Avenue, Tel: 01354 655454

March, Fax: 01354 660467

Combridgeshire. E—mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk

PE15 8AJ Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk
(e}

V. ). Fenland District Council |z

LABC” LABC" 2

Building |3
Design Awards
Building Excellence in Fenland ‘

CCCCCC

Force One Ltd

PPPPPPP

Land North East of
Middle Level Commissioners

Whittlesey Road
March

PE15 OAH

TTTTT

Location Plan

DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD
MH

CCCCCCC

RRRRRRRRRRRRR

March 2021

SSSSS

AS SHOWN H6537/02 A



AutoCAD SHX Text
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
(Drain)

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
Marina

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
River Nene

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
ISLE OF ELY WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
0.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
River Nene

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
MARINA DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
Flood Gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
Slipway

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
(Old Course)

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
LOCATION PLAN (1:1250) LICENCE NUMBER 100022432

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
MIDDLE LEVEL COMMISSIONERS COMMERCIAL OFFICE  

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
THE SITE   

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
COMMERCIAL USAGE   

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
WHITTLESEY ROAD   

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
COMMERCIAL USAGE, BUS DEPOT & OFFICES   

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
March 2021

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
H6537/02

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
Land North East of

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
Middle Level Commissioners 

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
Whittlesey Road 

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
March

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
PE15 OAH

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
Force One Ltd

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
Location Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
APPLICATION SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
LAND OWNED BY APPLICANT 

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
WHITTLESEY ROAD   

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
ISLE OF ELY WAY A141

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
ISLE OF ELY WAY A141

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
F/YR20/0265/O APPROVED FOR RESIDENTIAL DWELLING

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
RED LINE AMENDED

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
DEC 2021

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
A


000000

-

|—o.064
| |
Grass
Grass
ollsade fence -0503
oo 015 o= 0366 2.4m p
Notive hedgerow osn
&{: ;

+ *V »
PR

-

- _

_

>

///

-

I'I'I/(Z;Zj{

I

.

B8 B

\§;< 8 | +&

N

N

N

N

N

N
j\
AN\
~L1L* PRV x....:;m}

i

\

/"f{;}‘*v

_

.

7

\

\\

D

\

\\

.

E“i ‘V/'—‘\ ‘ym: \"“Q‘
B ===
; e . ‘\1 ‘ \‘ “:
= B talmppm
=g} 7 A ’/1 it N |
i dg | W |
il z
é’; - / :

N

\

e,

222222

MIDDLE LEVEL ACCESS

PROPOS

D SITE PLAN

1:200

[
2

12
-2

W =

gy &

/ VAN/LORRY /
VAN/LORRY
ERNAL ‘l\l“ = éé)

Q)

.

\

-

\

.

-

238 ‘\\\\\\\\\\

) _
. ' .
|

\\
——

.

L

\\\\\

\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\

L

B e—Y——1

2
% ///////////////772
G\—\ pAL
/

B

7
7

- /

.

.

%%

b

o

.

-

7/

TTTTTTTTTT
EEEEEEEEEE
BBBBBBBB

BBBBBBB
AAAAAAA

EEEEEEEEEEEEEEE
DDDDDDDD

EEEEEEEE

2222222
2222222

IIIIIIIIII

CCCCC

eeeeeeeeeee

PPPPPPP

ooooooooooooooo
Middle
Whittls

rch

Level Commissioners
oooooooo

TTTTT

Propojsed Site Plan

DDDDDDDDDDD

CCCCCCC

RRRRRRRRRRRR

777777777

2222222



AutoCAD SHX Text_101
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
March 2021

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
H6537/07

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
Land North East of

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
Middle Level Commissioners 

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
Whittlesey Road 

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
March

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
PE15 OAH

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
Force One Ltd

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
Proposed Site Plan 

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
Grass Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
Grass Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
Grass Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
Grass Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
Grass Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
Grass Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
Grass Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
Grass Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
Grass access

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
MLC Concrete Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
Headwall

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
Headwall

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
Headwall

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
Headwall

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
750mm pipe - IL:-2.024

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
Drain IL:-1.400

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
300mm pipe - IL:-1.081

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
Native hedgerow

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
Native hedgerow

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
Native hedgerow

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
Sign

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
Sign

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
Sign

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
Asphalt access

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
Knee rail fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
Knee rail fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
Post & 3 rail fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
Post & 3 rail fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
Post & 3 rail fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
Post & 5 wire fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
Post & 5 wire fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
Post & 5 wire fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
Native hedgerow

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
Native hedgerow

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
Native hedgerow

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
Steel gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
Flush '6x5' kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
Flush '6x5' kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
Steel gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
Sign

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
Sign

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
2.4m palisade fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
2.4m palisade fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
2.4m palisade fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
-0.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
-0.498

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
-0.503

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
-0.333

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
-0.339

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
-0.364

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
-0.144

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
-0.281

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
-0.376

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
-0.563

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
0.518

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
0.489

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
0.419

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
0.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
0.321

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
0.216

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
0.153

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
0.117

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
0.058

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
0.073

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
0.113

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
0.124

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
0.218

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
0.236

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
0.289

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
0.374

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
0.485

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
0.506

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
-0.334

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
-0.398

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
0.228

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
-0.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
-0.882

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
-0.087

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
-0.043

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
-0.447

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
-0.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
0.555

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
0.193

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
-0.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
-0.398

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
-0.727

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
-0.717

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
-2.024

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
-0.488

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
-0.388

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
0.011

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
-1.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
0.371

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
0.732

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
1.026

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
1.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
1.358

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
1.338

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
1.312

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
1.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
1.556

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
1.489

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
1.588

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
-1.081

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
0.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
0.134

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
-0.153

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
-0.171

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
-0.153

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
-0.185

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
-0.125

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
-0.015

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
0.052

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
-0.064

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
-0.183

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
-0.356

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
-0.458

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
-0.491

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
-0.718

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
-0.545

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
-0.505

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
-0.366

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
-0.301

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
-0.265

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
-0.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
0.016

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
0.073

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
-0.003

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
-0.058

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
-0.159

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
-0.184

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
-0.067

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
0.022

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
0.183

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
0.406

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
0.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
0.442

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
0.346

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
-0.086

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
-0.483

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
-0.487

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
-0.516

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
-0.286

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
-0.205

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
-0.269

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
-0.431

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
-0.213

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
0.201

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
0.326

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
0.204

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
0.034

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
-0.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
-0.528

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
-0.437

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
-0.406

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
-0.402

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
-0.492

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
-0.507

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
-0.405

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
-0.578

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
-0.401

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
-0.254

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
-0.183

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
-0.145

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
0.015

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
0.098

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
-0.152

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
-0.036

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
-0.007

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
0.035

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
0.073

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
0.113

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
0.149

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
0.195

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
0.252

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
0.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
0.422

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
0.509

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
0.594

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
0.567

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
0.465

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
0.347

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
0.251

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
0.249

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
0.222

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
0.198

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
0.165

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
0.106

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
0.075

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
0.053

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
0.006

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
-0.047

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
-0.114

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
-0.082

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
-0.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
0.059

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
0.142

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
0.228

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
0.329

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
0.416

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
0.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
0.603

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
0.577

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
0.555

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
0.592

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
0.573

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
0.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
0.868

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
1.024

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
1.088

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
1.188

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
1.189

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
0.979

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
0.773

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
0.638

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
0.644

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
0.593

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
0.606

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
0.765

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
0.856

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
0.862

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
0.813

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
0.726

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
0.626

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
0.656

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
0.674

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
0.701

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
0.643

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
0.691

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
0.735

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
0.732

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
0.871

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
0.932

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
0.976

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
0.909

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
0.758

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
0.635

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
0.619

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
0.651

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
0.706

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
0.819

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
1.085

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
1.274

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
1.255

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
1.126

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
1.103

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
1.031

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
0.763

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
0.693

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
0.702

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
0.716

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
0.625

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
0.653

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
0.625

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
0.654

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
0.676

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
0.707

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
0.734

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
0.819

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
0.943

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
1.148

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
1.315

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
1.377

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
1.395

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
1.208

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
0.978

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
0.819

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
0.791

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
0.704

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
0.686

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
0.776

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
0.915

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
1.006

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
1.031

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
0.914

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
0.834

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
0.839

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
0.745

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
0.737

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
0.848

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
0.608

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
0.625

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
0.579

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
0.587

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
0.693

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
0.647

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
0.653

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
Slab

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
PROPOSED SITE PLAN 1:250

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
0    5    10   15   20   30   40   50   60   70   80

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
W H I T T L E S E Y   R O A D 

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
2.4m palisade fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
2.4m palisade fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
2.4m palisade fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
MIDDLE LEVEL ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
TRAINING  CENTRE

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
VEHICLE   SHED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
VAN/LORRY

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
VAN/LORRY

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
VAN/LORRY

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
VAN/LORRY

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
VAN/LORRY

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
VAN/LORRY

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
EXTERNAL WASH AREA 

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
2.4m HIGH PALISADE FENCING

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
2.4m HIGH PALISADE FENCING

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
2.4m HIGH PALISADE FENCING

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
2.4m HIGH PALISADE FENCING

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
2.4m HIGH PALISADE FENCING

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
GATE FOR ACCESS TO THE REAR OF THE SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
EXTEND NATIVE HEDGE ALONG BOUNDARY 

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
PERMEABLE BLOCK PAVING FOR PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
NEW NATIVE HEDGE ALONG BOUNDARY 

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
NEW LANDSCAPING TO BOUNDARY 

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
PARKING AND TURNING AREAS

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
O N E   W A Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
O N E   W A Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
O N E   W A Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
O N E   W A Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
ACCESS AMENDED

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
MAY 2021

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
NO ENTRY SIGNS

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
EXISTING CULVERT TO BE EXTENDED BENEATH ACCESS AS NECESSARY

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
UPDATED DRAWING

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
NOV 2021

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
ISLAND TO DIVIDE ENTERING AND EXITING VEHICLES UPON ENTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
UPDATED DRAWING

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
MAR 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
TREE REINSTATED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
MAR 2022


8t abed

297400

)L

Grass Bark =
. ,/
o= P« Y PV 1 1 ae er —F.
. - o ] r \VALS) o Py e . o
- - = : I ' T4 5oy 1AM VEST ¥ + +
. - o | ; _ - 4= + - =
F — 4= + + + + —— T - = e ‘i’fN" de K?b e
- - - + - - = = V’| 'S ‘ay to ears
- - + + - _ - - = — 4.5 by 120m Vis SP s
e s N .
. - + + — . z
3
O 7 Entrance to site to be taken from 2 & — o
. m>< = appropriate pointon v road == = f I
=] —initiatty, with éxtension of road to provide =
separate entrance to land to rear in - ol 4= o
uturelFaHowed-forin d&sig e T
% h[m’Mn ol Ve 0650
- . 4= + + +
207350 ‘ 1 1in 10 taper
- £ F
w + + 1in 10 taper
- +
- +
- +
- + +
- + * - + +
+ N - +
Initial exit from site to follow one - + +
way road from appropriate point, 4 +
with extension of road to provide +
separate exit to land to rear ofthe
site in futurefallowed for
+
. +
m 0693 |0.619 _F" +
0651 d
Grass Bank |o.7oe. I ilf - -
0.819 -
|1-°°5/’—/|ﬁ ! : 4 + +
. 1274 1\ - _Izm _F _r_- -F- -F" e
T 10819 _l_ | .. . —F
1126 I o I | \ ! + - +
( \Im\
| oL engh (1) frtited \etile (1} N - ) - +
|1.395 | === )\ 4= +
//g%/’ | oo — 053% i = - =
0. : x
0.9’
1in 10 taper 1189
1188 — 1aE Gross Bafk ?’
£ Grass @ des. .. Y
3 4 ]
11 = s &
e - -t il =1 o= - o= = - =
| o -
300mm PP re@mp . | 0153 T I B 4 4=
e L T = — | , : ¥ + + +
ozaefrozs (ol = o fee = =
= —H=F - L e
0371 ; RG Grass - T
- -0.067 3 N
. Do LRI = 0022 : Entrance to site to be taken from 2 - _
Existing culvert Tree to be removed if =~ = — el i 5 — ——appropyiate pointon y road = I I
extended necessary due o - .- — TN = 018 Native hedgerow = . il | = ~with éxtension of road to provide
beneath access . y N 0.406 i 5'—__( g : separate entrance to land to rear in - o g ening on bend allows
as necessary | impact upon roots _«¢ Y\ X Y =" / 2 S A. : ) uretaliewed-for i desig e TN ulated vehicle to
y- To bey, T =
. entrysigns— /. | =5 1in 10t |
confirmed by tree o In 10 taper
ert 2 =
[y
7 =
© g 0 g
+ + +
©
< +
$ ! e
¢ » // 1in 10 taper
: Sol
N 1
e - +
- + +
. . - - +
Island to divide entering 00 _Fesg = +
and exiting vehicles upon 0273 —|_ + +
0.327 e —
0387 entry + + - + + ¥
: Initial exit from site to follow one - + +
way road from appropriate point, 4 +
with extension of road to provide 4+
. separate exit to land to rear ofthe
Bk ot site in futurefallowed for
Grass Bank |o.7oe. 4
0819 ——— |
s - -
1274 | ol
/Lmss///’i‘// or ~ - +
0.819 +
//% | —~_0.978 +
1377 |

1in 10 taper

_F‘
0625 | PEdds
0.638
~{0.773

_ +
) = +
= +
— 0. ? 0587 + N
\’x +
K\ N
A :

) q’ SRR AN
% '.":'

C |04-02-22|UPDATED VIS SPLAY AND NOTE MiB
0153 e ] 03-11-21|RELOCATED ACCESS MIB
|0.134 | | A |25.05.21|AMMENDED TO NEW LAYOUT SEC
1.026 REV | DATE DESCRIPTION/REASON FOR ISSUE APPR|
00 0371 RG Grass
-0.067
Existing culvert Tree to be removed if SIVANES = M I C
. R Y Native hedgerow
o t?]xtended necessary due to N, . Y [
Grass eneath access impact upon roots  joer [0 N S
asnecessary _|** _ .o ior cariopy’ To be S oo ‘ 2
o2 ' S : No entry signs :
e confirmed by tree SA ‘ 1in 10 taper
exXpert A,
erow
° ©

ENGINEERING

MTC Engineering (Cambridge) Ltd.
Ground Floor, 24 High Street
Whittlesford, Cambridgeshire, CB22 4LT
Tel (01223) 837270, fax (01223) 835648
E-mail office@mtcengineering.co.uk

&

TITLE FORCE ONE LIMITED
PROPOSED DEPOT OFF
WHITTLESEY ROAD, MARCH
PROPOSED SITE ACCESS LAYOUT
N DIMENSIONS, AND TRACKING
Island to divide entering
and exiting vehicles upon

ORIG DATE
M.B 18-05-21
0273 - —Fzsg
_iﬁ”entry + +

CHKD SCA

Mux\ﬁagu@g&—hn@ﬁb Wik e .

0.387
0.261
[0.153

LE
1:500, 1:200

DRAWING NO

2638-02

REV
[OThis drawing and the works depicted are the copyright of MTC

Engineering (Cambridge) Ltd and may not be reproduced or
amended except by written permission. No liability will be accepted
for amendments made by other persons.

APPR




61 abed

FORCEDNE

v I st

STREET SCENE 1:250 NORTH FROM WHITTLESEY ROAD

REVISIONS DATE

MoRrToN & HALL
CoNsuLTING LIMITED

1 Gordon Avenue, Tel: 01354 655454

March, Fax: 01354 660467
Cqmbridgeshire_ E—mail: info®@mortonandhall.co.uk

PE15 8AJ Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

, ~ Fenland District Council
LABS™ LABS™ .
Building

Design Awards
Building Excellence in Fenland ‘

1102 8 6002
Y3INNIM AHOO3LVYO

CLIENT

Force One Ltd

PROJECT

Land North East of
Middle Level Commissioners

Whittlesey Road
March

PETS OAH

TITLE

Street Scenes

o DATE OF ISSUE
cHECKED

PTE April 2021 PRAVING NOHPER

SMEAS SHOWN H6537/08



AutoCAD SHX Text_491
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
April 2021

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
H6537/08

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
Land North East of

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
Middle Level Commissioners 

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
Whittlesey Road 

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
March

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
PE15 OAH

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
Force One Ltd

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
Street Scenes 

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
STREET SCENE 1:250 NORTH FROM WHITTLESEY ROAD 


0G abed

ELEVATION 3 (EAST)

5000 5000 5000

O |0
O 0
& T
S

3

5400 TRANING OFFICE 1 TRAINING ORFICE 2

dlgloo

15000

sdoo Il STElS OFFIICE 3 /-
It (&

ELEVATION 1 (NORTH) ELEVATION 2 (SOUTH)

PROPOSED SECTION THROUGH WORK SHOP A—A 1:100

Dgé

5000 | @ @ i

4
m
(7}
=
15[
[ol
m
|
| e ———— |

T
v

|
|
=

ELEVATION 4 (WEST) =

PROPOSED TRAINING FACILITY PLAN 1:100

O/ R/ 2/
0 2 4 6 8

RAL 7021 CLADDING COLOUR

RAL 7037 CLADDING COLOUR

RAL 7021 CLADDING COLOUR

il
|

BLUE ENGINEERING BRICKS

REVISIONS DATE
PROPOSED WEST ELEVATION 4 1:100 PROPOSED SOUTH ELEVATION 2 1:100 MorToN & HaLL

ConsuLTING LIMITED '\

| |
1 Gordon Avenue, Tel: 01354 655454
March, Fax: 01354 660467
Cambridgeshire. E—mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk
PE15 8AJ Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

~ Fenland District Council | 47
g0

LABS™ LABS™ . =3
Building %2
X

Design Awards
Building Excellence in Fenland ‘

Force One Ltd

PPPPPPP

Land North East of
Middle Level Commissioners

Whittlesey Road
March

PETS OAH

TTTTT

Training Centre Arrangement

PROPOSED EAST ELEVATION 5 1:100 PROPOSED NORTH ELEVATION 1 1:100

DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD

CCCCCCC

RRRRRRRRRRRR

April 2021

SSSSS AS SHOWN H6537/O6



AutoCAD SHX Text_520
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
April 2021

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
H6537/06

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
Land North East of

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
Middle Level Commissioners 

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
Whittlesey Road 

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
March

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
PE15 OAH

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
Force One Ltd

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
Training Centre Arrangement 

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
PROPOSED TRAINING FACILITY PLAN 1:100

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
0         2         4         6         8

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
TRAINING OFFICE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
TRAINING OFFICE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
TESTING OFFICE 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
TESTING OFFICE 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
PROPOSED SECTION THROUGH WORK SHOP A-A 1:100

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
ELEVATION 2 (SOUTH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
ELEVATION 1 (NORTH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
ELEVATION 3 (EAST)

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
ELEVATION 4 (WEST)

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
PROPOSED WEST ELEVATION 4 1:100

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
PROPOSED SOUTH ELEVATION 2 1:100

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
PROPOSED NORTH ELEVATION 1 1:100

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
PROPOSED EAST ELEVATION 3 1:100

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
BLUE ENGINEERING BRICKS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
RAL 7021 CLADDING COLOUR

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
RAL 7021 CLADDING COLOUR

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
RAL 7037 CLADDING COLOUR


>/

Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall
ELEVATION 3 (NORTH) A Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and

designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole
| without their written permission.
6000 |

Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without
| consulting the Engineers.

Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

6000 6000 6000 | 6000 6000

= starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt
— — -H ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

HH
-

Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or

580 reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and
specification. All work to be in accordance with

good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the

CUP'D \

|
|
—
|
|
|
|
—H
|
|
|
|
|
|
e —1
|
|
—mue T ——HHH

G

recommendations define the quality of the finished work.
6000 Materials products and workmanship to comply with all

British Standards and EOTA standards with, where
OFFICE 1 appropriate, BS or EC marks.
5800
Q Q All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

current recommendations.

The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building
\ Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and
forward to the Engineer

O

O _
MeeTING RooM | () e o \

G

O

OO0 0|00

CUP’D \

0

17F0 -
STOREY/FILE ROOM \

/ fgln@@ 15E \
013 ~MALE We
22 22
OFFICE 4
/_ T |
MALE |W
1s6y(]| | s 5t s
Il 22013 22013 .
TR, \
I :'\ i )

5800 \ \ os0s
=
—— o
WORKSHOP =
o

_ E 30000 517

3500 12000 o - - ELEVATION 1 (WEST) - _ - ELEVATION 2 (EAST)

. ] 2
- =
[T}
— X
I =z
— o]
w

— | —— @;\ /
@ ?
@ @ orce 3

STORE

B e _ 7 e
N . 1680  SERVER ROOM ]

@7 R[] A 11 ]

OFFICE 2

00

ACCOUNTS/OFFICE 7280

6004

4 \
S e i S S T — 1 = - — 7® . === === i l l i

an
&
Aan
W

.l 4000 |. .l 4000 |. .l 4000 |. .l 4000 |.
ELEVATION 4 (SOUTH)
PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN 1:100 AA PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN 1:100 AA
0 2 4 6 8 0 2 4 6 8

PROVIDING SAFE EFFECTIVE SOLUTIONS

FORCE’ )NE FORCE

PROVIDING SAFE EFFECTIVE SOLUTIONS

BLUE ENGINEERING BRICKS

PROPOSED ELEVATION 3 (NORTH) 1:100 PROPOSED ELEVATION 2 (EAST) 1:100

RAL 7021 CLADDING COLOUR

RAL 7037 CLADDING COLOUR

FORCE/ NE

WORKSHOP PROVIDING SAFE EFFECTIVE SOLUTIONS

WORKSHOP

A | CLIENTS COMMENTS APR 21

REVISIONS DATE

MoRrToN & HALL
CoONSULTING LIMITED

BLUE ENGINEERING BRICKS

1 Gordon Avenue, Tel: 01354 655454
March, Fax: 01354 660467
CombridgeShire' El_eg:;:e i:?fm::ttg:gg::&ltli':;;l;ineers co.uk
PROPOSED ELEVATION 4 (SOUTH) 1:100 PE15 8AJ . <o.
T J», Fenland District Council |
0_2:4_6 LABC™ LABS™ S

Y3INNIM AHO0D3LYO

Building

Design Awards
Building Excellence in Fenland ‘

CLIENT

Force One Ltd

FORCE

PROVIDING SAFE EFFECTIVE SOLUTIONS

PROJECT

Land North East of
Middle Level Commissioners

Whittlesey Road
March

PETS OAH

TITLE

Office Building Arrangement

DRAWN DATE OF ISSUE
MH

CHECKED

TG abed

DATE DRAWING NUMBER

March 2021

% AS SHOWN H6537/O4A

PROPOSED ELEVATION 1 (WEST) 1:100



AutoCAD SHX Text_573
FIRE EXIT

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
MEETING ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
ACCOUNTS/OFFICE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
STORE

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
FE-MALE WC

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
MALE WC

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
FE-MALE WC

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
MALE WC

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
CUP'D

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
CUP'D

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
CUP'D

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
OFFICE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
OFFICE 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
OFFICE 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
OFFICE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
STORE/FILE ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
SERVER ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
CUP'D

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
SUNKEN INSPECTION PIT

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
WORKSHOP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
WORKSHOP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
PROPOSED SECTION THROUGH WORK SHOP A-A 1:100

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
0                   2                   4                   6

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
D1

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
D1

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
D2

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
D2

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
D3

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
D3

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
D4

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
D4

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
March 2021

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
H6537/04

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
Land North East of

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
Middle Level Commissioners 

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
Whittlesey Road 

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
March

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
PE15 OAH

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
Force One Ltd

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
Office Building Arrangement 

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN 1:100 

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
0         2         4         6         8

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN 1:100 

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
0         2         4         6         8

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
WORKSHOP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
A   CLIENTS COMMENTS                     APR 21

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
ELEVATION 2 (EAST)

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
ELEVATION 1 (WEST)

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
ELEVATION 3 (NORTH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
ELEVATION 4 (SOUTH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
PROPOSED ELEVATION 1 (WEST) 1:100 

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
PROPOSED ELEVATION 2 (EAST) 1:100 

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
PROPOSED ELEVATION 4 (SOUTH) 1:100 

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
PROPOSED ELEVATION 3 (NORTH) 1:100 

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
BLUE ENGINEERING BRICKS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
BLUE ENGINEERING BRICKS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
RAL 7021 CLADDING COLOUR

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
RAL 7021 CLADDING COLOUR

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
RAL 7037 CLADDING COLOUR


ELEVATION 3 (SOUTH WEST)

73500 7500 7500 7500

+H
+H
+H

80

SSSSSSSSSSSSSS

\
S ——
T T

q )

[
N\ 1 O/
©XO) e onf (€O
oo P 1900
/

AN

\ L
S ——
T T

= \

A\ S )/ A e

©XO) e o n (€O

oo P 1900
/

PROPOSED ELEVATION 4 (NORTH EAST) 1:100

30000

ELEVATION 2 (NORTH WE!
ELEVATION [l (SOUTH EAST) ( ST

PROPOSED ELEVATION 1 (SOUTH EAST) 1:100

| | |
1Tl [N _ 1Tl

R

E=
T
—

o=

ELEVATION 4 (NORTH EAST)

PROPOSED OPEN SHED STORE 1:100

REVISIONS DATE

0 2 : 0 s MoRrToN & HALL
CoNsuLTING LIMITED

1 Gordon Avenue, Tel: 01354 655454

March, Fax: 01354 660467
Cqmbridgeshire_ E—mail: info®@mortonandhall.co.uk

PE15 8AJ Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

~ Fenland District Council | ;7
g0

LABS™ LABS™ . =3
Building %2
X

Design Awards
Building Excellence in Fenland ‘

Force One Ltd

RAL 7037 CLADDING
COLOUR

PPPPPPP

Land North East of
Middle Level Commissioners

Whittlesey Road
March

PETS OAH

TTTTT

Vehicle Shed Arrangement

26 abed

DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD

CCCCCCC

PROPOSED ELEVATION 2 (NORTH WEST) 1:100
PROPOSED ELEVATION 3 (SOUTH WEST) 1:100 T

SSSSS AS SHOWN H6537/03



AutoCAD SHX Text_682
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
March 2021

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
H6537/03

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
Land North East of

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
Middle Level Commissioners 

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
Whittlesey Road 

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
March

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
PE15 OAH

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
Force One Ltd

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
Vehicle Shed Arrangement 

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
PROPOSED OPEN SHED STORE 1:100

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
0         2         4         6         8

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
S    T    R    A    L    I    S    

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
S    T    R    A    L    I    S    

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
S    T    R    A    L    I    S    

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
S    T    R    A    L    I    S    

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
ELEVATION 1 (SOUTH EAST)

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
ELEVATION 2 (NORTH WEST)

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
ELEVATION 3 (SOUTH WEST)

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
ELEVATION 4 (NORTH EAST)

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
PROPOSED ELEVATION 4 (NORTH EAST) 1:100 

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
PROPOSED ELEVATION 3 (SOUTH WEST) 1:100 

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
PROPOSED ELEVATION 1 (SOUTH EAST) 1:100 

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
PROPOSED ELEVATION 2 (NORTH WEST) 1:100 

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
RAL 7037 CLADDING COLOUR


Agenda Iltem 6

F/YR21/1504/FDC
Applicant: Mr Shaun Beales Agent: Mr Jamie Burton
Fenland District Council Swann Edwards Architecture Limited

South Fens Enterprise Park, Fenton Way, Chatteris, Cambridgeshire

Erect 2 x blocks of industrial units (6 x units total) (Class E (g) - workshops and
offices) with associated parking, and enlargement of existing attenuation basin.

Officer recommendation: Resolve to Grant Permission Subject to Conditions.

Reason for Committee: Fenland District Council is the applicant.

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 The application is for the erection of 2 x blocks of industrial units (6 x units
total) (Class E (g) - workshops and offices) with associated parking, and
enlargement of existing attenuation basin.  The site is an existing business
development forming part of an industrial estate located at the northern edge
of Chatteris.

1.2  Other than Cambridgeshire County Council Minerals and Waste Planning
Authority (CCCMWPA), all other consultees have supported the proposed
development, albeit with conditions, advice or informatives. The concerns of
the CCCMWPA are noted but the LPA also recognises that proposed
development would not go beyond the boundaries of the existing site and so
not prejudice the existing or future use of the Chatteris-Nightlayer Fen Water
Recycling Area (WRA) and no complaints have ever been registered in relation
to impacts on amenities or health. The development would comply with criteria
(c) and (d) of MWLP Policy 16: Consultation Areas (CAS).

1.3  The proposal, owing to scale, design, and finishes, would be in keeping with
the appearance of the buildings on the site and the existing industrial character
of the wider industrial estate.

1.4  The recommendation is therefore to grant planning permission subject to
conditions.

2  SITE DESCRIPTION

2.1 The proposal site is a Fenland District Council property located on the junction of
Fenton Way and A412. The site consists of business units forming an open,
grassed part of the wider South Fens Enterprise Park located to the north of
Chatteris.

2.2 The application site is within Flood Zone 3 as defined by the Environment Agency

Maps. In addition, owing to its proximity to a sewage treatment plant, the site is
within the Wastewater Treatment Works Safeguarding Area.

Page 53



3.2

5.2

PROPOSAL

The application proposes the erection of two blocks of industrial units consisting of
workshops and offices, one running north-south alongside the eastern boundary of
the site, the other running east-west adjacent to the southern boundary. Access
would be via a continuation of the existing service road to the site and a new yard
and car parking area would be created in front of the units. In addition the existing
attenuation basin serving the site would be enlarged to accommodate the flows
from the new development.

Full plans and associated documents for this application can be found at:
F/YR21/1504/FDC | Erect 2 x blocks of industrial units (6 x units total) (Class E (q)
- workshops and offices) with associated parking, and enlargement of existing
attenuation basin | South Fens Enterprise Park Fenton Way Chatteris
Cambridgeshire (fenland.gov.uk)

SITE PLANNING HISTORY
F/YR11/0619/FDC Erection of 4no industrial units (Class B1), Granted

F/YR11/3041/COND, Details reserved by Condition 5 of Planning Permission
F/YR11/0036/FDC (Erection of 4 industrial units (Class B1)), Approved

F/YR11/3020/COND, Details reserved by conditions 4 and 7 of planning
permission F/YR11/0036/FDC (Erection of 4 industrial units (Class B1), Approved

F/YR11/0182/NONMAT, Non-material amendment: Change car parking area from
block paved finish to permeable construction topped with road planings relating to
planning permission F/YR11/0036/FDC (Erection of 4 industrial units (Class B1),
Approved

F/YR11/0183/FDC, Removal of Conditions 8 and 9 relating to contamination and
drainage reference planning permission F/YR11/0036/FDC (Erection of 4 industrial
units (Class B1), Granted

F/YR11/0036/FDC, Erection of 4 industrial units (Class B1), Granted

CONSULTATIONS
Chatteris Town Council:
Support, welcome additional industrial units.

Cambridgeshire County Council Highways:

Traffic

The transport statement in the analysis of traffic has stated a B2 use. The application
form refers to B1 (use class no longer in use) and the description of the application is
E(g). The TRICS outputs may understate the traffic as there are more intensive
generators of traffic from other sub-categories within E(g). However, given the size of
the development the impact on the highway is not going to be significant or
detrimental to it.

Layout
The layout is generally acceptable but make the following comments:

* The tracking in the northeast corner is very close to the cycle shelter and
the parking space on the opposite side. Is it likely that the HGV will turn in
that area or are they more likely to loop through the site into the wider area
that fronts unit 5 and 6?

Page 54


https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=R45M7FHE06P00
https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=R45M7FHE06P00
https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=R45M7FHE06P00
https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=R45M7FHE06P00

5.3

 The cycle shelter appears small with the stands within in them about 0.6-
0.7m apart. This would be cramped, and Sheffield style stands are
normally spaced 1m apatrt.

» Has waste bin locations been considered? | would recommend these are
shown to avoid potential conflicts or storage upon parking spaces.

Parking
The number of parking spaces provided is slightly higher than the FDC parking

requirement as set out in the parking standards but is reasonable.

Parking spaces are 2.4m x 4.8m. This is acceptable although if space allows on
the site, | recommend slightly wider dimensions of 2.5m x 5m.

Conclusion

| would recommend that the comments above are addressed as this would
provide an improved form of development but as submitted, | have no objections
to the application and the standard parking and turning condition would be
appropriate to attach to planning permission.

Environment Agency:
We have no objection to the proposed development but wish to make the
following comments.

Review of the Flood Risk Assessment

We have reviewed the Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) with regard to tidal and
designated main river flood risk sources only. We consider that the main source
of flood risk at this site is associated with watercourses under the jurisdiction of
the Internal Drainage Board (IDB). As such, we have no objection to the
proposed development on flood risk grounds. However, the IDB should be
consulted with regards to flood risk associated with watercourses under their
Jurisdiction and surface water drainage proposals.

In all circumstances where flood warning and evacuation are significant
measures in contributing to managing flood risk, we expect local planning
authorities to formally consider the emergency planning and rescue implications
of new development in making their decisions.

Sequential test - advice to LPA

What is the sequential test and does it apply to this application?

In accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 162),
development in flood risk areas should not be permitted if there are reasonably
available alternative sites, appropriate for the proposed development, in areas
with a lower risk of flooding. The sequential test establishes if this is the case.

Development is in a flood risk area if it is in Flood Zone 2 or 3, or it is within Flood
Zone 1 and your strategic flood risk assessment shows it to be at future flood risk
or at risk from other sources of flooding such as surface water or groundwater.

The only developments exempt from the sequential test in flood risk areas are:
» Householder developments such as residential extensions, conservatories or
loft conversions
» Small non-residential extensions with a footprint of less than 250sqm
» Changes of use (except changes of use to a caravan, camping or chalet site,
or to a mobile home or park home site)

Page 55



5.4

* Applications for development on sites allocated in the development plan
through the sequential test, which are consistent with the use for which the site
was allocated.

Avoiding flood risk through the sequential test is the most effective way of
addressing flood risk because it places the least reliance on measures such as
flood defences, flood warnings and property level resilience.

Who undertakes the sequential test?

It is for you, as the local planning authority, to decide whether the sequential test
has been satisfied, but the applicant should demonstrate to you, with evidence,
what area of search has been used. Further guidance on the area of search can
be found in the planning practice guidance here.

What is our role in the sequential test?

We can advise on the relative flood risk between the proposed site and any
alternative sites identified - although your strategic flood risk assessment should
allow you to do this yourself in most cases. We won’t advise on whether
alternative sites are reasonably available or whether they would be suitable for
the proposed development. We also won’t advise on whether there are
sustainable development objectives that mean steering the development to any
alternative sites would be inappropriate. Further guidance on how to apply the
sequential test to site specific applications can be found in the planning practice
guidance here.

Surface Water Drainage and Infiltration Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) —
advice to the applicant

Only clean, uncontaminated surface water should be discharged to any
soakaway, watercourse or surface water sewer. Surface water from roads and
impermeable vehicle parking areas shall be discharged via trapped gullies. Site
operators should ensure that there is no possibility of contaminated water
entering and polluting surface or underground waters.

Where soakaways are proposed for the disposal of uncontaminated surface
water, percolation tests should be undertaken, and soakaways designed and
constructed in accordance with BRE Digest 365 (or CIRIA Report 156), and to
the satisfaction of the Local Authority. The maximum acceptable depth for
Ssoakaways is 2 metres below existing ground level. Soakaways must not be
located in contaminated areas. If, after tests, it is found that soakaways do not
work satisfactorily, alternative proposals must be submitted.

Cambridgehsire Councty Council Lead Local Flood Authority:
We have reviewed the following documents:

e Surface & Foul Water Drainage Strategy, Shields Wilson Structural and Civil
Engineering, Ref: SW 21-179-REP-01A, Dated: March 2022

Based on these, as Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) we can remove our
objection to the proposed development.

The above documents demonstrate that surface water from the proposed
development can be managed through the use of permeable paving, an
attenuation basin and attenuation tank, restricting surface water discharge to 7
I/s. Discharge into an existing Anglian Water sewer is the same as the existing
rates, although the location of the flow control is to be changed.

Page 56



5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

The LLFA supports the use of permeable paving as in addition to controlling the
rate of surface water leaving the site, it also provides water quality treatment and
interception source control. The attenuation basin within the site will also be
multi-beneficial to the surface water within the site as it is able to provide storage
for water in order that the discharge rate from the site can be restricted, as well
as providing surface water treatment.

Hydraulic calculations demonstrate that flooding is predicted in the 3.3% Annual
Exceedance Probability (AEP) rainfall event, and surcharging is predicted in the
50% AEP event, at the northern inflow to the basin, within the existing drainage
system. Within the calculations it is discusses that this occurs due to flow
capacity issues within the existing drainage system, the new development does
not appear to impact the levels of surcharging, or the volume of flooding that is
modelled to occur.

Water quality has been adequately addressed when assessed against the Simple
Index Approach outlined in the CIRIA SuDS Manual.

Peterborugh City Council Wildlife Officer:
The application scheme is acceptable but only if conditions are imposed.

Cambridgeshire Police Designing Out Crime Officer:

| have viewed the documents in relation to crime, disorder and the fear of crime
and have searched the Constabulary crime and incident systems covering
Fenton Way and immediate streets for the last 12 months. | would consider this
to be an area of low risk to the vulnerability to crime at present.

| have no further comments in relation to community safety and vulnerability to
crime at this stage.

Cadent Gas:

We have received a notification regarding a planning application that has been
submitted which is in close proximity to our medium and low-pressure assets. We
have no objection to this proposal from a planning perspective. Advice is given
on how to proceed with the works.

Environmental Health:

The Environmental Health Team note and accept the submitted information and
have ‘No Objections’ to the proposed development, as it is unlikely to have a
detrimental effect on local air or be affected by ground contamination.

However, given the scale of the proposal, the issues that will be of primary
concermn to this service during the construction phase would be the potential for
noise and dust to adversely impact on the amenity of the nearest existing
businesses. Therefore, this service would welcome the submission of a
Construction Management Plan (CMP). The CMP should consider the following:

» Site preparation (use of equipment and machinery including mobile
plant/potential smoke pollution/general noise control)

* Construction phase (noise control of vehicular activity, machinery and
equipment/siting of skips and waste disposal arrangements/dust
suppression)

» Complaint response and investigation procedures

Page 57



5.9

Cambridgeshire County Council Planning, Minerals and Waste:

The applicant has not provided a planning statement but refers to some Fenland
Local Plan policies in section 2.1 of the Design and Access Statement and Travel
Plan (Swann Edwards June 2020). However, it fails to recognise that the
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Minerals and Waste Local Plan (adopted July
2021) (the MWLP) is part of the development plan.

The proposed development site is within the consultation area (CA) for the
Chatteris-Nightlayer Fen Water Recycling Area (WRA) therefore MWLP Policy
16: Consultation Areas (CAS) is relevant. Policy 16 states that:

‘Development within a CA will only be permitted where it is demonstrated
that the development will:

(c) not prejudice the existing or future use of the area (i.e. the MAA, MDA,
WMA, TIA or WRA) for which the CA has been designated; and

(d) not result in unacceptable amenity issues or adverse impacts to human
health for the occupiers or users of such new development, due to the
ongoing or future use of the area for which the CA has been designated™.

Within a CA which surrounds a WRA, and unless convincing evidence to the
contrary is provided via an odour assessment report, there is a presumption
against allowing development which would:

(e) be buildings regularly occupied by people; or

(f) be land which is set aside for reqular community use (such as open
space facilities designed to attract recreational users, but excluding, for
example, habitat creation which is not designed to attract recreational
users).

*Where development is proposed within a CA which is associated with a WRA,
the application must be accompanied by a satisfactory odour assessment report.
The assessment must consider existing odour emissions of the WRC at different
times of the year and in a range of different weather conditions.”

It is noted that the applicant has submitted an Air Impact Assessment (Swann
Edwards February 2021) and the Rapid Health Impact Assessment Matrix but
neither addresses the potential impact on occupiers and users of the proposed
development of the operation of the WRA (also known as a wastewater or
sewage treatment works). One of the proposed blocks of industrial units would be
close to the WRA.

It is acknowledged that there are other buildings a similar distance from the WRA
but a review of the planning history for these premises suggests that they were
considered before the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Minerals and Waste
Core Strategy was adopted in July 2011 with the exception of planning
permission F/YR11/0619/FDC which was for the erection of 4 industrial units. The
officer’s report refers to comments made by Anglian Water in respect of Phase I/
(assumed to be planning permission F/YR/0036/FDC). From update to Planning
Committee 9th February 2011 in respect of planning application no.
F/YR11/0036/FDC:

“Anglian Water — Object to any development within 400 metre cordon sanitaire of

Chatteris Wastewater Treatment Works, although AW takes all reasonably
practicable steps to prevent odour arising from the works, they consider it

Page 58



important that there should be no development within 400 metres which is
potentially sensitive to odour or location of the works. Note a requirement for a
surface water strategy/ flood risk assessment condition.”

Both permissions were granted subject to a condition excluding food-based
activities.

The MWPA objects to the proposed development unless the applicant has
demonstrated by means of an odour assessment report that the occupiers and
users of the proposed development would not be adversely affected by the
operation of the WRA or Anglian Water has agreed that an assessment is not
necessary. The MWPA therefore recommends that the local planning authority
consults Anglian Water on this application.

The applicant’s attention is drawn to MWLP Policy 16 which states that:

“When considering proposals for non-mineral and non-waste management
development within a CA, then the agent of change principle will be applied to
ensure that the operation of the protected infrastructure (i.e. MAA, MDA, WMA,
TIA or WRA) is not in any way prejudiced. Any costs for mitigating impacts on or
from the existing minerals and/or waste related uses will be required to be met by
the developer. It is for the developer to demonstrate that any mitigation proposed
as part of the new development is practicable, and the continued use of existing
sites will not be prejudiced.”

The agent of change principle is supported by paragraph 187 of the National
Planning Policy Framework (July 2021).

STATUTORY DUTY

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a
planning application to be determined in accordance with the Development Plan
unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan
for the purposes of this application comprises the adopted Fenland Local Plan
(2014).

POLICY FRAMEWORK

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)
National Design Guide 2019

Fenland Local Plan 2014

LP1 — A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

LP2 — Facilitating Health and Wellbeing of Fenland Residents

LP3 — Spatial Strategy, the Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside

LP6 — Employment, Tourism, Community Facilities and Retail

LP10 — Chatteris

LP13 — Supporting and Managing the Impact of a Growing District

LP14 — Responding to Climate Change and Managing the Risk of Flooding in
Fenland

LP15 — Facilitating the Creation of a More Sustainable Transport Network in
Fenland

LP16 — Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments across the District

Page 59



8

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2021
KEY ISSUES

Principle of Development and Economic Growth
Design, Appearance and Impact on the Area
Residential Amenities

Parking and Highway safety

Flooding and Drainage

Ecology

Waste, Amenities and Health

ASSESSMENT

Principle of Development and Economic Growth

Paragraph 81 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2021 states that
planning policies and decisions should help create the conditions in which
businesses can invest, expand and adapt. This is reflected in the Fenland Local
Plan. According to n Policy LP6, opportunities for jobs growth in the district should
be maximised through a number of approaches including appropriate
intensification and extensions to established areas of employment, with the focus
for employment growth being the market towns. The application proposes the
development of new employment units within an area currently used for
employment purposes at the edge of a market town.

The principle of the proposed development would therefore accord with Local Plan
Policy LP6 and the NPPF(2021).

Design, Appearance and Impact on the Area

Paragraph 126 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2021 states that good
design is a key aspect of sustainable development, creates better places in which
to live and work and helps make development acceptable to communities. This is
further reflected in Local Plan Policy LP16 which seeks to deliver and protect a
high-quality environment for those living and working within the district. Both
national and local policies seek to ensure that development is only permitted if,
among other criteria, it makes a positive contribution to the local distinctiveness
and character of the area, enhances its local setting, responds to and improves the
character of the local built environment, reinforces local identity and does not
adversely impact, either in design or scale terms, the street scene, settlement
pattern or the landscape character of the surrounding area.

The scheme proposes the erection of two industrial buildings with shallow mono-
pitch rooves, one on the eastern end of the site facing west and the other on the
southern edge of the site facing north. The proposed buildings would be of scale
which is comparable to the existing buildings but with enough head height to
provide for first floor business accommodation. To this end, the buildings are
designed with high level windows to provide added lighting to the buildings but
would also facilitate expansion through the possible future insertion of a mezzanine
floor.

The current buildings are finished in orange composite cladding with timber infills.
However, these are set against a backdrop of a much larger buildings which are
finished in grey composite cladding (when seen from the south). The proposed
buildings would be finished externally with grey composite cladding which would be

Page 60



in keeping with the existing backdrop and much of the wider industrial estate which
are finished similar materials.

9.6 The proposed development would therefore not detract from the character of the
site and the general area in accordance with Local Plan Policy LP16 and
Paragraph 126 of the NPPF(2021).

Amenity

9.7 The proposed development consists of the erection of additional industrial units on
an established industrial estate which is isolated from any residential properties.
Thus, the proposal is unlikely to adversely affect any residential amenities in
accordance with Local Plan Policy LP16. Similarly, the siting of the proposed units
is not considered to impact upon the operation of the existing employment units.

9.8 Paragraph 186 of the NPP(2021) states that planning policies and decisions
should sustain and contribute towards compliance with relevant limit values or
national objectives for pollutants, taking into account the presence of Air Quality
Management Areas and Clean Air Zones, and the cumulative impacts from
individual sites in local areas. Consistent with the Provisions of the Environmental
Act 1995 which introduced the Local Air Quality Management (LAQM) regime. To
this end, the Environmental Health Team monitors air quality in various part of the
district and have considered this proposal.

9.9 The proposal site is located within Chatteris-Nightlayer Fen WWTW Safeguarding
Area owing to the location of the development in relation to its proximity to the said
facility and being within this consultation area (CA), MWLP Policy 16: Consultation
Areas states that:

“Development within a CA will only be permitted where it is demonstrated that
the development will, among other criteria-

(c) not prejudice the existing or future use of the area (i.e., the MAA, MDA,
WMA, TIA or WRA) for which the CA has been designated; and

(d) not result in unacceptable amenity issues or adverse impacts to human
health for the occupiers or users of such new development, due to the
ongoing or future use of the area for which the CA has been designated”.

9.10 Officers note that the applicant has submitted an Air Impact Assessment (Swann
Edwards February 2021) and the Rapid Health Impact Assessment Matrix. This
has been considered and even though neither addresses the potential impact on
occupiers and users of the proposed development of the operation of the WRA
(also known as a wastewater or sewage treatment works), it is the view of
Officers that any impacts would not be any different from that which is
experienced by users of buildings on proposal site and adjacent ones. This
development represents an extension on an existing operating site of which the
physical development would be relatively (a few meters) closer to the Sewage
works than the existing buildings. However, taking into account the history of the
use of the site, it the view of officers that the impacts on amenities of future users
of the developmentwould not be any different from the existing use of the site.
No complaints have ever been registered from occupiers of the industrial units
which may indicate that the proximity of the works has not had any adverse
impacts on the amenities of the site and the area.

Page 61



9.1

9.12

9.13

9.14

9.15

9.16

9.17

9.18

The referenced “agent of change principle” is noted and will be brought to the
attention of the applicant.

Parking and Highway Safety

Fenland Local Plan Policy LP16 states that new development will only be
permitted if it can be demonstrated that safe and convenient pedestrian and
vehicle access to and from the public highway as well as adequate space for
vehicle parking, turning and servicing would be achieved.

The scheme proposes two additional industrial buildings with associated parking
and turning facilities. The proposal was considered by the Highways Engineer
who has not raised any adverse comments. He suggests some minor tweaks to
improve the scheme, but recommends conditions be attached if the Committee
is minded to approve the development

The proposal would accord with Local Plan Policy LP16 and Fenland Parking
Standards.

Flooding and Drainage

Paragraph 159 of the National Planning Policy Framework states that
inappropriate development in areas at risk of flooding should be avoided by
directing development away from areas at highest risk. In addition, Local Plan
Policy LP14 (Part B) reflects the national approach by adopting a sequential
approach to flood risk from all forms of flooding. Commercial buildings are
identified within the National Planning Practice Guidance as being a less
vulnerable use in terms of flood risk, and which may be appropriate in Flood Zone
3.

The proposal site located within Flood Zone 3 as defined by the Environment
Agency (EA) Maps. The applicant submitted an Ellingham Consulting Flood Risk
Assessment (2021) in support of the proposed development which was
considered by the EA to which they do not object since the risk at this site is
associated with watercourses under the jurisdiction of the Internal Drainage
Board (IDB). The EA recommends that the IDB be consulted and that the LPA
formally consider the emergency planning and rescue implications of new
development in making their decision. Middle Level were consulted on the
application, however no comments have been received. In terms of the
emergency planning implications it is not considered that given the less
vulnerable nature of the development this is a matter which could be used to
justify the refusal of planning permission

In addition, the EA suggests that a sequential be undertaken to establish whether
there other sites at lower risk of flooding which could accommodate the
development. Sequentially, Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) recommends a
pragmatic approach to considering planning applications for extensions to
existing business premises as it may be impractical to suggest that there are
more suitable alternative locations for that development elsewhere. Since the
application site forms part of an established employment site it is considered that
it would be unreasonable to conclude anything other than that the site is
sequentially acceptable

The proposal would accord with Local Plan Policy LP14 and the National
Planning Policy Framework 2021.

Ecology

Page 62



9.19 Paragraph 180 of the NPPF (2021) states that when determining planning

applications, local planning authorities should apply the principle that if significant

harm to biodiversity resulting from a development cannot be

avoided (through locating on an alternative site with less harmful impacts),

adequately mitigated, or, as a last resort, compensated for, then planning

permission should be refused. Through Local Plan Policy LP19, the Council,
working in partnership with all relevant stakeholders, will conserve, enhance and

promote the biodiversity and geological interest of the natural environment

throughout Fenland

9.20 The applicant submitted a Glaven Ecology Ecological Impact Assessment
Preliminary Ecological Assessment (2021) in support of the proposed

development. The report was considered by the council’'s own Ecologist and no

concerns were raised subject to conditions.

9.21 The proposed development would accord with Local Plan Policy LP19 and the

NPPF (2021)

Conditions

9.22 In accordance with Section 100 ZA of the Town and Country Planning Act the
applicant’s agent has confirmed their agreement to any pre-commencement

conditions.

10 CONCLUSIONS

10.1 The development proposes the erection of two additional industrial buildings on the

site which will be of a scale design and finishes which is in keeping with the

character of the site and the area. The development would pass the sequential
and exceptions tests owing to the fact that the development is an extension on an

existing business site and the development has wider economic benefits

respectively. The development would also not prejudice highway safety, parking

and biodiversity interests.

11 RECOMMENDATION

GRANT; subject to the following conditions.

years from the date of this permission.

Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

1. | The development permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 3

Reason: To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and

to enable vehicles to:

1. enter, turn and leave the site in forward gear;
2. park clear of the public highway;

3. load and unload;

other purpose in perpetuity.

2. | Prior to the commencement of use hereby approved the permanent
space shown on the plans hereby approved to be reserved on the site

shall be levelled, surfaced and drained and thereafter retained for no

Reason: In the interests of satisfactory development and highway
safety in accordance with Policy LP15 of the Fenland Local Plan.

Page 63



Prior to Commencement of any works on the site, the applicant shall
submit a Construction Management Plan (CMP) which should
consider the following:

» Site preparation (use of equipment and machinery
including mobile plant/potential smoke pollution/general
noise control)

« Construction phase (noise control of vehicular activity,
machinery and equipment/siting of skips and waste
disposal arrangements/dust suppression)

» Complaint response and investigation procedures

The CMP shall be agreed in writing and implemented as such
thereafter to the satisfaction of the LPA

Reason: In the interest of amenity protection and to accord with Local
Plan Policy LP16.

No laying of services, creation of hard surfaces or erection of a
building shall commence until a detailed design of the surface water
drainage of the site has been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. Those elements of the surface water
drainage system not adopted by a statutory undertaker shall thereafter
be maintained and managed in accordance with the approved
management and maintenance plan.

The scheme shall be based upon the principles within the agreed
Surface & Foul Water Drainage Strategy prepared by Shields Wilson
Structural and Civil Engineering (ref: SW 21-179-REP-01A) dated
March 2022 and shall also include:

a) Full calculations detailing the existing surface water runoff rates for
the QBAR, 3.3% Annual Exceedance Probability (AEP) (1 in 30) and
1% AEP (1 in 100) storm events;

b) Full results of the proposed drainage system modelling in the
above-referenced storm events (as well as 1% AEP plus climate
change), inclusive of all collection, conveyance, storage, flow control
and disposal elements and including an allowance for urban creep,
together with an assessment of system performance;

c) Detailed drawings of the entire proposed surface water drainage
system, attenuation and flow control measures, including levels,
gradients, dimensions and pipe reference numbers, designed to
accord with the CIRIA C753 SuDS Manual (or any equivalent
guidance that may supersede or replace it);

d) Full detail on SuDS proposals (including location, type, size, depths,
side slopes and cross sections);

e) Details of overland flood flow routes in the event of system
exceedance, with demonstration that such flows can be appropriately
managed on site without increasing flood risk to occupants;

f) Demonstration that the surface water drainage of the site is in
accordance with DEFRA non-statutory technical standards for
sustainable drainage systems;

g) Full details of the maintenance/adoption of the surface water
drainage system;

Page 64



h) Permissions to connect to a receiving watercourse or sewer;
i) Measures taken to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater
and/or surface water

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development can be adequately
drained and to ensure that there is no increased flood risk on or off site
resulting from the proposed development and to ensure that the
principles of sustainable drainage can be incorporated into the
development, noting that initial preparatory and/or construction works
may compromise the ability to mitigate harmful impacts.

No development, including preparatory works, shall commence until
details of measures indicating how additional surface water run-off
from the site will be avoided during the construction works have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The applicant may be required to provide collection, balancing and/or
settlement systems for these flows. The approved measures and
systems shall be brought into operation before any works to create
buildings or hard surfaces commence.

Reason: To ensure surface water is managed appropriately during the
construction phase of the development, so as not to increase the flood
risk to adjacent land/properties or occupied properties within the
development itself; recognising that initial works to prepare the site
could bring about unacceptable impacts.

No development shall take place (including demolition, ground works,
vegetation clearance) until a construction environmental management
plan (CEMP: Biodiversity) has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. The CEMP (Biodiversity) shall
include the following:

a) Summary of potentially damaging activities.

b) Identification of “biodiversity protection zones”.

c) Practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive working
practices) to avoid or reduce impacts during construction (may be
provided as a set of method statements) including ensuring no Non-
Native Invasive Species are spread across the site.

d) The location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to
biodiversity features.

e) The times during construction when specialist ecologists need to be
present on site to oversee works.

f) Responsible persons and lines of communication.

g) The role and responsibilities on site of an ecological clerk of works
(ECoW) or similarly competent person.

h) Use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and warning signs.

The approved CEMP shall be adhered to and implemented throughout
the construction period strictly in accordance with the approved
details, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning
authority.

Reason: To ensure that the recommended mitigation and
compensation suggested in section 6 of the Ecological Impact
Assessment (Glaven Ecology, 2021) are followed correctly. This will
ensure that the development aligns with the National Planning Policy

Page 65



Framework and Fenland Local Plan.

Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development shall take
place until a scheme for the soft landscaping of the site has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The scheme shall include the following details:

* Planting plans to all public areas, retained hedge and
trees, species, numbers, size and density of planting;
and

* Boundary treatments.

« Suitable replacement habitat for the hedgerow removal
along the front of the properties ensure connectivity.

Development shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted
details and at the following times:

Any trees, shrubs or hedges forming part of the approved landscaping
scheme that die, are removed or become diseased within five years of
the implementation of the landscaping scheme shall be replaced
during the next available planting season by the developers, or their
successors in title with an equivalent size, number and species to
those being replaced. Any replacement trees, shrubs or hedgerows
dying within five years of planting shall themselves be replaced with an
equivalent size, number and species.

The landscape plan should be informed by the species list provided
within section 7 of the Ecological Impact Assessment, incorporating
the species into seeding mix around green areas. These green areas
will be required in order for the site to result in positive impact on
biodiversity.

Reason: To ensure that the landscaping is creating in sensitivity to the
surrounding habitats and landscapes. This will ensure that the
development aligns with the National Planning Policy Framework and
Fenland Local Plan.

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until at least
5 bird boxes and 2 bat boxes have been suitably designed into the
scheme in accordance with best practice methodology as set out by
the Royal Society for the Protection for Birds and Bat Conservation
Trust, evidence of the inclusion of these boxes should be provided to
the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To secure the long-term protection of the nesting bird
potential.

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until such
time as small mammal holes are installed in the boundary fences to
allow inter-connectivity. The holes will be a minimum of 15 x 13 cm
holes and placed at ground level. It is recommended that the holes are
marked appropriately to communicate their purpose.

Page 66



Reason: To ensure the ongoing potential for the site to be used by
small mammals

10.

No removal of hedgerows, trees or shrubs shall take place between
1st March and 31st August inclusive, unless a competent ecologist
has undertaken a careful, detailed check of vegetation for active birds’
nests immediately before the vegetation is cleared and provided
written confirmation that no birds will be harmed and/or that there are
appropriate measures in place to protect nesting bird interest on site.
Any such written confirmation should be submitted to the local
planning authority.

Reason: Protected species are a material concern for Local Planning
Authorities as per the National Planning Policy Framework and
Fenland Local Policy. The disturbance of protected species may be an
infraction as described within the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981

11.

The development hereby permitted shall only be used for purposes
falling within Class E(g) of the Schedule to the Town and Country
Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended) or in any provision
equivalent to that Class in any statutory instrument revoking and re-
enacting that Order), and for no other purpose.

Reason: To ensure that any future proposals for the site incorporate
appropriate mitigation.

12.

Prior to the development hereby permitted being first brought into use
the external lighting as shown on drawing number 90127-E-106 REV
P2 shall be implemented on site and thereafter retained in perpetuity.

Reason: In the interest of security and amenity of the site

13.

The development hereby permitted shall only be carried out in
accordance with the facing and roofing materials shown on the
approved plans.

Reason: To ensure the satisfactory appearance of the completed
development in accordance with Policy LP16 of the Local Plan.

14.

Approved plans

Page 67



RENADIER DR -

Created on: 05/01/2022

© Crown Copyright and database
rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 10023778

F/YR21/1504/FDC

Scale = 1:2,500

N

A

Fenland

CAMBRIDGESHIRE

Fenland District Council

Page 68




\\

=~/

Job Title D
. ate Drawn by
e e Proposed Industrial Development JB
Scale: 1:500 metres . Sept b
. South Fens Enterprise Park |o€ptemoer
< B — Fenton Way 2021 ChecéedE by
\ﬂ\,\: e Chatteris
) SRASS S~ h ; ) :
o g é "~ = . DraDwmg T\t\e Job No. Sheet Size
g e S anning Drawing | se_ 4700 A
) Street Scene, Site Plan _
o Clerestorey and Location Plan [P%9 No- Revision
© PP1000 B
Swann Edwards Architecture Limited E

. 0 5 10 15 20
Site Plan s

1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Unit 01 Unit 02 Unit 03 Unit 04
280m2 (3013.89sqft) 277.5m2 (2986.98sq(t) 277.5m2 (2986.98sqft) 280m2 (3013.89sqft)
workshop workshop workshop workshop
LD s
é I 1 1 | + I I 1 | .- 1+ I L
0 2 4 6 8
Phase 1 - Clerestory Plan  psisesimesi=—r
Scale: 1:200
metres
\
Unit 05 ! ! ! ! ! Unit 06 ! ! ! ! ! b @mh s Y
559.7m2 (6024.565qft) 559.7m2 (6024.565(t)
Business Centre
South Fens
q ise Park
workshop workshop
Sub Sta §
1z _ ) Il g 1 I I . I I 1 % 1 _ I
0 2 4 6 8
Phase 2 - Clerestory Plan T e . on Pl 0 25 50 75 100
Scale: 1. [ I —
cale: 1:200 Tetres ocation Plan
Scale: 1:2500
metres
I | I |
M- mmm] [mm| [m| M- mmm] [mm| o M- mmm] o o
0 5 10 15 20
Street Scene IEETTEITTTT
Scale: 1:500 metres
Q 1
&
T 068 =0 4‘-’*
o Ligy
e — v —: . "v— T_E - ER. E;- + R
. o - £ / |
GRAVEL GRAVEL i
030 0.26 040 -0.04 =0.21 0.3 0.38 0.54. 0.74 8 ‘
00 T > LI o — R — = e ; /‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘
conere |
|
= L \ {K - (m
forrT o bx“f: ) DRATNAGE CHANNEL = ’ B
- . . [ i
& Car // | ; - . |
' iy Tt et —— e e —— - i
onen / ™ ~mm— < o L | m
EI ) / | i
GRAVEL o / : | / | -
S & CONCRETE cofere (CONCRETE ‘
agu 3 O O © /ool / | Unit 01
5 / .\ t* existing parking provision existing parking pr?(/ision existing parking provision existing parking pro;vision ‘. )
/ ' P ]
I~ —> |/ / |
S SRICK PAVED : | existing parking provision u‘
X | s
] |
.l | — | _— q e |
K 2‘5 B / | oxisting 7 ol emstlng parklng provision : U nit 02
A N \7 T — I 1 .‘ | |
N Pl |
S . -~ | 4
\\\ : |g - ~ i N edsting 1P @ TR0 ” }
\\\ ’ T >, |
= ~ GRASS. |
— /. l
\\\ *;‘ GRASS]|
Unit03
L. | " T
Hnit0d—

0
¥

General Notes

and specialist sub-contractors drawings

Unit 01 & 04 = 280m2

Unit 02 & 03 = 277.5m2
Unit 05 & 06 = 559.7m2
Phase 1 Total GIA = 1121.6m2
Phase 2 Total GIA = 1121.6m2

(38 existing spaces retained)
Cycle Parking = 30 spaces

KEY

PHASE 1

PHASE 2

PILLLLL

1. All dimensions are shown in 'mm' unless otherwise stated.

2.The contractor, sub-contractors and suppliers must verify all
dimensions on site prior to the commencement of any work.

3.This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all relevant engineers

4. Any discrepancies are to be brought to the designers attention.

AREA SCHEDULE

12072.80sqft

Total Parking (Existing and Proposed) = 113 including 14 accessible spaces

Hatch indicates proposed gravel margin to building perimeter to be in
accordance with Civil Engineer design.

Hatch indicates existing buildings

Hatch indicates proposed trees to reinforce existing landscaping

Hatch indicates proposed landscaping

NB - SITE LEVELS and FFL TO BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH CIVIL ENGINEER DESIGN

and specifications.

3013.89sqgft
3013.89sqgft
6024.56sqft

12072.80sqft

Hatch indicates proposed concrete yard to be positively drained to be in
accordance with Civil Engineer design.

Revisions
A Oct Existing Parking Retained Following
2021 Client Lease Plan
B Nov Updated Following Civil Design
2021
Status

FOR APPROVAL

A R C H I

B SWAN
—DWA

T E C T UR E

Swann Edwards Architecture Limited, Swann Edwards Architecture,
Black Barn, Fen Road, Guyhirn, Wisbech, Cambs. PE13 4AA
t 01945 450694 e info@swannedwards.co.uk w www.swannedwards.co.uk

DS




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

F/YR22/0185/F

Applicant: Mrs C Bega Agent : Mr Matthew Taylor

Taylor Planning And Building

3 Irving Burgess Close, Whittlesey, Cambridgeshire, PE7 1QB

Erect a first floor and single-storey front extensions, single-storey rear extension
and a 2-storey side/rear extension to existing dwelling

Officer recommendation: Refuse

Reason for Committee: Referred by Head of Planning on advice of Committee
Chairman

1

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1.This application is for the first floor and single-storey front extensions, single-

1.2.1t is considered that the first-floor extension and 2-storey rear extension would

1.3.The 2-storey extension would also appear visually overbearing to the

1.4.Consequently the application is recommended for refusal.

storey rear extension and a 2-storey rear extension to the existing dwelling.

appear visually jarring and would create an incongruous feature within the
surrounding area.

surrounding neighbouring properties and this would be to the significant
detriment of surrounding residential occupiers.

2

SITE DESCRIPTION

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

The application site is situated on the eastern side of Irving Burgess Close, a
residential cul-de-sac within the market town of Whittlesey. Irving Burgess
Close features both single-storey and 2-storey dwellings constructed in buff
and red bricks.

The dwelling on site is a detached 2-storey dwellings with an attached double
garage which sits forward of the principal elevation of the dwelling. The
dwelling is constructed in a buff brick. To the rear of the dwelling is a garden
with a depth of approximately 12 metres.

The application site is surrounded by residential dwellings to the north, east
and west. Single-storey dwellings are situated to the north and north-west of
the dwelling on site.

The application site is situated within Flood Zone 1.

Page 71



3 PROPOSAL

3.1. This application seeks to erect a first floor and single-storey front extension, a
single-storey rear extension and a 2-storey rear extension.

3.2. The first-floor extension will be situated above the existing garage and will
facilitate a bedroom. This will involve raising the eaves height of the garage to
3.7 metres approx and the ridge height to 5.9 metres approx. A window is
proposed to serve the bedroom facing south, with a dormer window facing east
and 2 roof lights facing west.

3.3. The single-storey front extension will facilitate a porch and will have a depth of
2 metres approx. and a width of 2.9 metres approx. The roof proposed to e the
porch will be a lean-to with an eaves height of 2.2 metres approx. with a
maximum height of 3.6 metres approx. A front door as well as full height
windows are proposed to the front of the porch along with a roof light.

3.4. The single-storey rear extension will facilitate an extended kitchen/dining area
and will have a depth of 3 metres approx and a width of 9.3 metres approx.
The roof proposed to facilitate the rear extension will be a lean-to, with an
eaves height of 2.5 metres approx. and a maximum height of 3.5 metres
approx. The fenestration proposed to the single-storey extension includes a
window and bi-folding door as well as 3 roof lights facing north.

3.5. The 2-storey extension will facilitate a further extended kitchen/dining area at
ground floor, with a study at first floor. The depth of 2-storey extension will be
7.6 metres approx. with a width of 4.9 metres approx. The roof proposed will
be dual-pitched with an eaves height of 3.7 metres approx. and a ridge height
of 5.7 metres approx. The fenestration proposed within the 2-storey extension
at ground floor level includes a window facing west, bi-folding doors facing
north and an obscure glazed window facing south. The fenestration at first-
floor level includes a large window facing north, a window facing south and 2
roof lights facing east. The front facing element of the two -storey side
extension includes a full height element of glazing.

3.6. The materials proposed are a buff facing brick and a cedral cladding in a
cream or green colour to the dormer window. The tiles proposed are a red
concrete tile and grey sarnafill.

3.7. Full plans and associated documents for this application can be found at:
https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/

4  SITE PLANNING HISTORY

Reference Description Decision
F/IYR21/0224/F Erect a 2-storey rear Withdrawn
extension and first floor
front extension including
porch to existing dwelling

5 CONSULTATIONS

Page 72


https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/

5.1.

Whittlesey Town Council

The Town Council have no objection and therefore recommend approval.

5.2. FDC Environmental Health
The Environmental Health Team note and accept the submitted information
and have ‘No Objections’ to the proposed scheme as it is unlikely to have a
detrimental effect on local air quality and the noise climate or be affected by
ground contamination.

5.3. North Level Internal Drainage Board
North Level District IDB has no comment to make with regard to the above
application.

54. Local Residents/Interested Parties
1 letter of support was received with regard to the above scheme from the
owner of No 6 Irving Burgess Close who considers the proposal to be a
‘great addition to the street view and good use of space’.

STATUTORY DUTY

6.1.  Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a
planning application to be determined in accordance with the Development
Plan unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The
Development Plan for the purposes of this application comprises the adopted
Fenland Local Plan (2014).

POLICY FRAMEWORK

71. National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
Para 2 — Applications to be determined in accordance with the development
plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise
Para 11 — A presumption in favour of sustainable development
Para 47 — All applications for development shall be determined in
accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations
indicate otherwise
Para 130 — Achieving well-designed places

7.2. National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)
Determining a Planning Application

7.3. National Design Guide 2019
Context
|dentity
Built Form

74. Fenland Local Plan 2014

LP1 — A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

Page 73



LP2 — Facilitating Health and Wellbeing of Fenland Residents

LP14 — Responding to Climate Change and Managing the Risk of Flooding in
Fenland

LP15 — Facilitating the Creation of a More Sustainable Transport Network in
Fenland

LP16 — Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments across the
District

KEY ISSUES
¢ Principle of Development
e Design Considerations and Visual Amenity of the Area
¢ Residential Amenity
e Flood Risk

BACKGROUND

A previous scheme was submitted under reference F/YR21/0224/F and
subsequently withdrawn. Amendments have been made to this earlier scheme,
including the reduction of the depth of the 2-storey extension as well as an
alteration to the roof proposed.

ASSESSMENT
Principle of Development

10.1. This application seeks to erect a number of extensions to the existing
dwelling. Policy LP16 supports the principle of development subject to the
significance of , and the likely impact on, the amenity of the neighbouring
properties and users in its design and appearance. The principle of the
proposed development is acceptable subject to the policy considerations set
out below.

Design Consideration and Visual Amenity of the Area

10.2. The first-floor extension will introduce a visual change within the character of
the area given that it will increase the ridge height of the existing garage to
5.9 metres approx. The first-floor extension will create an unsympathetic
addition to the dwelling forming an incongruous feature within the street
scene and the resulting visual impact of this first-floor extension is considered
to introduce adverse impacts upon the street scene given that it will
overwhelm the principal elevation of the existing dwelling and appear out of
character with the surrounding dwellings.

10.3. The 2-storey element of this scheme will be somewhat visible from the street
scene as it will extend beyond the existing east facing elevation of the
dwelling. This element will also be visible from the west. The 2-storey
extension from a design point of view appears fragmented and is not
subservient to the main dwelling. This element of the scheme would also
introduce an incongruous feature within the street scene and would not
appear sympathetic with the existing dwelling on site which would be contrary
to Policy LP16.

10.4. The single-storey front extension is unlikely to introduce any adverse impacts
upon the surrounding character. Although this element of the scheme is

Page 74



visible from the street scene, given the minor scale of this element of the
scheme, any visual impacts are unlikely to be adverse.

10.5. The single-storey rear extension is unlikely to introduce any adverse impacts
upon the surrounding character given that this element of the scheme is
situated within the rear garden of the site and as such, is not visible from the
street scene.

Residential Amenity

10.6. Neighbouring properties are situated to the north, east and west of the
application site.

10.7. The first-floor front extension will be visible from neighbouring properties.
Given the location of this element of the development and the direction of sun
travel, the first- floor extension may introduce some overshadowing impacts
upon the neighbouring dwelling at No. 2, however these are unlikely to be
significantly adverse. The south facing window and east facing dormer
window are unlikely to introduce any adverse overlooking impacts. The 2 roof
lights proposed upon the west facing roof slope will face onto neighbouring
property, however given the angle of the roof lights, they are unlikely to
introduce any overlooking impacts to No. 2.

10.8. The 2-storey rear extension will be located approximately 6.5 metres from the
northern boundary of the site. The rear elevation of the 2-storey extension will
be located approximately 22.5 metres from No. 121 Stonald Road, 17 metres
from No. 123 Stonald Road and 15 metres from No. 1 Irving Burgess Close.
No. 123 and No.1 are single-storey dwellings. Given the close proximity of
the 2-storey extension to these dwellings, it is considered that the 2-storey
element of the scheme will appear visually overbearing to these neighbouring
properties.

10.9. Fenestration is proposed on the north facing elevation of the 2-storey
extension and will face onto neighbouring property at No. 121. However,
given the distance between the scheme and the neighbouring property its
unlikely to adversely impact upon this neighbouring property by way of
overlooking.

10.10. The single-storey rear extension is unlikely to introduce any adverse
overlooking, overbearing or overshadowing impacts to neighbouring
properties given its single-storey nature and the existing boundary treatments
on site.

10.11. The front porch will not adversely impact upon neighbouring property given its
minor nature and location to the front of the dwelling.

Flood Risk

10.12. The proposal is located within flood zone 1 and issues of surface water
disposal will be considered under Building Regulations.

11 CONCLUSIONS

11.1. To conclude; Policy LP2 and LP16 seek to ensure that the developments protect

Page 75



high quality environments across the district. The first-floor and 2-storey element
of the scheme are considered to overwhelm the existing dwelling on site and do
not appear subservient, resulting in an incongruous development being
introduced within the street scene.

11.2. ltis also considered that the 2-storey element of the scheme would appear
visually dominant and that this would be to the significant detriment of
surrounding residential occupiers. It is therefore considered that the scheme is
contrary to Policy LP2 and Policy LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014.

12 RECOMMENDATION

12.1 Refuse, for the following reason

1 Policy LP2 and LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan requires development to make a
positive contribution to the local distinctiveness and character of the area and to
respond to and improve the character of the local built environment as well as
protect the health and wellbeing of Fenland Residents. The proposed first-floor
and 2-storey extension would appear visually jarring and unsympathetic to the
host dwelling and would create an incongruous feature within the surrounding
area. The 2-storey extension would also appear visually overbearing to the
surrounding neighbouring properties. If permitted the development would result in
a prominent and incongruous feature within the street scene to the detriment of
the character and appearance of the area and also introduce harm to surrounding
neighbouring property and thus would be contrary to the above policies of the
Local Plan.

Page 76



Created on: 03/03/2022 F/YR22/0185/F N

Scale = 1:1,250 5 .
Fenland District Council

Page 77



PROPQOSED
21-01-21
1:50 @ Al
Drawing Ref:
4 Dapple Gardens
Whittlesey
Peterborough

PE7 1LW

3 Irving Burgess Extend
07469210782

Description:

PLO05c

Scale & Sheet Size:

Revision:
Project
Date:

www.TaylorPlanningandBuilding.co.uk

J2004

Taylor Planning & Building Consultants

Copyright
The details shown on this drawing are confidential and the exclusive property of

Facebook

Find us on
@Taylorplanningbuildingconsultants
Taylor Planning and Building Consultants

No use, copy or disclosure of this drawing may be made without written

permission and it is to be returned to RWS Limited upon request.

/

Container

RoofLight

Conifer Tree Belt

Removed

Shed

y —
I _
W [y
o
>
g
(@)

Shed

/
/
/
/

o=

5 meters

7015

062< |
/////LMM

096¢

8268l

RopfLigl
[ ]
||
PROPSOED ROOF PLAN
4

1:100
3

00£S

Rear Garde
176m2

58m?
o
()

RoofLight
1

I
L]

Front Garden

ht

GF EXTENSION
26m?

000¢

18466

Existing
Parking

ooflipht

|

RoofLight

[ ]

L
RoofLight

— — ]
L

worst case shadow
line shown dashed

Summer time

\
[}
\
[}
\

200
Site Area 408m?

4 10 metres
——

8

NORTH

PROPOSED EXTENSION

Ll
92)
2
o
I
O
m
T
n
—
x
L

SITE PLAN 1

200

$2s0doU Y

O UI}SIX3

5 meters

T
STREET SCENE PROPOSED 1

| I o |

Container

Shed

Shed

e

Driveway

Vacant Plot

'
| P
3 8
\ o
'
| ,:::::::::::::n;xx:x::r;: £
. )
\ \ n
[ e S
= Ve
0 LT
B ey
___ .......................... <+
T
M_H.v LT - Z
S AR e TR e } 3
\\\\\\\\\ ) o
2 NN ¢ = —m ___ :
....... o \
o N 5§ 0 O\ TN T ! ___ S
> \ \ e
(@)1 N o h \ \ o “~
\ \
C © A i ! >
S (O] ~ \ \ \ = O
N \ \
n N £ < e \ \ \ s
2 N o< 0 T \ \ N
X — ) \ | R
a N T o ! \ \
\ \
\ \ \
= \ \ \
= c \ i \
o
P = \ 4 i
35 3 \ | |
a ! \
O o | \ 4 4
£ c A ! ! 4
o+ T, \ 1 1
n =X | | N
— A \ Ve
. \ I— \
X © s | bt |
L A = __. 1
\ \
i | ;xx::::::::::::::::;::x:x:::
\ \
/ / 4 |
! 1 \ 2
oo e
i ! \ |
\ i ! \ \
\ | ' i 4
\ H \ i} \
\ \ \ \ 4
\ \ \ \ '
ki \ \ \ \
| \ | i b
\ \ S
) \ \ L
| \ \ T
L \ \ e
\ \ \ L
, \ v
\ \ L
/ '\ e
\ X
\ X
/ / /
\ \
\ \
\ \
| X
\
\
\
/ —/
\ \ N
—— ——_ /// IIIIIIIIIII
/ / /8:
x | O,
\ \ [N
\ v )
\ \ )
\ i m
' !
' :
: :
| m o L
; / o N @ wn o L
] ! 2 & . . 5 o
\ / 2 O 526297 & & & & 526297 T
\\\\\ g == 00 T =
\\\\\\\\\ ‘ — o ¥ U] S
.- /
\\\\\\\\ — < = T b
\\\\\\\\ < © a S
\\\\\\ — 526275 526275
\\\\\\ | > = 2
\\\\\\ = w Z O
\\\\\\\\ - a - 5
T - <L 0
\\\\\\\\ LLI o =
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, v o Tol
|||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||| 526250 526250 2 O
...................................... _ + - 0
n umo )
— (@
e 526225 526225 P 3
> = o
@ O N
on n
Q
© < O
= O —
526200 526200 O
526198 8 9 s 0 526198 L O
> @ ~ = = e =
PR &



AutoCAD SHX Text_725
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_727
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
50 metres

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
10 metres

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
10 metres

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
5 meters

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
5 meters

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_761
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_762
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_763
5 meters

AutoCAD SHX Text_764
Existing

AutoCAD SHX Text_765
Proposed


6/ abed

FFL

DPC - FFL

L
=

L1

FFL

]| LU

Existing Front Elevation

Existing East Elevation
1:100

Dining Room

-

!

Lounge

Lobby ]

1:100
I
I Kitchen _
Utilty
WC
Garage
| [ ] [

GROUND FLOOR - EXISTING 1:50

Existing Rear Elevation

Existing West Elevation

1:100

Ensuite

=

Bathroom

AC

Kil

Bedroom

—r.;]

Bedroom

Bedroom

Landing

Bedroom

Revision:

Project:
3 Irving Burgess Extend

Description:
EXISTING

Date:
21-01-22

FIRST FLOOR -

EXISTING 1:50

Scale & Sheet Size:
1:50 @ Al

Drawing Ref:

EXIST

Taylor Planning & Building Consultants

4 Dapple Gardens
Whittlesey
Peterborough
PE7 1LW
07469210782

www.TaylorPlanningandBuilding.co.uk

J2004

Find us on

Facebook

@Taylorplanningbuildingconsultants

Copyright
The details shown on this drawing are confidential and the exclusive property of
Taylor Planning and Building Consultants
No use, copy or disclosure of this drawing may be made without written
permission and it is to be returned to RWS Limited upon request.



AutoCAD SHX Text_766
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_767
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_768
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_769
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_770
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_771
5 meters

AutoCAD SHX Text_772
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_773
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_774
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_775
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_776
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_777
5 meters

AutoCAD SHX Text_778
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_779
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_780
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_781
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_782
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_783
5 meters


Pitch of roof

to match existing
Re use existing tiles

=

Dormer Roof tiles
to match existing
Cheeks - Grey cladding

_ Replacement Windows

Colour : Anthracite

Replacement Windows
Colour : Anthracite

Re use existing files

ReUseexistng e

™

Fascia - Grey

X
AN
Foscia - TBC < uuu BN N — — Obsure —
i E >
E—E { L T L T
Sogdtoﬁ 2|0—20 . — Focing Brick Facing Brick Facing Brick —— FacingBrick
Red Mix Tiles t i acing Brici isti isti —  — i W isti
o 4":"_ veelu>< gKé?svzn?Oi?swon u = mo%ch i to match existing fo match existing ,,//,/ - Rci?é%f?;nriﬂirc\ﬁli?:o S to match existing
£ — =
g;j - Header course refained I R |
e} Facing brick to
L be retained
2 3 L LIl |
é a Anthracite Anthracite _ _ — Facing-Brick Facing Brick Exisﬁngar Facing Brick Retained
< Replacement Replacement — Facing brick to match to mafch existing to match exisfing blocked up
£ door door existing
g a
New Entrance door and sidelights
—anthracite in colour
Proposed Front Elevation Proposed Rear Elevation Proposed East Elevation Proposed West Elevation
1:100 1:100 1:100 1100
%
rR@flﬁhT_' RoofLight
y| % >
i 17
| '/ < Steel post o
P R — o
o o\ (@]
Cill fo be level with worktop " Rootlight
@ 900mm o
o |
3 Rooflight Rooflight Rooflight e RoofLight RaofLight RopfLight
3 . . 1 3 . - M
| | | g | o |
| | | 3 | | o
L1 LI L1 L L _J L
Steel By engineer | T T T ]
— [E 1] | 1]
I New Internal Doors [ 1 [ 1
KITCHEN - DINING - FAMILY ROOM o
S -
N
Ensuite
] soilFipe Bedroom Bedroom
Kitchen @ Lounge Bathroom
®
7T 7] @
~
0}
a
Block up § Full Height Window AC Revision:
é existing door = Obscure - -
Eclisse Doors Project:
| - - - - 3 Irving Burgess Extend
Landing Description:
Utilty PROPOSED B
- / 0
Lobb = Date:
Y 21-01-22
Bedroom
WC Scale & Sheet Size:
Enlarge 1:50 /100 @ Al
opening
V A : I I I T T Drawing Ref:
[T | I: :I :I
Rooflight | |
Cupboard | g € |
g | €
ko)
o)
| ©
I — —
&1 Rl ,
 ——| | RoofLight |
| 4
Glazed Front Porch
Goroge Anthracite in Colour I Bedroom I Dorrher
| —I_ — Taylor Planning & Building Consultants
. | | FIRST FLOOR 1: 4 Dapple Gardens
GROUND FLOOR - PROPOSED ] 50 | |—__—| | Whittlesey
Peterborough
| L ] | PE7 1LW
| - | 07469210782
RoofLight
| | www.TaylorPlanningandBuilding.co.uk

J2004

Find us on

Facebook

@Taylorplanningbuildingconsultants

Copyright
The details shown on this drawing are confidential and the exclusive property of
Taylor Planning and Building Consultants
No use, copy or disclosure of this drawing may be made without written
permission and it is to be returned to RWS Limited upon request.

08 abed



AutoCAD SHX Text_784
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_785
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_786
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_787
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_788
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_789
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_790
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_791
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_792
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_793
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_794
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_795
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_796
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_797
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_798
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_799
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_800
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_801
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_802
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_803
5 meters

AutoCAD SHX Text_804
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_805
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_806
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_807
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_808
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_809
5 meters

AutoCAD SHX Text_810
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_811
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_812
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_813
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_814
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_815
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_816
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_817
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_818
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_819
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_820
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_821
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_822
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_823
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_824
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_825
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_826
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_827
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_828
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_829
5 meters


PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 4th May 2022 Agenda No: 7
APPLICATION NO: F/YR22/0185/F

SITE LOCATION: 3 Irving Burgess Close, Whittlesey

UPDATE

An amended site plan was received by the agent following the grant of planning
permission F/YR22/0121/F for the erection of 2 x 2-storey 4-bed dwellings (Plot 4 and 5)
to the east of the application site.

The updated site plan details the location of these dwellings in relation to 3 Irving
Burgess Close (IBC). Accompanying comments from the agent note that these
approved dwellings are different from the existing street scene ‘adding a more varied
mix within the street’.

An additional letter of support has also been received with regard to the above scheme
from a resident of IBC.

Officer response

The construction of the 2 dwellings (Plot 4 and 5) would result in the final completion of
the residential development off Irving Burgess Close.

The approved dwellings are of a commensurate scale to other properties within the area
and their visual appearance is considered to generally be in keeping with the locality. A
pre commencement condition has been secured on F/YR22/0121/F to ensure full details
of materials are secured, further ensuring the assimilation of the dwellings within the
locality.

Whilst the recently approved dwellings will introduce a visual change within the street
scene, they are not considered to detrimentally impact on the locality. It remains the
case that the first-floor extension and 2-storey extension proposed under this scheme
would be visually jarring and unsympathetic to the host dwelling and as such would
create a prominent and incongruous feature within the street scene to the detriment of
the character and appearance of the area.

The approval of development to the east of No 3 Irving Burgess Close offers no
mitigation against or justification for the extensions proposed at No 3 Irving Burgess
Close and the Officer evaluation within the agenda report remains appropriate.

Resolution: No change to the recommendation which is to refuse the application
as per Section 12 of Agenda item 7 on page 60.

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

F/IYR22/0241/F
Applicant: Mr Jagjit Gaba Agent : Mr R Papworth
Morton & Hall Consulting Ltd
5 Park Street, Chatteris, Cambridgeshire, PE16 6AB

Alterations to shop front including bricking up window and a replacement
window frame

Officer recommendation: Refuse

Reason for Committee: Number of representations received contrary to officer
recommendation. Property is owned by a District Councillor

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1.This application is for the alterations to the shop front at 5 Park Street
Chatteris. The alterations include bricking up a window and a replacement
window frame.

1.2.The proposal is considered to introduce harm to the character of the
Conservation Area and the nearby Listed Buildings given the modernisation
of the existing historic shop front. The scheme is therefore considered to be
contrary to Policy LP16 and LP18 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014), and as
such this application is recommended for refusal.

2  SITE DESCRIPTION

2.1. The application site is located on the northern side of Park Street, opposite
the junction with East Park Street, within the market town of Chatteris.

2.2. The site is situated within Chatteris Conservation Area and is within the
setting of several Grade Il Listed Buildings.

2.3. The building on site is a 19t century building with an original shop front. The
Grade Il Listed Buildings within the vicinity of the site (7 Park Street and No 2-
8 Park Street) all date from the same era.

3 PROPOSAL

3.1. This application seeks planning consent for alterations to the shop front
including bricking up a window and a replacement window frame.

3.2. The application includes the installation of a new aluminium framed shop front

with almost full height glazing and a central sliding door. The property was the
subject of a ram-raid earlier this year and prior to this the shop front was

Page 83



traditional in its form with stall-riser, divided window panes and door way to
the side.

3.3. Full plans and associated documents for this application can be found at:
https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/

4  SITE PLANNING HISTORY

Reference Description Decision Date

FYRO0/0230/F  Change of use of part of ground-floor from residential to retail involving Granted 30.05.2000
elevational alterations; installation of external staircase at rear and roller

shutters to main shop entrance

FYRO3/00919/F  Erection of single-storey rear extension and external staircase Granted 05092003
incorporating demalition of single-storey rear additions

F/YR04/3790/F Erection of part single, part two storey rear extension and external Granted 01.02.2005
staircase incorporating demelition of single storey rear additions.

FYRO6/0515/F Installation of new shop front and roller shutters and formation of an Refused 21.06.2006
extemal ramp for disabled access

07/00001/REF Appeal 17.04.2007

Dismissed

5 CONSULTATIONS
5.1.  Chatteris Town Council
Support
5.2. FDC Environmental Health

The Environmental Health Team note and accept the submitted information
and have ‘No Objections’ to the proposed scheme as it is unlikely to have a
detrimental effect on local air quality and the noise climate or be affected by
ground contamination.

5.3. CCC Highways

The proposals will have no material impact upon the public highway so |
have no objection to this application.

5.4. CCC Archaeology

Thank you for your consultation. We have reviewed the above referenced
planning application and have no archaeological requirements for this
development.

We will defer to the expertise of the Conservation Officer with regard to the
impact on designated heritage assets affected, including the Conservation
Area, which is currently on Historic England’s Heritage at Risk Register.
5.5. FDC Conservation
1. This application seeks planning permission to undertake alterations to a

shop front, including bricking up a window and installing a replacement
window frame. The property is a typical 19" century building, with original

Page 84


https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/

shop front (though with modern signage) within Chatteris Conservation
Area and within the setting of listed buildings at 7 Park Street, (a mid-19t
century house and shop of a style and date contemporary with the
application site) and No. s 2-8 Park Street on the opposite side of the road,
all dating from the same era.

. In considering whether to grant planning permission for development which
affects a listed building or its setting, special regard shall be paid to the
desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special
architectural or historic interest which it possesses according to the duty in
law under S66 Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990.

. Consideration is given to the impact of this proposal on the character and
appearance of the Conservation Area with special attention paid to the
desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of that
area according to the duty in law under S72 Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

. Comments are made with due regard to Section 16 of the National
Planning Policy Framework, 2021, specifically, paragraphs 8 195, 197,199,
200, and 202. The following comments are made:

. Due regard is given to relevant planning history. In 2000 application
F/YR00/0230/F was granted for change of use of part of the ground floor
from residential to retail (to the side and rear only). Photographic records
indicate that the shop front to No. 5 has remained unaltered. In 2003
application F/YR03/0919/F was granted for the erection of a single-storey
rear extension and external staircase, incorporating demolition of an
existing single storey rear addition and in 2004 application F/YR04/3790F
was granted for a part two-storey rear extension and external staircase,
incorporating demolition of an existing single storey rear addition.
However, an application in 2006, F/YR06/0515/F for the installation of a
new shop front was refused on the basis that the proposed shop front
would fail to incorporate traditional elements of shop front design in this
prominent corner location and would have a detrimental impact on the
character of the street scene and fail to preserve or enhance the character
of the conservation area. The decision was appealed and dismissed at
appeal (07/00001/REF).  The Inspector’s comments noted that the
proposal was not of a design that displayed unity with the buildings of
which it is a part, nor did it incorporate the traditional elements of shop front
design and that the proposal would be unsympathetic to the appearance of
the existing buildings and the townscape characteristics of the area. The
Inspector was aware that modern shop fronts had been allowed elsewhere
in the conservation area but that these were in less sensitive locations than
the application site but noted that the existence of poor design is not a
Justification for more. The Inspector concluded that the proposal would not
preserve the character and appearance of Chatteris Conservation Area and
would be harmful to the setting of the listed buildings. The appeal was
therefore dismissed.

. A heritage statement has been submitted with the application. The
information is sufficient to comply with paragraph 194 of the NPPF and
policy LP18 of the 2014 local plan but lacks an assessment of impact on
the character or appearance of the conservation area or provision of an

Page 85



indication of public benefit to outweigh any harm identified. Furthermore, it
is flawed in its approach of noting other approvals and shop fronts within
Chatteris, none of which is a comparable example. The quoted application
F/YR21/0281/F is a reconsultation for an earlier application F/YR20/1019/F
for a replacement shop front with modern well designed and proportioned
bi-fold doors. The shop front to be replaced was not historic, but a modern
shop front of traditional style and so there was no loss of historic fabric.
Furthermore, the site was not in a prominent location within the
conservation area. The impact on the character and appearance was felt
to be neutral. The heritage statement also references F/YR20/0254/A,
which was for replacement signage at 51 High Street — a late 20 century
building and former Budgens store. Finally, the modern shop fronts of 30
and 40 High Street and are referenced, though these are both in wholly
modern buildings, and detract from the character and appearance of the
conservation area. They fall into that category of shop fronts referenced by
the Inspector — that existing poor design is not justification for more. None
of the examples cited are comparable with the application site.

The application is not supported. The following comments are made:

Number 5 Park Street Chatteris within Chatteris Conservation Area. It is a
surviving mid-19t century shop with living above in an area of
contemporary buildings, many of which are listed. It holds a prominent
corner location within the conservation rea, and despite modern signage
and loss of historic joinery to first floor windows, retains sufficient historic
character, with the survival of the shop front (including glazed tiles to the
stall riser) to No. 5 to contribute positively overall to the character and
appearance of the conservation area and the setting of nearby listed
buildings. It is acknowledged that the historic shop front has suffered
considerable damage as a result of a collision or ramraid from a car. This
should be reported as heritage crime as well as presumably criminal
damage. The permanent loss of this shop front will have a detrimental
impact on the character and appearance of the conservation area and
contribute to the piecemeal erosion of character which has led to the
conservation area being included on Historic England’s Heritage at Risk
Register. It is within this context that this proposal is considered.

. The proposal seeks to maintain the existing opening but install a new
aluminium framed shop front with full height glazing and a central sliding
door and to block up a ground floor window to the fagade of No. 3 using
bricks to ‘match the existing’. The proposal is extremely similar to that
refused and dismissed at appeal under F/YR06/0515/F.

. Given the similarity of the applications, the impact of the current proposal
would therefore be the same as the earlier scheme: the proposal would be
wholly unsympathetic to the buildings of which it is a part, it would fail to
preserve or enhance the character and appearance of the conservation
area and would harm the setting of the listed buildings. The likelihood of
finding matching bricks to block up the opening is slim and would therefore
result in an incongruous patch of brickwork in an historic elevation. Overall,
the scheme would amount to further piecemeal erosion of historic detail
which contributes to the special interest of the conservation area and would
result in cumulative harm thereby interfering with the aim of removing the
conservation area from the Heritage at Risk register. It would be contrary

Page 86



5.6.

6.1.

6.2.

7.1.

therefore to S.66 and 72 of the Planning Act, contrary to the NPPF and
contrary to LP 16 and 18.

10. The proposal would amount to less than substantial harm to the designated
conservation area and must therefore be weighed against the public
benefits of the proposal. No assessment of public benefit has been
provided and it is considered that there are no demonstrable public benefits
to the proposed shop front over and above that of reinstating the historic
shop front on a like for like basis. Such an approach would not require
planning permission and would feasibly be covered by insurance given the
circumstances of the damage, and therefore should not present an
obstacle to reinstating the historic shop front and thereby preserving the
conservation area and setting of listed buildings.

11. Therefore, in order to remain consistent with the advice of the Planning
Inspectorate and with the aims of preserving and enhancing the character
and appearance of the conservation area according to the duty in law, the
application is not supported.

Local Residents/Interested Parties

Nine letters of support were received from residents of Chatteris with regard
to the above scheme (six supplied by the applicant’s agent) . The reasons
for support are as follows:

- New door will improve access to the store

- Current shop front not DDA compliant.

- Visual enhancement

- Recent robbery underlines the need for greater security

- Similar shop fronts within the vicinity of the site

STATUTORY DUTY

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires
a planning application to be determined in accordance with the Development
Plan unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The
Development Plan for the purposes of this application comprises the
adopted Fenland Local Plan (2014).

Sections 66 and 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation
Areas) Act 1990 require Local Planning Authorities when considering
development to pay special attention to preserving a listed building or its
setting and to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or
appearance of a conservation area.

POLICY FRAMEWORK

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

Para 2 — Applications to be determined in accordance with the development
plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise

Para 8 — Achieving sustainable development

Para 11 — A presumption in favour of sustainable development

Para 47 — All applications for development shall be determined in
accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations
indicate otherwise

Page 87



7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

8.1

8.2

9.1.

9.2.

Para 130 — Achieving well-designed places
Chapter 16 — Conserving and enhancing the historic environment

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)
Determining a Planning Application

National Design Guide 2019
Context
|dentity

Fenland Local Plan 2014

LP1 — A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

LP16 — Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments across the
District

LP18 — The Historic Environment

BACKGROUND

As set out in the history section above planning permission was refused and
an appeal dismissed in 2006 in relation to an application for the installation
of new shop front and roller shutters and formation of an external ramp for
disabled access. This scheme was not dissimilar to the current proposals in
that it sought to remove the historic, traditional shop front and replace it with
a more modern design.

Members should be aware that the owner of the application site is
Councillor Benney.

KEY ISSUES

e Principle of Development
¢ Visual Amenity of the Conservation Area and Surrounding Listed

Buildings

ASSESSMENT
Principle of Development

This application seeks planning consent for alterations to the shop front at 5
Park Street, including the bricking up of the window and a replacement
window frame. The site is located within Chatteris Conservation Area and is
located within the setting of numerous Grade Il Listed Buildings. Whilst the
broad principle of a new shop front can be supported, consideration needs
to be given to the visual impact of the detailed scheme and the potential
harm on the Conservation Area and nearby Listed Buildings.

Visual Amenity of the Conservation Area and Surrounding Listed
Buildings.

Number 5 Park Street is situated in a prominent corner location within
Chatteris Conservation Area. The building retained significant historic
character with the survival of the shop front and this was considered to
positively contribute to the character and appearance of the Conservation
Area and the setting of nearby Listed Buildings. While the original shop front
has been significantly damaged as a result of the ram-raid carried out on the

Page 88



9.3.

9.4.

9.5

9.6

9.7

10

10.1.

10.2.

property, it is considered that the permanent loss of a traditional shop front
to the building will have a detrimental impact upon the character of the
Conservation Area and the setting of the nearby listed buildings and will also
contribute to the erosion of the character of the Conservation Area.

Given the similarity between this application and the previous appealed
application, the considerations and impacts are considered to be the same.
The proposal would not be sympathetic to the existing building and would
harm the character of the surrounding area. In addition it is considered that
the likelihood of finding a matching brick to infill the window opening is slim
and thus the introduction of a different brick would result in an incongruous
patch of brickwork.

Consequently, the proposed development is considered to result in less than
substantial harm to the designated conservation area as outlined within the
NPPF and this harm must therefore be weighed against the public benefits
of the scheme. No such assessment has been provided as part of the
application and as such there are considered to be no demonstrable public
benefits forthcoming to justify the granting of planning permission.

Other Matters

The information submitted in support of the application makes reference to
the existence of other modern replacement shop fronts within Chatteris town
centre. While this is the case none are considered comparable in terms of
location within the conservation area, or the historic value which the pre-
existing frontages held. In addition this was also the argument put to the
Inspector in 2006 and which was dismissed.

As well as raising the above issue, supporters of the application have also
raised several issues regarding the security benefits which would be
afforded and the original shop front not being DDA (Disability Discrimination
Act) compliant. In terms of improving security it is not clear how the
proposals would improve this and the information submitted in support of the
application is silent on this.

Similarly other than referring to the proposed shop front having a wider door
no information is provided as to access benefits. It is unclear as to whether
there would be any benefits in terms of disabled access as no ramp is
proposed unlike the scheme previously dismissed at appeal and no
argument has been put forward by the applicant concerning making the
entrance DDA compliant.

CONCLUSIONS

This application is for the alterations to the shop front including bricking up a
window and a replacement window frame.

For the reasons discussed above, the alterations to the shop front are

considered unacceptable given the harm that the scheme would introduce to
the Conservation Area and the setting of surrounding Listed Buildings.

Page 89



10

.3. Also, this scheme is similar in its impacts and considerations to the previous

scheme that was refused by the Council and dismissed at appeal.

10.4. Consequently, the application is considered to be contrary to Policy LP16

11

and LP18 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014.
RECOMMENDATION

Refuse, for the following reason

The alterations proposed to the shop front at 5 Park Streetis not a design that
displays unity with the buildings of which itis a part, nor does it incorporate
the traditional elements of shop front design. It is therefore considered that it
would be unsympathetic to the appearance of the existing buildings and the
townscape characteristics of the area. The proposal does not preserve or
enhance the character and appearance of the conservation area, would be
detrimental to it through the visual harm and loss of historic interest and would
be harmful to the setting of the nearby listed buildings. Local Plan policy
requires developments to make a positive contribution to the local
distinctiveness and character of the area so that they enhance the local setting
and respond to and improve the character of the local built environment. The
public benefit that the scheme would bring is insignificant and is insufficient to
justify the scheme. The application is therefore considered to be to contrary
Policies LP16 and LP18 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014 and the aims and
objectives of the NPPF.

Page 90



The Firs

O

Church

Created on: 02/03/2022

© Crown Copyright and database
rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 10023778

F/YR22/0241/F A

Scale = 1:1,250

Fenland

CAMBRIDGESHIRE

Fenland District Council

Page 91




O

SALES AREA

=

SALES AREA

26 abed

EXISTING PART GROUND FLOOR PLAN
(1:50)

FRONT ELEVATION AFTER
CRIMINAL DAMAGE

BEDROOM

PATH

FRONT ELEVATION AFTER TEMPORARY
REPAIR WORKS

EXISTING LOW
VOLTAGE LED LIGHT
SET TO SHOP FRONT

EXISTING PART FIRST FLOOR PLAN

(1:50)

EXISTING SHOP FRONT SIDE ELEVATION

(1:50)

EXISTING LOW
VOLTAGE LED LIGHT
SET TO SHOP FRONT

Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole
without their written permission.

Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without
consulting the Engineers.

Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and
specification. All work to be in accordance with

good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the
recommendations define the quality of the finished work.
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers
current recommendations.

The contractor is to qrrange inspections of the works
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and
forward to the Engineer

LOCATION PLAN
(1:1250)

A . A~

WIS B E
4 b
S
A DRAWING UPDATED JAN 22
REVISIONS DATE

MoRrToN & HALL
CoNSULTING LIMITED

CONSULTING STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS

1 Gordon Avenue, Tel: 01354 655454
March, Fax: 01354 660467
Combridgeshire. E—mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk
PE15 8AJ Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk
‘ Fenland District Council | sz
LABC™ LABC™ o §§
Building ::
Design Awards
Building Excellence in Fenland .

Mr | Benney

Chatteris

T

EXISTING SITE PLAN
(1:200)

Nisa | ~ Nisa

HHHHHHEHHHHHHEHH o
>
I I I
| e~ Ll
—+
(0]
H=.
(7]

EXISTING FRONT ELEVATION
(1:50)

Nisa at 5 Park Street
Chatteris
Cambridgeshire

PE16 O6AB

Existing Plans
and Elevation

DRAWN DATE OF ISSUE

R.Papworth

CHECKED

DATE \Jon 2022 DRAWING NUMBER

HB098 /01,

SCALE As Shown



AutoCAD SHX Text_830
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_831
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_832
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_833
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_834
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_835
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_836
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_837
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_838
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_839
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_840
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_841
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_842
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_843
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_844
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_845
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_846
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_847
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_848
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_849
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_850
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_851
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_852
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_853
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_854
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_855
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_856
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_857
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_858
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_859
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_860
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_861
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_862
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_863
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_864
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_865
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_866
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_867
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_868
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_869
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_870
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_871
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_872
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_873
Mr I Benney

AutoCAD SHX Text_874
Nisa at 5 Park Street

AutoCAD SHX Text_875
Chatteris

AutoCAD SHX Text_876
Cambridgeshire

AutoCAD SHX Text_877
PE16 6AB

AutoCAD SHX Text_878
Existing Plans

AutoCAD SHX Text_879
and Elevation

AutoCAD SHX Text_880
R.Papworth

AutoCAD SHX Text_881
Jan 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text_882
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text_883
H8098/01

AutoCAD SHX Text_884
EXISTING PART GROUND FLOOR PLAN (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_885
NEIGHBOURING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_886
EXISTING PART FIRST FLOOR PLAN (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_887
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_888
LIVING ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_889
BATHROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_890
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_891
SALES AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text_892
SALES AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text_893
SALES AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text_894
EXISTING FRONT ELEVATION (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_895
FRONT ELEVATION AFTER TEMPORARY REPAIR WORKS

AutoCAD SHX Text_896
FRONT ELEVATION AFTER  CRIMINAL DAMAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_897
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_898
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_899
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_900
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_901
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_902
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_903
PC (dis)

AutoCAD SHX Text_904
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_905
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_906
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_907
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_908
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_909
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_910
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_911
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_912
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_913
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_914
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_915
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_916
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_917
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_918
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_919
LOCATION PLAN (1:1250)

AutoCAD SHX Text_920
PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_921
PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_922
PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_923
PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_924
EAST PARK STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_925
PARK STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_926
EXISTING SITE PLAN (1:200)

AutoCAD SHX Text_927
PARK STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_928
EXISTING SHOP FRONT SIDE ELEVATION (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_929
EXISTING LOW VOLTAGE LED LIGHT SET TO SHOP FRONT

AutoCAD SHX Text_930
EXISTING LOW VOLTAGE LED LIGHT SET TO SHOP FRONT

AutoCAD SHX Text_931
DRAWING UPDATED

AutoCAD SHX Text_932
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_933
JAN 22

AutoCAD SHX Text_934
A


If in doubt

ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work
specification. All work to be in accordance with

Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall
starts or materials are ordered.

Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole
consulting the Engineers.

without their written permission.

CATEGORY WINNER
2009 & 2011

¢

JAN 22
DATE

o
=
O
=)
m

»
°
—
s
<
c
2
7
oy
(a]

H8098 /02,

01354 655454
Building Excellence in Fenland

d
c
=
o

o

k&,
=

2

(@]

§e
c

b
c
o

I

DATE OF ISSUE
DRAWING NUMBER

Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

LABC

Fax: 01354 660467
E—mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk

Tel:

R.Papworth
Jan 2022

MoRToN & HALL
CONSULTING LIMITED

‘CONSULTING STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS

Mr | Benney

Nisa at 5 Park Street

Chatteris

Cambridgeshire

PE16 6AB

Proposed Plans

and Elevation

DRAWING UPDATED

REVISIONS

1 Gordon Avenue,

March,
Cambridgeshire.

good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the
PE15 8AJ

recommendations define the quality of the finished work.
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared

and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

Materials products and workmanship to comply with all
current recommendations.

British Standards and EOTA standards with, where

appropriate, BS or EC marks.
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

The contractor is to qrrange inspections of the works
forward to the Engineer

by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building

CLIENT
PROJECT
TITLE
DRAWN
CHECKED
DATE

A
L

As Shown

SCALE

50)

(1

SET TO SHOP FRONT

EXISTING LOW
VOLTAGE LED LIGHT

BRICK UP EXISTING

WINDOW OPENING,
BRICKS TO MATCH

EXISTING

PROPOSED SHOP FRONT SIDE ELEVATION
(NO E:HANGE)

o
(<

50)

-
-

(1

BATHROOM

(NO CHANGE)

50)

SET NEW ALUMINIUM
FRAMED WINDOW N
EXISTING OPENING,
RAL COLOUR 7024
T
[ [
I I I

BEDROOM

Nisa

(1

PROPOSED PART FIRST FLOOR PLAN

KITCHEN

PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION

SET TO SHOP FRONT

EXISTING LOW
VOLTAGE LED LIGHT

PATH

Nisa

BRICK UP EXISTING
Chatteris

WINDOW OPENING,

BRICKS TO MATCH

EXISTING

NEW SHOP FRONT
TO BE ALUMINIUM

FRAMED, RAL
COLOUR 7024

PROPOSED PART GROUND FLOOR PLAN

SALES AREA
SALES AREA

PATH

200)

(1

PROPOSED SITE PLAN

PATH

R

Page 93

.

(NO CHANGE)



AutoCAD SHX Text_935
PROPOSED PART GROUND FLOOR PLAN (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_936
NEIGHBOURING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_937
PROPOSED PART FIRST FLOOR PLAN (NO CHANGE) (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_938
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_939
LIVING ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_940
BATHROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_941
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_942
SALES AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text_943
SALES AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text_944
SALES AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text_945
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_946
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_947
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_948
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_949
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_950
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_951
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_952
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_953
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_954
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_955
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_956
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_957
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_958
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_959
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_960
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_961
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_962
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_963
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_964
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_965
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_966
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_967
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_968
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_969
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_970
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_971
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_972
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_973
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_974
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_975
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_976
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_977
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_978
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_979
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_980
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_981
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_982
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_983
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_984
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_985
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_986
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_987
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_988
Mr I Benney

AutoCAD SHX Text_989
Nisa at 5 Park Street

AutoCAD SHX Text_990
Chatteris

AutoCAD SHX Text_991
Cambridgeshire

AutoCAD SHX Text_992
PE16 6AB

AutoCAD SHX Text_993
Proposed Plans

AutoCAD SHX Text_994
and Elevation

AutoCAD SHX Text_995
R.Papworth

AutoCAD SHX Text_996
Jan 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text_997
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text_998
H8098/02

AutoCAD SHX Text_999
PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1000
PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1001
PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1002
PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1003
PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1004
EXISTING LOW VOLTAGE LED LIGHT SET TO SHOP FRONT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1005
PROPOSED SITE PLAN (1:200) (NO CHANGE)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1006
PROPOSED SHOP FRONT SIDE ELEVATION (1:50) (NO CHANGE)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1007
PARK STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1008
DRAWING UPDATED

AutoCAD SHX Text_1009
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1010
JAN 22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1011
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1012
BRICK UP EXISTING WINDOW OPENING, BRICKS TO MATCH EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1013
BRICK UP EXISTING WINDOW OPENING, BRICKS TO MATCH EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1014
EXISTING LOW VOLTAGE LED LIGHT SET TO SHOP FRONT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1015
NEW SHOP FRONT TO BE ALUMINIUM FRAMED, RAL COLOUR 7024

AutoCAD SHX Text_1016
SET NEW ALUMINIUM FRAMED WINDOW IN EXISTING OPENING, RAL COLOUR 7024


This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Previous Minutes
	5 F/YR21/0887/F<br/>Land North West Of Middle Level Commissioners, Whittlesey Road, March<br/>Erect 1 x office/workshop, 1x vehicle workshop and 1 x training centre, 2.4m high (approx) fence and formation of car park and associated infrastructure
	21.0887.FORCEONE WHITTLESEY RD - finalised
	618230-FDC Location Plan-
	604240-Drawing-AMENDED LOCATION PLAN
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	634281-Drawing-PROPOSED SITE PLAN
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	617769-Drawing-PROPOSED SITE ACCESS LAYOUT DIMENSIONS AND TRACKING
	576558-Drawing-STREET SCENE
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	576563-Elevations and Floor Plans-TRAINING CENTRE - ELEVATIONS AND FLOOR PLANS
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	576565-Elevations and Floor Plans-OFFICE_WORKSHOP - ELEVATIONS AND FLOOR PLANS
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	576568-Elevations and Floor Plans-VEHICLE SHED - ELEVATIONS AND FLOOR PLANS.
	Sheets and Views
	Model



	6 F/YR21/1504/FDC<br/>South Fens Enterprise Park, Fenton Way, Chatteris<br/>Erect 2 x blocks of industrial units (6 x units total) (Class E (g) - workshops and offices) with associated parking, and enlargement of existing attenuation basin.
	South Fens_Comm_Report (002)
	south Fens location
	South Fens composite

	7 F/YR22/0185/F<br/>3 Irving Burgess Close, Whittlesey<br/>Erect a first floor and single-storey front extensions, single-storey rear extension and a 2-storey side/rear extension to existing dwelling
	YR22-0185-F Committee Report
	623369-FDC Location Plan-
	632498-Drawing-LOCATION PLAN, SITE PLAN, STREET SCENE, ROOF PLANS
	Sheets and Views
	Layout2 (5)


	623324-Drawing-EXISTING FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS
	Sheets and Views
	Layout2 (4)


	623327-Drawing-PROPOSED FLOOR PLAN AND ELEVATIONS
	Sheets and Views
	Layout2 (3)


	YR22-0185-F Committee update - Final

	8 F/YR22/0241/F<br/>5 Park Street, Chatteris<br/>Alterations to shop front including bricking up window and a replacement window frame
	YR22-0241-F Committe Report - signed off NH
	1. This application seeks planning permission to undertake alterations to a shop front, including bricking up a window and installing a replacement window frame.  The property is a typical 19th century building, with original shop front (though with m...
	2. In considering whether to grant planning permission for development which affects a listed building or its setting, special regard shall be paid to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special architectural ...
	3. Consideration is given to the impact of this proposal on the character and appearance of the Conservation Area with special attention paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of that area according to the duty...
	4. Comments are made with due regard to Section 16 of the National Planning Policy Framework, 2021, specifically, paragraphs 8 195, 197,199, 200, and 202.  The following comments are made:
	5. Due regard is given to relevant planning history.  In 2000 application F/YR00/0230/F was granted for change of use of part of the ground floor from residential to retail (to the side and rear only).  Photographic records indicate that the shop fron...
	6. A heritage statement has been submitted with the application.  The information is sufficient to comply with paragraph 194 of the NPPF and policy LP18 of the 2014 local plan but lacks an assessment of impact on the character or appearance of the con...
	7.  The application is not supported.  The following comments are made:
	i. Number 5 Park Street Chatteris within Chatteris Conservation Area.  It is a surviving mid-19th century shop with living above in an area of contemporary buildings, many of which are listed.  It holds a prominent corner location within the conservat...
	8. The proposal seeks to maintain the existing opening but install a new aluminium framed shop front with full height glazing and a central sliding door and to block up a ground floor window to the façade of No. 3 using bricks to ‘match the existing’....
	9. Given the similarity of the applications, the impact of the current proposal would therefore be the same as the earlier scheme: the proposal would be wholly unsympathetic to the buildings of which it is a part, it would fail to preserve or enhance ...
	10. The proposal would amount to less than substantial harm to the designated conservation area and must therefore be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal.  No assessment of public benefit has been provided and it is considered that the...
	11. Therefore, in order to remain consistent with the advice of the Planning Inspectorate and with the aims of preserving and enhancing the character and appearance of the conservation area according to the duty in law, the application is not supported.

	622900-FDC Location Plan-
	622179-Drawing-LOCATION PLAN, EXISTING SITE PLAN, FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	622180-Drawing-PROPOSED SITE PLAN, FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS
	Sheets and Views
	Model




